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end of 2007 end of 2006
' the period the period
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT (PLN 000) Note from 01 Jan 2007 from 01 Jan 2006
to 31 Dec 2007 to 31 Dec 2006
Interest income 2 2 484 082 2007 792
Interest expenses 2 1443 386 1075 139
Net interest income 2 1 040 696 932 653
Commission income 3 928 247 706 903
Commission expenses 3 99 343 62 533
Net commission income 3 828 904 644 370
Net income on investment financial assets 4 117 256 77 638
Net income on instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss 5 3811 56 755
and revaluation
Other operating income and expenses 6 7412 14 573
Result on basic activities 1990 457 1725989
General and administrative expenses 7 1339 596 1195 646
Other expenses 8 9611 9676
Impairment losses and provisions for off-balance sheet liabilities 9 -103 936 -162 391
Profit (loss) before tax 745 186 683 058
Income tax 10 135033 142 501
Net result for the current year 610 153 540 557
Net profit (loss) 610 153 540 557
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 13 010 000 13 010 000
Earnings per ordinary share (PLN) 46,90 41,55
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares 13 010 000 13 010 000
Diluted earnings per ordinary share (PLN) 46,90 41,55
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end of 2007 end of 2006
BALAN CE SH EET (P LN IOOO) Note as of 31 December as of 31 December
2007 2006
ASSETS
- Cash in hand and balances with the Central Bank 13 1841720 1147 891
- Loans and receivables to other banks 14 15238 778 13560 173
- Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 15 7 869 034 7 066 031
- Investments 16 9418 393 12 644 728
- available-for-sale 16 8577 617 12 644728
- held-to-maturity 16 840 776 0
- Derivative hedge instruments 18 4572 0
- Loans and receivables to customers 19 16 049 702 12 962 405
- Investments in controlled entities 22 210 569 126 910
- Investment real estates 23 144 713 0
- Property, plant and equipment 24 521 243 408 453
- Intangible assets 25 317 801 316 753
- Property, plant and equipment held for sale 26 241 224
- Current tax asset 25 256 0
- Deferred tax asset 27 45 001 30 209
- Other assets 28 139 403 96 980
Total assets 51 826 426 48 360 757
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
- Liabilities due to the Central Bank 0 696 000
- Liabilities due to other banks 30 1812283 1400 239
- Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss 31 1214981 3120520
- Liabilities due to customers 32 44 502 189 38 626 433
- Provisions 33 70 904 88 833
- Current income tax liabilities 0 65 815
- Deferred tax provision 27 0 0
- Other liabilities 34 556 615 746 943
Total liabilities 48 156 972 44 744 783
EQUITY
- Share capital 35 130 100 130 100
- Supplementary capital - issuance of shares over nominal value 993 750 993 750
- Revaluation reserve from measurement of available-for-sale financial assets 36 -149 591 42 830
- Revaluation reserve from measurement of property, plant and equipment 36 37 154 40 458
- Retained earnings 37 2 658 041 2 408 836
Total equity 3 669 454 3615974
Total equity and liabilities 51 826 426 48 360 757
Solvency ratio 12,03% 15,09%
Book value 3669 454 3615974
Number of shares 13 010 000 13 010 000
Book value per share (PLN) 282,05 277,94
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (PLN '000)

end of year 2007
the period from 01 Jan 2007 to 31 Dec 2007

Revaluation Revaluati
Supplementar| reserve from eval ua; ‘on
y capital - | measurement reserve romt RetEiies]
Share capital [ issuance of | of available- measuremen e a!ne Total equity
shares over for-sale i (G, eamings
nominal value financial p'aT“ e
assets equipment
Opening balance of equity 130 100 993 750 42 830 40 458 2408836 3615974
- zysl'<|/strat_y z rewaluacji gktywow finansowych dostepnych do R R 174 090 R R 174 090
sprzedazy odniesione na kapitat wtasny
-_recla55|f|ed to_the fl_nanmal result as a result of sale of R R 18331 R R 18 331
available-for-sale financial assets
- disposal of property, plant and equipment - - - -258 2031 1773
- remeasurement of property, plant and equipment - - - -3 046 - -3 046
- dividends paid - - - - -362 979 -362 979
- net result for the current period - - - - 610 153 610 153
Total equity (closing balance) 130 100 993 750 -149 591 37 154| 2658041| 3669454
Note: 35, 36, 37
end of year 2006
the period from 01 Jan 2006 to 31 Dec 2006
Revaluation Revaluati
Supplementar| reserve from eval ua; ‘on
y capital - | measurement reserve romt Reteiies]
Share capital [ issuance of | of available- measuremen e a!ne Total equity
shares over for-sale i (G, eamings
nominal value financial p'aT“ e
assets equipment
Opening balance of equity 130 100 993 750 85 796 31725| 2223818 3465189
- gains/losses on rgmeasurement of available-for-sale financial R R 28754 R R 28 754
assets charged to equity
- reclassified to_the fl_nanmal result as a result of sale of R R 14 212 R R 14 212
available-for-sale financial assets
- disposal of property, plant and equipment - - - -2132 3647 1515
- remeasurement of property, plant and equipment - - - 10 865 -1411 9454
- dividends paid - - - - -357 775 -357 775
- net result for the current period - - - - 540 557 540 557
Total equity (closing balance) 130 100 993 750 42 830 40 458 2408836 3615974

Note: 35, 36, 37
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CASH FLOW STATE M ENT Note as of Sin;e[:::eri?)z as of SinSe?::eiTaoear
- indirect method (PLN '000) 2007 2006
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit (loss) 610 153 540 557
Adjustments -3 080 269 3019 146
- Depreciation and amortisation 7 150 765 137 268
- Interest accrued (from the profit and loss account) 2 1 040 696 932 653
- Interest received/paid -1048 131 -1 006 194
- Dividends received 4 -94 237 -57 621
- Gains (losses) on investment activities 6 1125
- Income tax (from the profit and loss account) 10 135033 142 501
- Income tax paid -240 896 -37
- Change in provisions 33 -17 929 9343
- Change in loans and other receivables to other banks 14 -5 778 216 2287 128
- Change in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 -840 844 -918 800
- Change in available-for-sale financial assets 16 3976 028 -1611 180
- Change in held-to-maturity financial assets 16 -850 837 0
- Change in derivative hedge instruments 18 -4 572 0
- Change in loans and other receivables to customers 19 -3071 379 -3 025 568
- Change in other assets 40 194 38875
- Change in liabilities due to other banks 30 -276 799 751 048
- Change in liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 31 -1 905 539 -565 269
- Change in liabilities due to customers 32 5896 716 5791438
- Change in other liabilities -190 328 112 436
Net cash flow from operating activities -2 470 116 3559 703
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
- Purchase of property plant and equipment 24 -254 794 -47 726
- Purchase investment property 23 -186 053 0
- Disposal of property, plant and equipment 1936 2 360
- Purchase of intangible assets 25 -60 081 -40 627
- Purchase of investments in subordinated entities -82 471 0
- Disposal of fixed assets/liabilities held for sale 4416 620
- Dividends received 4 94 237 57 621
Net cash flow from investment activities -482 810 -27 752

FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

- Long-term loans repaid -19 140 -51 607
- Interest on long-term loans repaid -1763 -1775
- Dividends paid 12 -362 979 -357 775
Net cash flow from financial activities -383 882 -411 157
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents -72 874 -97 654
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents -3 336 808 3120794
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 8174 524 5053 730
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 47 4837 716 8174 524
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Information on the Bank

ING BankSlaski S.A. (“Bank”, “Company”) with the headquarténsKatowice, Sokolska Str. 34, is
registered in the National Court Register run l®y @ommercial Department of the Regional Court in
Katowice under the reference number KRS 5459.

The Bank statistical number is REGON 271514909,thedax identification number is NIP 634-013-
54-75. The duration of the Bank was determinechdsfinite in the Bank’s charter.

The share capital of ING Banflaski S.A. amounts to PLN 130,100,000 and is divideth
13,010,000 ordinary shares with a par value of RONDO each. Shares of the Bank are quoted on the
Warsaw Stock Exchange.

ING BankSlaski S.A. is a subsidiary of ING Bank NV which holds/5% share in the issued capital
of ING BankSlaski and 75% shares in the total number of votéseaGeneral Shareholders Meeting.

ING Bank Slaski S.A. offers a broad range of banking serviceadered for individual and
institutional clients in line with the scope of @ees outlined in the Bank’s charter. The Bank’s
operations are denominated in both polish zloty fangign currencies as well as actively participate
in domestic and foreign financial markets.

The financial statements for 2006 were approvedhey General Meeting of Shareholders on 9
May 2007.

Selected financial data from the Financial Statemisn

ltem PLN thousands EUR thousands
31.12.2007 31.12.2006 31.12.2007 31.12.2006
Interest income 2484082 2007792 657 721 514 937
Commission revenue 928 247 706 903 245 776 181 299
Result on banking activity 1990457 1725989 527 022 442 663
Gross profit (loss) 745 186 683 058 197 306 175 184
Net profit (loss) 610 153 540 557 161 553 138 636
Net cashflow -3336 808 3120794 -883501 800 388
Earnings (loss) per 1 ordinary share (in 46.90 41.55 12.42 10.66
PLN/EUR)
Profitability ratio (%) 25.7 29.2 X X
Return on assets (%) 1.2 1.2 X X
Return on equity (%) 19.1 17.5 X X
Cost / Income ratio (%) 67.8 69.8 X X
Total assets 51 826 42648 360 757 14 468 572 12 622 875
Equity 3669454 3615974 1024415 943 823
Initial capital 130100 130 100 36 320 33 958
Number of shares 13 010 003 010 000 X X
Book value per 1 share (in PLN/EUR) 282.05 277.94 78.74 72.55
Solvency ratio (%) 12.03 15.09 X X

Profitability ratio — gross profit to total costs.

Return on assets (ROA)- net profit to average total assets.

Return on equity (ROE) — net profit to average equity.

Cost to Income ratio(C/l) — total costs to income from operating activity fype.
Solvency ratio —net equity to risk weighted assets and off-balestmt liabilities.

In order to determine the basic figures in EUR,ftil®wing exchange rates were applied:
e for balance-sheet items — PLN 3.5820 NBP exchaate of 31.12.2007; 3.8312 NBP exchange rate of
31.12.2006,
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« for income statement items for 30.06.2007 — PLN/887exchange rate calculated as the average of NBP
exchange rates as at the last day of each moi,i2Q, 3Q and 4Q 2007; 3.8991 exchange rate ezl
as the average of NBP exchange rates as at thaahasif each month in 1Q, 2Q, 3Q and 4Q 2006.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance with International Finacial Reporting Standards

These financial statements of the ING Batkski S.A. for the period from 1 January 2007 to 31
December 2007 have been prepared under the InimmahEinancial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
as adopted by the European Commission and witheodédp matters not regulated by the above
mentioned statements in accordance with the Acdogrict of 29 September 1994 (Journal of
Laws no.2002/76, item 694 as amended) and seconkaiglation thereto, as well as in

accordance with the Ordinance of Finance Ministel® October 2005 on current and interim
information submitted by issuers of securities (dal of Laws of 2005, no. 209, item 1744).

The balance sheet and the profit and loss accauat 81.12.2007 including comparable financial
data, have been prepared consistently for all pgsi@sented in this financial statement.

These financial statements for 2007 has been pedpam the full version and meet the
requirements of International Financial Reportingn8ards (IFRS).

These financial statements have been prepared h ®unded to one thousand zlotys (unless
otherwise noted).

In 2007, the Bank took account of the following niexerpretation of accounting standards:
- IFRIC 10 — Interim Financial Reporting and Impaént.

Adoption of the above named accounting interpretatstandard did not cause any significant
changes in the Bank’s accounting principles.

(b) Term and scope of the report

These financial statements of the ING Baikski S.A. cover the period from®1January 2007
to 31 December 2007 and include the comparatives data:

« for the balance sheet as’@ecember 2006 and financial year ending that day,

« for the profit and loss account, movement on eqaitgd cash flow statement for the
period from 1 January 2006 till $1December 2006.

() (Earlier) Adoption of Standards which are notin force as at the Balance Sheet Date

The Bank has not elected to early adopt any newdatads and Interpretations, which have been
published and approved by the European Union, amdhawill be effective after the balance sheet
date. As at the balance day, the Bank has notdaththe process of estimating the influence ofehe
standards and interpretations on the financiaéstants for the period in which they will be applied
for the first time.

The Standards and Interpretations that have beblisped are not in force yet and have not been

previously applied:

e IFRIC 11 - IFRS 2 Group and Treasury Share Traiwmast effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 March 2007

¢ |IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements, effedtiv annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2008

» |FRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, effective donual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2008.
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¢ IFRIC 14 — IAS 19,The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum FungiRequirements and
their Interaction, effective for annual periods io@gng on or after 1 January 2008

* IFRS 8, Operating Segments, effective for annuabgde beginning on or after 1 January 2009.

* Revised IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statemeftsctive from 1 January 2009.

* Revised IAS 23 Borrowing Costs, effective from huary 2009.

* IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations, effectoreahnual periods beginning on or after 1 July
20009.

« Amendments to IAS 27 Consolidated and SeparatenEialaStatements, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

« Amendments to IFRS 2 Share based payments, effdfaivannual periods beginning on or after 1
January 20009.

* Amendments to IAS 32: Financial Instruments - Pretéon and IAS 1: Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial Instruments andy&twns Arising on Liquidation, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

IFRIC 12, 13 and 14 have not been adopted by thegean Union.
(d) Basis for preparation of consolidated financiaktatements

In the financial statements, the Bank has adop#&dation at the fair value for financial assets and
liabilities valued at fair value, including deriigg instruments and financial assets classified as
available for sale, other than those which faiueatannot be reliably determined.

Other items of financial assets and liabilitiesclimling loans and receivables) are presented at
amortized cost less impairment charges or at psechéce less impairment charges.

Components of tangible fixed assets or non cureséts held for sale are recognized at the lower of
carrying value and fair value less costs to sell.

(e) Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accardanith IFRS requires from the Bank the use of
estimates and assumptions that affect the amogydsted in the financial statements and notestthere

Estimations and assumptions applied to the presamf value of assets, liabilities, revenues eosts,
are made on basis of historical data available athér factors considered to be relevant in given
circumstances.

Applied assumptions related to the future and abédl data sources are the base for making
estimations regarding carrying value of assets &adilities, which cannot be determined
explicitly on basis of other sources. The estimagflect the reasons for/ sources of uncertairgges
at the balance sheet date. The actual results iffierfdom estimates.

The estimations and assumptions are reviewed on-gotng basis. Adjustments to estimates are
recognized in the period when the estimation wasmghd, provided that the adjustment applies to this
period alone, or in the period when the estimati@s changed and in the following periods, should
the adjustment impact both the current and futeréogs.

Major accounting estimations adopted by the Bank iss follows:

Impairment of loans

At each balance sheet date, the Bank assessedastikére is objective evidence of impairment
of a given financial asset or of a group of suche#s Impairment of a financial asset or of a
group of financial assets is incurred only if théseobjective evidence for the impairment due to
one or many events. The occurrence of such evegtaup of such events affects the estimation
of expected cash flows regarding these assets.
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The estimates may take into account any obsenvablieations pointing at the occurrence of an
unfavourable change in the solvency position oftalesbbelonging to any particular group or in the
economic situation of a given country or part ofauntry, which is associated with the problems
appearing in that group of assets.

Historical parameters of recoveries are adjustedthen basis of the data coming from current
observations, so as to take into considerationrtfieence of current conditions and to exclude the
influencing factors from the prior periods that act currently present.

In order to estimate impairment or its recoverysihecessary to estimate the present value of the
expected cash flows. If there is objective evidetia# an impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortized cost has been incurred, theuatnof the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the presdu of estimated future cash flows discounted
using effective interest rate. If, in a subsequeeriod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively tovemt @ccurring after the impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is reagigy adjusting a carrying amount of the financial
asset. The amount of the reversal shall be recednis profit or loss up to the value of prior
impairment.

The methodology and the assumptions, on the bdsighwh the estimated cash flow and their
anticipated timing are determined, are regularlyien@ed and updated. Moreover, the tests on
historical data are carried out in order to comenteial results with estimations of impairment.

Impairment of other non- current assets

At each balance sheet date, the Bank assessesigtenee of circumstances indicating of impairment
of a non-current asset. If such indicators exist, Bank performs an estimation of recoverable value
Estimation of value-in-use of a non-current asgefuires assumptions to be adopted, regarding,
among others, amounts and timing of future caslwd|owhich the Bank may obtain from the
given non-current asset (or cash generating uAdpption of different measurement assumption
could affect the carrying value of some of the roturrent assets.

The Bank performs an estimation of the fair valasesl costs to sell on the basis of available
market data regarding this subject or estimatioaslenby external bodies, which are also based
on estimations.

Measurement of financial instruments that do not i@ a quoted market price

The fair value of financial instruments not quoted active markets is measured using valuation
models. For non-optional derivatives and debentaresilable for sale, the Bank uses valuation
models based on discounted cash flows. Optiongadied using option valuation models.

Valuation models used by the Bank, are verifiedindependent bodies before/prior to their usage.
Where possible, in models the Bank uses obsengdike from active markets. However, the Bank
also adopts assumptions as to probability (as tcrésk, variables and market correlations). Any
change in these assumptions may affect the faireval some financial instruments.

Retirement and sick pension severance payments igion

Retirement payments provision is calculated usingetuarial method by an independent actuary
as the present value of future liabilities of thenR towards the employees according to
headcount and remuneration at the updating date.eEtimation of the provision is made on the
basis of several assumptions both about macroedonemvironment and employee turnover,

mortality risk and other. The estimated provisienupdated annually. Additionally, adjustments

relating to the balance of the provision are maaked on quarterly updated assumptions.

Provisions for the bonus for employees and top axees

Provisions for the bonus for employees shall bearséte amount resulting from the effective bonus
regulations.



Annual financial statements of the ING Badski S.A.
for the period from % January 2007 to $iDecember 2007

The provisions for top executive staff bonuses esémated by the Management Board of the
Bank which is estimating the amount of benefitofithe balance-sheet date. The ultimate amount
of the abovementioned employee benefits is detexdhiy the decision of Supervisory Board of

the Bank.

) Investments in subsidiaries and affiliated compnies

Investments in subsidiaries and affiliated compsange measured at purchase price minus
impairment charges. Impairment, if any, will notfesersed.

(9) Foreign currency

() The functional currency and the presentatiatusrency

The items contained in presentations of particutats of the Bank are priced in the currency of the
basic economic environment in which a given entifyerates (“the functional currency”). The

consolidated financial report is presented in Pok$oty, which is the functional currency and the
presentation currency of the Bank.

(if) Transactions and balances in foreign currency

Transactions expressed in foreign currency areshagad into the functional currency by applying the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Egehaate profits and losses due to settlements of
these transactions and to the balance sheet \@iuzitassets and monetary commitments expressed in
foreign currency are accounted for in the profid &oss account.

Exchange rate differences due to items such asdiabassets designated for fair value valuation
through the profit and loss account, are accoufaedogether with changes in the fair value of the
profit and loss account. Exchange rate differemesto items, such as equity instruments classiied
financial assets available for sale, are includetthé revaluation reserve.

(i) Financial statements of investments in a fgreoperation
The Bank does not have any investments nor runstpes abroad.

(h) Financial assets and liabilities
(i) Classification

The Bank classifies financial instruments to thikofeing categories: financial assets and liabiitie
valued at fair value through the profit and loggns and receivables, investments held to maturity,
available for sale financial assets.

(a) Financial assets and liabilities valued at fa@lue through profit and loss
These are financial assets or financial liabilitiest meet either of the following conditions.

— Are classified as held for trading. A financial etser financial liability is classified as held for
trading if it is: acquired or incurred principaligr the purpose of selling or repurchasing it ia th
near term or are a part of a portfolio of idendfiinancial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent agbadlern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives
are also classified as held for trading (other ttharse that are designated and effective hedging
instruments).

— Upon initial recognition it is designated by thenBaas at fair value through profit and loss. Such
designation can be made only if (i) the designdirgahcial asset or financial liability is a hybrid
instrument containing one or many embedded deviestiwhich qualify for separate recognition
and embedded derivatives cannot change significahd cash flows resulting from the host
contract or separation of embedded derivative ibidden; (i) usage of such classification of
financial asset or liability eliminates or decreas@nificantly the inconsistency of measurement
or recognition (so called accounting difference dwesarious methods of assets and liabilities
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valuation or various recognition of gains and lIsssdtributable to them); (iii) the group of
financial assets and liabilities or both categorsesianaged properly, and its results are measured
using fair value, in accordance with documented rikanagement principles or the Bank's
investment strategy.

(b) Investment held to maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivativeafinial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity that an entity has the posifivention and ability to hold to maturity. In casge
sale or reclassification of more than an insigaificamount of held-to-maturity investments in rielat

to the total held-to-maturity investments beforeaurigy all the assets of this category are recfesbi

to the available sale category.

The Bank is not allowed to classify any financisdets as held to maturity during the current fif@nc
year or during the two preceding financial years.
(c) Loans and advances

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finaragakts with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, other than:

— those that the entity intends to sell immediatelinahe near term, which are classified as hetd fo
trading, and those that the entity upon initialogrttion designates at fair value through profid an
loss;

— those that the entity upon initial recognition desites as available for sale; or

— those for which the holder may not recover subithytall of its initial investment, other than
because of credit deterioration, which are clamsifis available for sale.

This category contains loans and advances graatethér banks and customers, including purchased
receivables.

(d) Financial assets available for sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are those nerivdtive financial assets that are designated as
available for sale or are not classified as loand eeceivables, held-to-maturity investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit ado

(e) Other financial liabilities

A financial liability is a contractual obligatio deliver cash or other financial asset to anoémegity
not valued at fair value through the profit andsldseing a deposit or loan received.

()  Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract thequires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs beeauspecified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified termi@alebt instrument.

(i) Recognition

The Bank recognizes financial assets or liabilities the balance sheet when, and only when it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions efitistrument. Purchase and sale transactions of
financial assets valued at fair value through praxfid loss, held-to-maturity and available for saie
recognized, in accordance with accounting poligieglied to all transactions of a certain type hat t
settlement date, the date on which the asset isedetl to an entity or by an entity. Loans and
receivables are recognized on distribution of @rEhao borrower.

(iii) Derecognition
The Bank derecognises a financial asset when, alydadien: the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire or the Bank trarssthe contractual right to receipt of the cashvflo

from the financial asset. On transferring a finaheisset, the Bank evaluates the extent to which it
retains the risks and rewards of ownership of ilanicial asset. Accordingly, where the Bank:
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— transfers substantially all the risks and rewarfdswmership of the financial asset, it derecognises
the financial asset.

— retains substantially all the risks and rewardewhership of the financial asset, it continues to
recognise the financial asset.

— neither transfers nor retains substantially all ilsks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, it determines whether it has retained cbatrthe financial asset. In this case if the Bank
has retained control, it continues to recognisefittencial asset, and if the Bank has not retained
control, it derecognises the financial asset to g¢ktent of its continuing involvement in the
financial asset.

The Bank removes a financial liability (or a paftacfinancial liability) from its balance sheet whe
and only when the obligation specified in the cactis realised or cancelled or expires.

Particularly, the Bank derecognizes loans and vabées or its part from its balance sheet, if 8ght
pertaining to the credit agreement expire, the Baailes such rights, or sells the loan.

The Bank usually recognises receivables againshimment losses in case it ascertains that financial
assets could not have been collected for more3datays.

The amounts of receivables written down as lossrandvered thereafter shall diminish the value of
impairment loss in the income statement.

(iv) Measurement

When a financial asset or financial liability isognised initially, the Bank measures it at its failue
plus, in the case of a financial asset or finantalility not at fair value through profit or loss
transaction costs that are directly attributabletite acquisition or issue of the financial asset or
financial liability.

After initial recognition, the Bank measures finmh@ssets, including derivatives that are assts,
their fair values, without any deduction for tracté@n costs it may incur on sale or other disposal,
except for the following financial assets:

- loans and receivables which are measured at amartiast using the effective interest method,;

- held-to-maturity investments are measured at asmmttcost using the effective interest method;
and

- investments in equity instruments that do not heegioted market price in an active market and
their fair value cannot be reliably measured amivdgves that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,raeasured at cost.

After initial recognition, the Bank measures atigncial liabilities at amortised cost using thesefifve
interest method, except for:

- financial liabilities at fair value through profir loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives
that are liabilities, are measured at fair valueegx for a derivative liability that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquotedtgdustrument which fair value cannot be
reliably measured, are measured at cost,

- financial liabilities resulting from the transfef a financial asset which does not qualify for
being excluded from the balance sheet or recogmisextontinuing involvemertiasis.

The other financial liabilities are measured atrdejated cost or the amount of due payment.

Granted financial guarantees are measured at ghehof:

a) the amount being the most appropriate estimatigheoéxpenditures needed to fulfil the current
obligation arising from the financial guaranteepmgonsideration of the probability of
materialisation thereof;

b) the amount recognised at the initial entry, adjdstith the settled amount of commission receied f
granting the guarantee.
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(v) Gains and losses resulting from subsequent nneasent

A gain or loss arising from a change in the faluezof a financial asset or financial liability tha not
part of a hedging relationship is recognised, devis.

- A gain or loss on a financial asset or financiabllity classified as at fair value through prafit
loss is recognised in profit or loss;

— A gain or loss on an available-for-sale financiedet is recognized directly in equity;
- Interest calculated using the effective interesthoe is recognised in profit or loss;

— Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instruimare recognised in profit or loss when the
entity’s right to receive payment is established:;

— Foreign exchange gains and losses arising fromaagehin the fair value of a hon monetary
financial asset available for sale denominateairifn currency are recognized directly in equity;

- Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from tapnénancial assets (e.g debt securities)
denominated in foreign currency are recognizedctirén the profit and loss account.

At the moment of derecognition of financial as$seis the balance sheet, cumulated gains and losses
recognized previously in equity, are transferredthe profit and loss account. If any objective
evidence exists that a financial asset or groufinaincial assets is impaired, the Bank recognizes
impairment in accordance with the established rwksletermination of impairment of financial
assets.

The fair value of financial assets quoted on aatiegkets is based on current bid prices. If theketar
for a financial instrument is not active, the Bae&timates its fair value by using a valuation
technique. Valuation techniques include using ream’s length market transactions between
knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, disoted cash flow analysis and option pricing models
and other techniques used by market members.

0] Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are efffand the net amount reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to oftbet recognised amounts and there is an intention t
settle on a net basis, or realise the asset athe 8t liability simultaneously.

In order to mitigate credit risk, the Bank concladpecial master agreements with contracting jgartie
with which the Bank concludes transactions of digant volume. These special master agreements
do not enable the offsetting financial assets &idllities, because they are generally settledsyros

0] Repo, Reverse Repo Sell-buy—back, buy—sell-batlnsactions

The Bank presents financial assets with the regsekelauses (repo, sell-buy—back transactianit
balance sheet, by simultaneously recognizing andia liability resulting from repurchase clause.
This is done in order to reflect the risks and lignharising on this asset that are retained byBhek
after the transfer. When the Bank purchases sasunilith a repurchase clause (Reverse Repo, BSB),
the financial assets are presented as receivalis@sgarom repurchase clause.

Repo and reverse repo transactions are measuaatbatized cost, and securities which are subject to
repo/reverse repo transactions are derecognised lfedance sheet and are measured in accordance
with principles applicable for particular securdtigortfolio.

The difference between sale and repurchase priceated as interest income or cost, respectivady a
is accrued over the period of the agreement byiagjn of an effective interest rate.

The Bank designates sell-buy-back and buy-sell-tieaksactions to be valued at fair value through
profit and loss. The change in fair value of finah@assets and liabilities is recognized in prafid
loss account in the caption “Net income on instratsat fair value through profit or loss”.
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(k) Derivative instruments

Derivative instruments are valued at fair valuehaitt cost of transactions, which are to be incuated
the moment of its sale. The base of initial failvegameasurement of derivative instruments is value
cost, i.e. fair value of received or paid amount.

The Bank separates and recognizes in the balames darivative instruments being a component of
hybrid instruments. A hybrid (combined) instruméntiudes a non-derivative host contract and
derivative instrument, which causes some or athefcash flows arising from the host contract to be
modified according to a specified interest rateafficial instrument price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, creditgair credit index, or other variable.

The Bank separates embedded derivatives from thteclhatract and accounts for them as a derivative
if, and only if the economic characteristics arsksiof the embedded derivative are not closelyadla
to the economic characteristics and risks of thet bontract, and the host contract is not valuddiat
value through profit and loss.

An embedded derivative is valued at fair value, imdhanges are recognized in profit and loss.

The Bank uses derivative instruments in order tigheagainst FX and interest rate risk, arising from
activity of the Bank. Derivative instruments tha¢ aot subject to hedge accounting are classifsed a
financial instruments held for trading and are edlat fair value.

@ Derivative instruments not qualifying as hedgingtinoments

The changes in fair value of derivative instrumethist do not meet hedge accounting criteria are
recognized in profit and loss for the current perio

(i) Hedge Accounting

Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effectprofit or loss of changes in the fair valueshaf
hedging instrument and the hedged item.

The designates certain derivative instrumentsais/élue hedge or cash flow hedge. The Bank uses
hedge accounting, if the following conditions aretm

— At the inception of the hedge there is formal deaigpn and documentation of the hedging
relationship and the Bank’s risk management ohjectind strategy for undertaking the hedge.
That documentation includes identification of thedbing instrument, the hedged item or
transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged laow the entity will assess the hedging
instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the expesio changes in the hedged item’s fair value or
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk.

— The hedging instrument and hedged instrument andasj especially nhominal value, maturity
date, and volatility for interest rate and foreggthange changes.

— The hedge is expected to be highly effective inedhg offsetting changes in fair value or cash
flows attributable to the hedged risk, consisteniith the originally documented risk management
strategy for that particular hedging relationship.

- For cash flow hedges, a forecast transaction thahe subject of the hedge must be highly
probable and must present an exposure to variatiomash flows that could ultimately affect
profit or loss.

— The effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably oreds ie. the fair value or cash flows of the
hedged item that are attributable to the hedgddaigl the fair value of the hedging instrument
can be reliably measured.

— The hedge is assessed on an ongoing basis andchihetéractually to have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for whibe hedge was designated.
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e Fair value hedge

Fair value hedge: a hedge of the exposure to clandair value of a recognised asset or liabitity
an unrecognised firm commitment, or an identifiegrtipn of such an asset, liability or firm
commitment, that is attributable to a particulakrand could affect the profit or loss.

A fair value hedge is accounted for as follows: gan or loss from remeasuring the hedging
instrument at fair value (for a derivative hedgingtrument) is recognised in profit and loss; theng

or loss on the hedged item attributable to the bddisk adjust the carrying amount of the hedged
item and are recognised in profit and loss. Red¢mgniof the gain or loss attributable to the hedged
risk in profit and loss applies if the hedged itsran available-for-sale financial asset.

The Bank has been applying fair value hedge acomutt hedge against changes in the fair value of
debt instruments with fixed interest rate clasdifées available-for-sale portfolio due to the chaofje
interest rates.

e Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedge: a hedge of the exposure to vityatih cash flows that (i) is attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asesdiability (such as all or some future interest
payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probdtiecast transaction and (ii) could affect profit
loss.

A cash flow hedge is accounted for as follows: guogtion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument that is determined to be an effectivdgeeis recognised directly in equity through the
statement of changes in equity and the ineffegitm@ion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrotme
is recognised in profit or loss.

The associated gains or losses that were recogdisstdly in equity (effective hedge), at the moinen
of recognition of a financial asset and liabilitgilg a result of planned future transaction, are
transferred into profit or loss in the same peogeriods during which the asset acquired or litgbi
assumed affects the profit and loss.

In case of a hedge of non-financial asset or afimamcial liability, the associated gains and I@sse
recognized directly in equity as an effective hedge transferred successively into the profit ksd
account in the same period or periods during wkhehasset acquired or liability assumed affects the
profit and loss account (such as in the periods die@reciation expense is recognised); or it is the
result of a one-off transfer as an adjustment ®ittitial purchase price or carrying amount of a
hedged item.

The Bank has been applying cash flow hedge acoayutdi secure the size of future cash flows in a
specific portfolio of the Bank’s assets/ liabil#ier a portfolio of highly probable planned trarigats
against the interest rate changes.

0] Impairment

Assets valued at amortized cost

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date mthetieeis any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assetsnigaired and impairment losses are incurred if, an
only if, there is objective evidence of impairmesta result of one or more events that occurred aft
the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss eVeand that loss event (or events) has an impadhen
estimated future cash flows of the financial assegroup of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Losses expected as a result of futueatgvno matter how likely, are not recognised.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or groupssets is impaired includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the holder of the adsetitethe following loss events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer obtigor;
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b) a breach of contract, such as a default or delimcyuen interest or principal payments above 90
days;

c) the lender, for economic or legal reasons relatintpe borrower’s financial difficulty, granting
to the borrower a concession that the lender woatdtherwise consider;

d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will erdankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
e) the disappearance of an active market for thahiiz asset because of financial difficulties; or

f) observable data indicating that there is a meakuddzrease in the estimated future cash flows
from a group of financial assets since the init@tognition of those assets, although the
decrease cannot yet be identified with the indialdinancial assets within the group.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidehdmpairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and indiially or collectively for financial assets thaeaot
individually significant. The Bank classifies loagceivables by size of exposure, into the individua
and group portfolios. If the Bank determines thatabjective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whetheristgmt or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk charaistiics and collectively assesses them for impaitmen
Assets that are individually assessed for impaitraed for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognised are not included in a collectigseasment of impairment. In a group portfolio,
groups of similar credit risk characteristics atentified, which are then assessed collectivelyttier
impairment.

If there is any objective evidence of impairmentladins and receivables, or investments held-to-
maturity, then the amount of the impairment isdifeerence between the carrying amount of an asset
and the current value of estimated future cashdascounted using an original effective interass
established with the initial recognition of a giviamancial asset.

If there is any objective evidence of lack of expdcfuture cash flows arising from these financial
assets, then the amount of impairment is equdldio tarrying amount.

Future cash flows concerning groups of financigkts assessed collectively in terms of their ptessib
impairment are estimated on the basis of historloak experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the Bank.

Historical loss experience is adjusted on the bakiurrent observable data to reflect the effedts
current conditions that did not affect the perindumhich the historical loss experience is basedtand
remove the effects of conditions in the historjpatiod that do not exist currently. The Bank regyla
verifies the methodology and assumptions adoptesstionate future cash flows in order to mitigate
the differences between estimated and actual losses

For the purposes of the calculation of the provisagainst balance sheet exposures analysed
collectively, the probability of default (PD) methchas been applied. Modification of the PD
parameter takes into account characteristics afifspg@roducts and emerging periods for losses on
those products. Such an approach is to facilitetddentification of 1) incurred losses 2) and imed

not reported losses.

The impairment is presented as a reduction of &ng/ing amount of the asset either through usenof a
allowance account and the amount of the loss beakcognized in profit and loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the immpant loss decreases and the decrease can be relate
objectively to an event occurring after the impannwas recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognisegbairment loss is recognised in the profit andslos
account.

Financial assets available for sale

When a decline in the fair value of an availabledale financial asset has been recognised dirgctly
equity and there is objective evidence that thetaissimpaired, the cumulative loss that had been
recognized directly in equity is removed from eguiind recognised in the profit and loss account
even though the financial asset has not been dgmesal.
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The amount of the cumulative loss that is removethfequity and recognised in profit and loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of pmgcipal repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that finalngsset previously recognised in profit and loss.

Impairment losses recognised in the profit and &xsount for an investment in an equity instrument
classified as available for sale is not reverseouth profit and loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of atdestrument classified as available for sale iasBs
and the increase can be objectively related to \amteoccurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the profit and loss, the impairmasislis reversed, with the amount of the reversal
recognized in profit and loss.

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairmesgs| has been incurred on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value beeaitss fair value cannot be reliably measured, oaon
derivative asset that is linked to and must bdesklty delivery of such an unquoted equity instrote
the amount of the impairment loss is measured aglifference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the present value of estimiaitietle cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset). Surmpairment losses are not reversed.

(m) Investment property

Investment property is property (land or a buildiagy part of a building—or both) held by the Bank
(acting as the owner or the lessee under a finlmas®) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
both. At the same time, such a real property iec@upied by the Group only to a small extent and
b) it is not for sale as part of the regular operet of the Group. Therefore, an investment prgpert
generates cash flows largely independently of therassets held by the Bank.

An investment property is measured initially atdtsst (purchase price and any directly attributable
expenditure). After the initial entry, investmentoperty assets are measured in accordance with
requirements of the fair value model. A gain orsl@gising from a change in the fair value of
investment property is recognised in the profit &ss$ account for the period in which it arisese Th
fair value of investment property reflects markeaditions at the balance sheet date.

The revaluation effect is reflected in the revalratreserve/ revaluation capital in case of thai@al
increase, or carried through the income statenmenase of the balance sheet asset’s value decrease.
However, the increase of value is recognised amlkcinsofar as it reverses the decrease of valee du
to revaluation of the same asset that was prewiaesiognised as costs of a given period. Similarly,
the decrease of the asset’s value resulting framluation shall be set off against the relevanplsisr
resulting from the previous revaluation of the sasset.

The entire revaluation surplus shall be realisatdetime of withdrawing from use or selling thesets

(n) Tangible fixed assets

(i) Own tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets consist of fixed assets astdo construct such assets. Tangible fixed @sset
include fixed assets with an expected period ofalE®/e one year, maintained to be used to serve the
Bank’s needs or to be transferred to other entihiased on the lease contract or for administrative
purposes.

Tangible fixed assets, with the exception of land buildings are recorded at historical costs reduc
by depreciation/amortization and any impairmentavdowns. The historical costs are made up of the
purchase price/cost of creation, and costs direetited to the purchase of assets.

Each component part of property, plant and equipritems, whose purchasing price or generation
cost is material in comparison with the purchaseepor generation cost of the entire item, is
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depreciated separately. The Bank allocates thalinlue of the property, plant and equipment into
its significant parts.

Lands and buildings are carried in accordance thighrevaluation model, after initial recognitionaat
revalued amount, being its fair value at the ddtthe revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairtnesés. Revaluations are made with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount doesdiffer materially from that which would be
determined using fair value at the balance sheet da

The revaluation effect is reflected in the revaluatreserve/ revaluation capital in case of theueal
increase, or carried through the income statenmenase of the balance sheet asset’s value decrease.
However, the increase of value is recognised amimcinsofar as it reverses the decrease of valge du
to revaluation of the same asset that was previagesiognised as costs of a given period. Similarly,
the decrease of the asset’s value resulting framluation shall be set off against the relevanplsigr
resulting from the previous revaluation of the sasset.

The entire revaluation surplus shall be realisati@time of withdrawing from use or selling thesets

(i) Subsequent Costs

Costs of modernization of property, plant and eoqupt increase their carrying value or are
recognized as a separate item of property, pladtemuipment only when it is probable that such
expenditures will result in an inflow of economiertefits to the Bank, and the cost of such expenses
can be reliably measured. Costs of repairs andter@ance of property, plant and equipment are
charged to the profit and loss account in the tampperiod in which they were incurred.

(o) Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetsyet without physical substance
Intangible assets are deemed to include asseté vliiit the following requirements:

- they can be separated from an economic entity aldd tsansferred, licensed or granted for use for
a fee to third parties, both separately, and tagettith their accompanying contracts, assets or
liabilities, or

— arise from contractual titles or other legal tiflasespective of whether those are transferable or
separable from the business entity or other rightsobligations.
(i) Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisition of a business entity idially recognized at cost, which is the surplughef
costs of merger of business entities over the sbhthe acquiring entity in the net fair value of
identifiable assets, liabilities, and contingerabllities. After the initial recognition, goodwilils

presented at cost less all accumulated impairmeitg-affs. The test for impairment is conducted at
the balance sheet date.

Impairment is established by estimating residudlev®f cash generating units, to which goodwill is
allocated. If the residual value of the cash gdamegaunit is lower than the carrying value, the
impairment is made.

(i) Computer software

Purchased computer software licences are capiailisthe amount of costs incurred for the purchase
and adaptation for use of specific computer softwdExpenses attached to the development or
maintenance of computer software are expensed inbarred.

(iii) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets purchased by the Bankiemagnized at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment write — offs.

(iv) Subsequent Costs

Subsequent costs incurred after initial recognitbacquired intangible asset are capitalised when
is probable that such expenditures will ensurerdliow of economic benefits to the Bank. In other
cases, costs are charged to the profit and lageireporting period in which they were incurred.
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(p) Depreciation and amortization charges

The depreciation charge of tangible and intangfided assets is applied using the straight line
method, using defined depreciation rates throughmatperiod of their useful lives. The depreciable
amount is the cost of an asset, or other amourstituted for cost, less its residual value. Thefulse
life, amortization/ depreciation rates and residwlies of tangible and intangible assets are wade
annually. Conclusions of the review may lead tohmnge of depreciation periods recognized
prospectively from the date of application (theeeffof this change is in accordance with IAS 8
charged to profit and loss).

In case of buildings valued at fair value, the acglated depreciation balance at the revaluatioa dat
is removed from the carrying value gross, and #tecarrying value adjusted to the revalued value.

Depreciation and amortization charges are recodnizeéhe profit and loss account. At each balance
sheet date goodwill and other intangible asseth witlefinite useful life are regularly tested for
impairment. The depreciation periods are as follows

* lands and buildings 50 years

« leaseholds improvements period of the lease or hire
* vehicles and others 3 -5 years

e equipment 5 years

» costs of development of software 3 years

« software licenses, copyrights 3 years

(@) Leasing contracts

(i) The Bank as lessor

The Bank is a party to lease contracts, on theshafsivhich it grants and is paid for the use on the
benefits on the current assets.

In case of lease contracts, which result in trarnisig substantially all the risks and rewards falilog

the ownership of that asset under lease, The duliijestich lease agreement is derecognized from the
balance sheet. A receivable amount is recognipeal) iamount equal to the present value of minimum
lease payments. Lease payments are divided inémdial income and reduction of the balance of
receivables in such a way as to achieve reachirfixeal rate of return from the outstanding
receivables.

Lease payments for contracts which do not fulfquieements of a finance lease are recognized as
income in the profit and loss account, using thaigit-line method, throughout the period of the
lease.

(i) The Bank as lessee

The Bank is also a party to lease contracts, umteh it takes another party’s non-current assets o
intangible assets for an agreed period for paicousgher benefits.

In case of lease contracts, under which essentdllsisks and rewards resulting from ownership of
the leased assets are transferred, subject oflsask agreement is recognized as a non-currernt asse
and a liability is recognized in the amount eqoahie present value of minimum lease payments as of
the date of commencement of the lease. Lease paymendivided into financial costs and reduction
of the balance of the liability in such way as thiave obtaining a fixed rate of interest on the
outstanding liability. Financial costs are recoguidirectly in profit and loss account.

Fixed assets which are the basis of the finan®eleantract are depreciated in the manner defimred f
the Bank’s non-current assets. However, if it isartain whether the ownership of an asset has been
transferred, then non-current assets used pursodimance lease contracts are depreciated over the
shorter of two: the expected useful life or theigmbof lease.

Lease payments for contracts which do not fulfiblifications of a finance lease agreement are
recognized as costs in the profit and loss acciouatstraight-line method throughout the periodhef
lease.
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(n Other balance sheet items

(i) Other trading receivables and other receivables

Trading receivables and other receivables areechati cost less an allowance.
(i) Liabilities

Liabilities, other than financial liabilities hefdr trading are recognized at cost.
(i) Non current assets held for sale and disamméd operation

The Bank classifies a non-current asset (or didppsap) as held for sale if its carrying amounti wi
be recovered principally through a sale transagatimer than through continuing use.

For this to be the case, the asset (or disposapymust be available for immediate sale in itsen
condition subject only to terms that are usual anstomary for sales of such assets (or disposal
groups) and its sale must be highly probable, the. appropriate level of management must be
committed to a plan to sell the asset (or dispgsalip), and an active programme to locate a buyer
and complete the plan must have been initiated.

Further, the asset must be actively marketed fla aha price that is reasonable in relation to its
current fair value. In addition, the sale shouldexpected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classifiaatio

Non current assets held for sale are priced aloter of: its carrying value or fair value less ctus
sell. Assets classified in this category are ngireleated.

Where the criteria for classification as non-cutr&ssets for sale are no longer met, the Groupnaill
longer classify that asset as an asset for salea (group of assets for sale) but reclassify it as
appropriate. In such a case, the Group measures$#e¢ that is no longer classified as an asseafer
(or that is no longer part of a group for salethatlower of the following amounts:

— its carrying amount from the period before the aésedisposal group) was classified as held for
sale, adjusted for any depreciation, amortisatioregaluations that would have been recognised
had the asset (or disposal group) not been cledsif held for sale, and

- its recoverable amount at the date of the subséaleersion not to sell.

Discontinued operations are components of the Baaikeither have been disposed of or are classified
as held for sale and represent a separate magooflibusiness or geographical area of operatioasa a
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose séparate major line of business or geographical are
of operations or are a subsidiary acquired excilgiwith a view to resale.

The classification to this category takes placéhat moment of sale or when the operation meets
criteria of the operation classified as held fde sé this moment took place previously.
Operations held for sale, which are to be no longgxd, can be also classified as a discontinued
operation.

(iv) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of la Elag/ statement include: Cash in hand and cash
held at the Central Bank, cash equivalents e.danbas on current accounts and overnight deposits
held by the other banks.

(s) Impairment of other non- financial assets

For each balance sheet date, the Bank assessesxitence of objective evidence indicating
impairment of a non-current asset. If such evidesasts, the Bank performs an estimation of the
recoverable value. If, and only if, the recoveradmeount of an asset is less than its carrying amoun
the carrying amount of the asset shall be reduzéd tecoverable amount.

If such evidence exists, the Bank performs an ediom of recoverable value. If, and only if, the
recoverable amount of an asset is less than itgicgramount, the carrying amount of the assetl shal
be reduced to its recoverable amount.

If there are indications of impairment of commorogerty, i.e. assets which do not generate cash
independently from other assets or groups of asaetsthe recoverable value of the individual asset
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included among common property cannot be determihedBank determines the recoverable value at
the level of the cash generating unit, to whichgiven asset belongs.

An impairment charge is recognized, if the bookueadf the asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. The impairment charge is razednn the profit and loss account.

In case of a cash generating unit (group), impaitmeharges in the first place reduce goodwill
attributable to cash generating units, and thenaegroportionally the book value of other asséts o
this cash generating unit (groups)

Measuring Recoverable Amount

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-giameuait is the higher of its fair value less okl
sell and its value in use.

In order to measure the value in use, estimateddutash flows are discounted to their presentevalu
by using a discount rate before taxation, whichsaers the current market assessment, time value of
money and specific risk attributable to the undagyasset.

Reversing impairment loss
Goodwill impairment loss is not subject to reversal

An impairment loss of an asset other than goodwileversed if, and only if, there has been a chang
in the estimates used to determine the asset'seeaiole amount.

An impairment loss can be reversed only up to theumt, at which the book value of impaired asset
does not exceed its book value, which decreasatkpyeciation charge, would be established, if any
impairment loss had not been recognized.

® Equity

Equity comprises of the share capital, share premiavaluation reserve and retained earnings.
All balances of capital and funds are recognizeatbatinal value.

Share capital

Share capital is presented at nominal value, iror@esce with the Articles of Association (the
Charter) and the entry in the Register of Companies

(i) Own shares

If the Bank acquires its own shares, then the paidunt together with the costs directly attribuiezd
such purchase is recognized as a change in théyEgauired own shares are treated as own shares
and disclosed as reduction of the Equity.

(i) Dividends
Dividends for the financial year which have beepraped by the General Shareholders’ Meeting, but

not paid as of the balance sheet day are disclosddr the balance sheet recognized in the balance
»Other Liabilities”.

Share premium

Share premium is formed from agio obtained from idsue of shares reduced by the attributable
direct costs incurred with that issue.

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve is created as a result of:

— revaluation of financial instruments classifieceaailable for sale,
- revaluation of cash flow hedge financial instrunsent

- revaluation of tangible fixed assets carried atvalue,
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The deferred tax resulting from above mentionediltaation is included in the revaluation reserve.
The revaluation reserve is not subject to pro&trihution.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are created from charges agaiofit and are allocated for purposes specified in
the Articles of Association (the company’'s Charter)other legal regulations. Retained earnings
comprise of:

— other supplementary capital,

— other reserve capital,

— general banking risk fund,

— undistributed result from previous years,
- netresult of current year.

Other supplementary capital, other reserve capital general banking risk fund are created from
charges against profit and are allocated for pwpapecified in the Articles of Association (the
company’s Charter) or other legal regulations.

General banking risk fund is created in accordamitie the Banking Act dated 29 August 1997 with
subsequent amendments, from profit after tax.

The net financial result allocated to the dominantity represents the gross result under the
performance statement for the current year, adjustiéh the corporate income tax and the result
allocated to the minority shares.

(u) Prepayments and deferred income

Prepayments

Prepayments comprise of particular expenses whilthb&settled against the profit and loss as being
accrued over the future reporting periods. Defeweslts include primarily provisions for material
costs due to services provided for the Bank by tayparties, as well as insurance costs paid in
advance to be settled in the future periods. Prepays are presented in the balance sheet in ‘Other
assets’ caption.

Deferred income

This caption comprises mainly of fees amortizedaostraight-line basis and other types of income
collected in advance which will be settled agaprsifit and loss account in future reporting periods
Deferred income is presented in ‘Other liabilitieglance sheet caption.

(w) Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans

Expenses incurred due to a programme of certaittribations are recognised as costs in income
statement.
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits of the Bank (othemthbermination benefits) comprise of wages,
salaries, paid annual leave and social securityribotions.

The Bank recognizes the anticipated, undiscountddevof short-term employee benefits as an
expense of an accounting period when an employeedmalered service (regardless of payment date)
in correspondence with other on-balance liabilities

The amount of short-term employee benefits on thesed holidays to which Bank employees are
entitled is calculated as the sum of unused hatidayvhich particular Bank employees are entitled.
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(i) Long-term employee benefits
The Bank’s obligation in respect of long-term seevbenefits, other than pension plans, is the amoun
of future benefits that employees have earned turmefor their service in the current and prior
periods. The provisions for retirement bonus payngganted within the regulatory framework of
social benefits, assigned based on the regulatiaamg from the Labour Code are estimated on the
basis of an actuarial valuation. The provisioniagsfrom actuarial valuation is recognised and
updated on an annual basis. In addition, the pingsare revalued quarterly on the basis of the
estimations made. Starting 2007, the Bank chanded accounting methodology as to the
recognition of provisions for retirement allowanty adopting the corridor approach for
recognising a specific part of the cumulated nétacal gains and losses.
Under this method, when determining an obligatioe do certain benefits, the Bank recognises
some actuarial gains and losses as revenue or, ca$isn the net value of accumulated
unrecognised actuarial gains and losses as amith@fethe previous reporting period exceeds the
higher of the following two values:

a) 10% of the current value of the obligation duedrtain benefits as at that day (before dedudfon
the plan’s assets)

b) 10% of the fair value of the plan’s assets dbattday.

A portion of the actuarial gains and losses abteedsaid limit is recognised in the profit and loss
account as the quotient of the above named exoestha average expected remaining working life of
the Bank employees. Following that change, the Banelsents in the balance sheet the net value of
the liability comprising the current value of theMdility and unrecognised actuarial gains/ losses.
The Bank changed the estimates in prospective tervisw of immateriality.

The ING BSK participates in the long-term incentiggstem, launched by ING Group NV.
ING Group NV has granted option rights on ING Grohly shares and conditional rights on
depositary receipts for ING shares to a numbeenios executives (members of the Executive Board,
general managers and other officers nominated &yEttecutive Board). The purpose of the option
and share schemes, apart from promoting a lastimgtl of ING Group NV, is to attract, retain and
motivate senior executives and staff.

The implemented Employee Capital Schemes are pgegban costs, which on the other side result in
the liabilities increase.

ING Group NV holds directly or indirectly its owmares in order to fulfil the obligations with redar
to the existing stock option plan and to hedgerigieof the options concerned (so-called delta b@dg
As a result the granted option rights were (deltaefdged, taking into account the following
parameters: strike price, opening price, zero coupterest rate, dividend yield, expected volatilit
and employee behaviour. The hedge is rebalancedarggat predetermined points in time. Exposure
arising from the share plan is not hedged. Thegabtins with regard to these plans will be fundgd b
issuing own shares. The option rights are validafgeriod of five or ten years. Option rights, thet

not exercised within this period, lapse.

Option rights granted will remain valid until expidate, even if the option scheme is discontinued.
The option rights are subject to certain conditjansluding a certain continuous period of service.
The exercise prices of the options are the santheaquoted prices of ING Group NV shares at the
date on which the options are granted. The entitfeénto the depositary receipts for ING shares is
granted conditionally. If the participant remaimsamployment for an uninterrupted period of three
years from the grant date, the entitlement beconme®nditional. Each year, the ING Group NV
Executive Board will take a decision as to whetiwer option and share schemes are to be continued
and, if so, to what extent.

x) Provisions

Provisions, including provisions for off-balanceesh commitments, are recognized in the balance
sheet when the Bank has a legal or constructivigatimn (common law) as a result of past events, as
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well as when it is probable that an outflow of nases will be required to settle the obligation. If
the effect is material, the amount of provisionmsasured by discounted, expected cash flows using
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessmeinthe time value of money and those risks
specific to the liability. This is also applicalfier the recognition of provisions for risk-bearinff-
balance sheet commitments including guarantedsrdaif credit, and irrevocable unused credit lines

y) Net interest income

Interest income on financial assets classifiedvaslable for sale, loans and advances and financial
assets held to maturity are recognized in the fpeofd loss at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate.

Interest income/expense on derivatives classifeettaing derivatives is recognized under ‘Resalt o
financial instruments at fair value through praifitd loss’. Interest income on debt securities iflads
to trading portfolio or designated at fair valueotigh profit and loss are recognized under thei@apt
‘Interest income’.

The effective interest method is a method of caling the amortized cost of a financial asset or
a financial liability (or group of financial assats financial liabilities) and of allocating thetémest
income or interest expense over the relevant pefibd effective interest rate is the rate thatalists
estimated future cash payments or receipts thrdlighexpected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net oagramount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interaate, an estimate of cash flows in made consideziing
contractual terms of the financial instrument bo¢sinot consider future credit losses. The calonat
includes all fees and commissions paid or rece({esternal) between parties to the contract that are
an integral part of the effective interest ratansaction costs, and all other premiums or dissount

Interest income comprises interest and commissi@teived or due) included in the calculation of
the effective interest rate on: scheduled loansrliank deposits and securities

In case impairment is recognized for a financiaeasor group of similar financial assets, interest
income is accrued based on the carrying amourgagfivable (this is the value reduced by revaluation
charge) with the use of the interest rate accordingvhich future cash flows were discounted for
impairment valuation.

2 Net commission income

Fee and commission income arises on providing Gisdrservices by the Bank and comprise of fees
and commissions on loan granting, pledge to grdoaam, issue of cards, cash management services,
brokerage services and asset management servioesni€sion income also comprises margins
on FX derivatives transactions concluded with comfeclients.

Fees and commissions (both income and expense}idiettributed to initial recognition of financial
assets with repayment schedule are recognizedaifit pind loss account as effective interest rate
component and are part of interest income. Otheibated to initial recognition of financial assets
without repayment schedule are amortized usingaégst-line method through the expected life of the
financial instrument. Fees and commissions on @edggrant a loan, which is probable to be drawn,
are deferred and since initial recognition of ficiah assets are amortized as component of effective
interest rate or using straight-line method basedlmve mentioned criteria.

Other fees and commissions resulting from finansi@tvices provided by the Bank, like cash
management services, brokerage services and aasagament services are recognized in profit and
loss account at the time of performance of theaetbpe services.

(@aa) Netincome on investment financial assets

The net income on investment financial assets caepmrofits and losses resulting from sale of
financial assets classified as available for sald earnings from dividends. Dividend income is
recognized in the profit and loss account when shareholders’ right to receive payment is
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established.
(bb)  Result on financial instruments at fair valuethrough profit and loss and revaluation

Result on financial instruments at fair value tlglorofit and loss and revaluation includes gaims a
losses arising from disposal and change of fainevalf assets and liabilities held for trading and
designated at initial recognition at fair valueotingh profit and loss.

Result on financial instruments at fair value tlgloyprofit and loss and revaluation also covers the
swap points from derivative transactions that tl@lBenters into in order to gain liquidity in fagai
currencies.

Result from accrued interest and settlement ofodistor premium on debt securities held for trading
or designated at fair value through profit and issgcognized as interest income.

(cc) Other operating income and expense

Other operating income and expense comprise ofnmegpand income not attributed directly with

Bank’s banking. These include in particular: theutedue to holding an investment property, sale of
assets (non-current assets and intangible assmtg)jues from sales of other services; revenuesodue

recovered bad debts; received and paid damageasltiperand fines; costs of reserves for litigation
and due to donations.

(dd)  Income tax

Income tax is recognized as current and defernedGarrent income tax is recognized in the profit
and loss account. Deferred income tax is recognizguofit and loss or equity depending on type of
temporary differences.

Current tax is a liability calculated based on tdgdancome at the binding tax rate at the balaheets
date including adjustments of prior year tax liupil

(ee) Deferred income tax

The Bank creates a provision for deferred tax ispeet of all taxable temporary difference and
deferred tax asset with regard to all deductibtepierary differences to extent that it is probahiat t
taxable profit will be available against which tbeductible temporary differences can be utilised
according to accounting regulations and accordintegal regulations concerning corporate income
taxation. A positive net difference is recognized liabilities as "Deferred tax reserve".
A negative net difference is recognized under "Defittax assets".

The deferred tax reserve is created by using thenba sheet method for all positive temporary
differences as of the balance sheet date arisihgelka tax value of assets and liabilities and their
carrying value disclosed in the financial reporgept for situations where deferred tax reserveeari
from:

— initial recognition of goodwiill;
— goodwill, which amortization has no taxable expense
— initial recognition of an asset or liability withteansaction which does not constitute a merger of

economic entities and which on its origination hasmpact on the net financial profit or taxable
income or loss

Deferred tax assets are recognized with respeatl toegative timing differences as of the balance
sheet date between the tax value of assets arititibBgband their carrying value disclosed in the
financial statement and unused tax losses. Deféaredssets are recognized in such amount in which
taxable income is likely to be achieved allowingstd off negative timing differences, except fa th
situations when the component of deferred tax assites from the initial recognition of an asset o
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liability with a transaction which does not congit a merger of economic entities and on its
origination have no impact on the net financialfiprar taxable income or loss.

The carrying value of a deferred tax asset shalldodied for each balance sheet date and reddged i
is no longer likely to achieve taxable income sidint for a partial or full realization of the defed
tax component.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax reservesséimeaged with the use of the tax rates which are
expected to be in force when the asset is reatzedserve eliminated, assuming the tax rates t@nd
provisions) legally or factually in force as of thalance sheet date.

Income tax pertaining to items directly presentedduity is presented in equity.

Deferred tax assets and reserves are recognizéldebBank in the balance sheet after offsetting at
level of each entity included in consolidation. TBank offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax
reserves, where it has legal title to effect su$etting, and the deferred assets and reservésipén

the same taxpayer.

(ff)  Other taxes

Revenues, costs and assets are recognised legaltieeadded tax, tax on civil law acts, and other
taxes on sales, except where the tax on sale, yg@oth purchase of goods and services, is not
recoverable from the tax authorities; in that c#lse,sales tax is recognized accordingly as agfart
the cost of acquisition of an asset, or as paat @jst item.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from oalpi@yto the tax authorities is recognized on tice fa
of the balance sheet as a part of receivablesiaifity.
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Comparability of financial data — changes in pres&@tion

In the financial statements prepared for the pefioth 1** January 2007 to 31December 2007 the
Bank made changes relating to presentation of ipegpasitions in Profit and Loss Account.
The changes consisted mainly in a more detailedeptation of selected items and aggregation of
items of similar nature or those containing thel@stion of financial products with the same or
similar characteristics.

This situation applies to Financial assets measwtedair value through profit and loss and
Commission due to currency exchange transactioath Bositions were influenced by valuation of
financial instruments which previously were presérgplit into mark to market valuation and changes
due to exchange rate differences. In the Bank’siopiaggregation of those positions into one Ime i
financial statement results in better presentatibmesults on each instrument as well as in easier
analysis. Furthermore, the margins on FX derivativansactions concluded with clients were moved
from the item “Result on financial instruments @adrat fair value through profit or loss” to the
“Commission result”.

Similarly, provisions from currency exchange tramnsms in Bank’s branches were transferred from
Net income on the revaluation of F/X positions &nsactions into Net commission income as they
create a stable income flow on the year to yeasbas

ltem “Revenue on dividend” and “Result on investifarancial assets” were combined into one item
“Result on investment financial assets”.

Detailed analysis of economical content in currpositions other operating income and expenses
resulted in clear division of positions into thaséated to costs and income. Additionally positions
related to commissions, stable among the repop@ngpds were moved to Net commission income.
The costs of direct maintenance of buildings weamdferred from the item “Costs of the bank's
operation” to the item “Other operating revenuexpenses”.

Item “Bank’s operational costs and general admiaiigtn costs” and “Depreciation of non-current and
intangible assets” were combined into one item 1Bapperational costs”.

Minor change was made in Impairment losses andigioms for off-balance sheet liabilities which
resulted in exclusion of positions relating to \alan of own property. This position was moved into
newly created position in Other Expenses.

Profit and loss account for the period of Jdanuary to 30 December 2006 was adjusted for
comparison purposes.

In the financial statements drafted as at 31.1Z20% Bank changed the balance-sheet presentation
of cash entrusted to the outsourcer. The changatniemsferring from the item “Loans and cash
loans granted to clients” to the item “Cash, fumdih Central Bank”. An argument in favour of the
abovementioned change was the fact that despitsféraing the entire risk to the outsourcer in
accordance with the terms and conditions of theexgent, as a matter of fact the Bank maintained
control over the assets. The said change also owatdhe presentation of cash in the cashflow
statement.

The balance sheet as at 31.12.2007 includes aateptam “Hedge derivatives”, where the balance
valuation of fair value hedge derivatives was pnésg and whereto the relevant amounts from the
items “Financial assets carried at fair value tgfoprofit or loss” and “Financial liabilities caed at
fair value through profit or loss” were moved. Tlaorementioned balance change affected
modification of the cash flow statement; i.e. tldevant amounts from the item “Movements in
financial assets carried at fair value through ipraf loss” were shifted to the item “Movements in
other assets” and from the item “Movements in liaks carried at fair value through profit or 16¢s

the item “Movements in other liabilities”.
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Additionally the Bank in the financial statementaolyed an approach to presentation of book short
position in trading debt securities. Previously teok short position in trading debt securities was
presented on a net basis, i.e. it decreased tingrngaiamount of trading debt securities presented i
Financial assets at fair value through profit assloUnder the revised approach, the book short
position in trading debt securities is presente@@mnoss basis in line Financial liabilities ar feklue
through profit or loss. The change in approachras@ntation of book short position in trading debt
securities does not affect the Bank’s profit angslaccount, however it results in an increase ef th
Bank’s total assets by the amount of the book ghmsition.

On 31.12.2007, the Bank established a new portfdlidebt securities — held to maturity. The Bank’s
intention is to keep the financial assets clagdiftethis category until their maturity date.

In the financial statements as at 31.12. 2007 Bidmak changed the presentation of Investment Term
Deposits in the balance-sheet notes by movingatleyant amounts from the item “Liabilities towards
financial sector entities other than banks — teepogdits” to the item “Liabilities towards non-fircal
entities — household deposits — term deposits”.

In the financial statements as at 31.12. 2007, Bhek changed the manner of calculating the
movement of cash flows due to F/X difference. la Bank’s opinion, the values presented in the item
“Movement of cash flows due to F/X differences’tive cash flow statement reflect more accurately
the impact of F/X rates changes on the movemecasi flows.

The balance sheet and the cashflow statementsréorops terms were modified in order to make
them comparable.
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Profit and loss account after change
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31.12.2006 Bank
unconsolidated 2007 792 1075 13§ 932 653] 620 296 62539 557 763 57 621 104 20017 127 146 697 28770 -31 735 1711763 -1061 986 137 26 -99 171547 683 058 -142 501 540 557,
Interest incom e 2007 792 2007 792
Interest expenses <1075 139 -1075 13
N et interest incom e 932 653
Commission income 619 459 90 046 {A} -2 602 {B} 706 903
Com mission expenseq -62 533 -62 533
Netcommission 644 370
income
N etincome on
investmet of financial 57 621 20 01 77 638

assets

Netincome on
instruments measured
at fair value through 104 56 651 56 755
profit and loss and
revaluation

O ther operating

X -127 23 249 -6 084 {C} -998 -1467 {D} 14 573
income and expenses

Resulton basic
activities

Profit and loss account after change

General and
administrative 837 2771 {E} -1 061 98¢ -137 26 -1 195 64
expenses

O ther expenses 2750 {F} -23 049 10 623 {G} -9 676

Impairmentlosses and

provisions for off-B S 162 391 162 391
liabilities

Profit (loss) before 669 656
tax

Incom e tax -142 501 -142 501
N et profit (loss) 2007 792 -1075 13p 932 658 620246 -62 5p3 557 763 52771 104 20 017 -127 146 697| 28 770 -31735| 1711763 -1061 98 -137 26 -99s 171 547 683 058] -142 50 540 57

{A}-carry-forward relating to: commission due to Foperations and transaction margin on FX derivatiseuments and result on FX operations — traimast

{B}-carry-forward relating to: costs of suspendashumissions relating to written down receivablepi@senting and not representing tax deductiblesgastd commission income relating to personnel & pagesvices
{C}-carry-forward relating to: other operating ceghat results in diminishing other income duate@tconomic contents

{D}-carry-forward relating to: impairment chargerfother non-financial assets

{E}- carry-forward relating to: income connectedtivthe costs of the bank’s activity

{F}- carry-forward relating to: other operating imme that results in diminishing costs due to itneenic contents

{G}-carry-forward relating to: fair value measurem@f tangible non-current assets
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect ofBthek's business. The primary reporting format of
the Bank is business segments. This arises fronmieagement structure and internal reporting
structure functioning in the Bank.

Measurement of segment assets and liabilities aganent revenues and results is based on the
accounting policies set out in the accounting puotiotes.

Measurements of internal and external interest nmcoand costs for individual segments are
conducted using of the transfer pricing system. ffaesfer prices are calculated on the basis of one
profitability curve for the given currency, comméor assets’ and liability’ products. The transfer
price designated for assets’ and liabilities’ praguwvith the same location on the profitability eiis
identical. Modifications of the baseline transfeice obtained from valuation of the product on the
profitability curve are possible, and the factoosrecting the transfer price may be the premium for
acquisition of long-term liquidity, matching of tfge positions, the cost of hedging in case of caxpl
products and pricing policy. Profitability curvesduilt using mathematical equations, on the bafsis
quotations available in information services.

Segment revenues and costs, results, assets dildtidm include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated@asanable basis.

Business segments

The basic classification used by the Bank is bissirmegment classification. The management of the
ING Bank Slaski is conducted through breaking down the opematimto the following business
segments:

* retail banking,

 corporate banking,

« financial markets, ALCO.

Within the framework of retail banking, the Bankopides services for individual customers
(segments of mass customers and wealthy custoaresmall enterprises.

This activity is analysed by the following productsedit products (overdraft on the savings and

settlement account - ROR, loans related to caids parchase loans, housing loans, mortgage loans),
contract loans granted by the Building Society, tggge loans granted by ING Bank Hipoteczny,

deposit products (current accounts, term depos#sings accounts), ING fund units, brokerage

services provided by ING Securities SA, and bankxa

Corporate banking comprises the services for ingtital customers consisting of the following
segments: strategic customers, large enterprisdsnadium-sized enterprises.

For corporate banking, the Bank provides reportingken down by loan products (working loans,
investment loans), deposit products (current adspuarm deposits and negotiated deposits, savings
accounts), trust services, capital market operatommducted by the parent and by ING Securitied, an
operations of intermediation in lease services.

Financial markets encompass operations performeabimey and capital markets, conducted both on
the proprietary basis as well as for the custontezaefit.

Within the framework of this activity, currency, mey and derivative instrument market products and
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securities operations (Treasury securities, shemdsnotes) are specified. The it&mancial markets

- total segment incompresents the income from proprietary trading. Twme from the sale of
financial market products for the corporate bankimgl retail banking segments are disclosed in the
income of these segments.

ALCO comprises above all of investing funds origimg from own funds and funding some assets of
the Bank. The main element of the core busineseniecof ALCO is income from investing
proprietary funds (book capital). This income i®rthadjusted by the interest calculated on the
economic capital required by individual businesedi (retail banking segment, corporate banking
segment, financial markets). Interest on econonaipital is allocated from the ALCO line to
individual business lines in the manner correspam their demand for economic capital.

The basis for separation of the corporate andlrbtaiking segments is the segment breakdown
defined in the internal regulations of the parentite.

Geographical segments

The business activities of the ING BaSkiski are performed on the territory of the Repuldfc
Poland.
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Segment reporting — continued

31.12.2007 31.12.2006
Retail Corporate Own operations Non-allocated Retail Corporate Own operations Non-allocated
Revenue total 1056 534 670 947 110129 152847 1990 457 905 072 557 870 146 203 116 844 1725989
Core business 1041 522 643 434 98 302 207 199 1990 457 882 492 522 254 135393 185849 1725989
Income on lending 222 502 203 496 425 997 221 281 164 726 386 007
Interest income external 332 925 628 878 278 788 439 296
Interest cost internal -168 477 -506 853 -109 583 -331 140
Income on fees/ other income 58 053 81471 52076 56 570
Income on deposits 616 007 276 522 892 529 574 880 230 348 805 228|
Interest costs external -719 888 -368 122 -602 826 -352 955
Interest income internal 1091432 534 934 944 587 470 884
Income on fees/ other income 244 462 109 710 233119 112419
Income on mutual funds 203 096 203 096 91 795 91 795
Income on brokerage and custody 36 20 697 20734 33 18 756 18 789
Other income on core business -10 950 -2 077 253929 207 199 448 101 -14 546 -527 253394 185 849 424 170,
FM products sales 10 831 144 796 -155 627 0 9 049 108952 -118 001 0
Result on economic capital 15012 27 513 11827  -54 352 0 22 580 35615 10810 -69 005 0
Expenses total 878 911 418 715 46 208 5160 214| 1 349 207 763 874 393087 41840 1755 4766/ 1205322
Operational costs 878 911 418 715 46 208 5160 214 1 349 207 763 874 393 087 41 840 1755 4766| 1205322
including depreciation 118 939 24 590 7237 150 765 108 291 22 388 6 589 137 268
Result before risk 177 623 252 232 63921 147 687 -214 641 250 141 198 164783 104 363 115089 -4 766 520 667
Risk cost -40 306 -63 630 0 0 -103 936 -20 778 -141 613 0 0 -162 391
Result before tax 217 929 315 861 63921 147 687 -214 745 186 161 976 306 397 104363 115089 -4 766 683 058
CIT 135 033 142 501
Result after tax 610 153 540 557
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Assets and liabilities

Assets of the segment 4 533 063 13994 252 31299 819 595 065 50 422 199 3136 859 11188799 32485 727 569 843 47 381 228
Segment investments in subordinates 96 365 87 313 26 891 210 569 71 430 48 748 6 732 126 910
Other assets (not allocated to segments) 1193 658 852 619
Total assets 51 826 426 48 360 757
Segment liabilities 27453096 18224624 1851733 47 529 453 22892361 14757315 6193516 43 843 192
Other liabilities (not allocated to segments) 627 519 901 591
Equity 3 669 454 3615974
Total liabilities 51 826 426 48 360 757
Other

Capital expenditure 377 755 179 963 19 860 2 309 579 887 90 043 46 336 4932 769 142 079
Depreciation 118 939 24590 7 237 150 765 108 291 22388 6 589 137 268
Net cash flow from operating activity 2 586 362 916 294 445 394 -5 907 541 -1 959 491 3010 811 354 111 -2984 298 3148 499 3529123
Net cash flow from operating activity - other

items not allocated to segments -510 625 30580
Total net cash flow from operating activity -2 470 116 3 559 703
Net cash flow from investing activity -375 904 -179 082 -19 763 91 939 -482 810 -54 105 -27 842 -2 964 57 159 -27 752
Net cash flow from financial activity 0 -20 903 0 -362 979 -383 882 0 -53 382 0 -357 775 -411 157
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2. Net interest income

Interest and similar income
- Loans and advances to banks
- Loans and advances to customers
Interest on debt securities held for trading
- Interest on available-for-sale debt securities
- Interest on held-to-maturity debt securities
- Reverse repos

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

869 602 541523
926 953 707 837
176 769 140 026
493 688 616 679
13922 0
3148 1727
2484 082 2007 792

In regard to interest revenue for the year 2007, the amount of PLN 21,925,000 represents revenue from financial assets
for which impairment loss was recognised. For the year 2006 the amount reached PLN 32,732,000. Interest income in
respect of financial assets is calculated using the net exposure amounts; i.e. the amounts including effective impairment

losses.

Interest expense and similar charges

- Deposits from banks -109 445 -86 562
- Deposits from customers -1 243 951 -944 826
- Loans and advances received -233 -1529
- Reverse repos -89 757 -42 222
-1 443 386 -1 075 139

Net interest income 1040 696 932 653

3. Net commission income

Commission income

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

- Commission related to brokerage activity 132 150
- Commission and fees related to customer accounts 266 495 262 806
- Commission related to loans and advances 118 909 93 355
- Commission related to payment and credit cards 142 871 120 152
- Commission related to distribution of participation units 208 174 87 720
- Fiduciary and custodian fees 26 317 22 338
- Commission related to foreign commercial business 21 602 20 032
- The transaction margin on currency exchange transactions 131 362 90 047
- Other 12 385 10 303
928 247 706 903

Commission expenses

- Brokerage fees

- Other commission, including: -99 343 -62 533
- costs of the Bank Guarantee Fund (BFG) -4 037 -3402
- costs of the National Clearing House (KIR) -4 599 -3448
- commission paid related to securities trading -7 438 -4 322
- commission paid related to banking cards -38 347 -26 777
-99 343 -62 533
Net commission income 828 904 644 370
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Net income on investment financial assets

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Equity instruments 14 640 5 805
Debt instruments 7 600 14 212
Dividend income 94 237 57 621
Valuation of the transaction hedged under the fair value hedge 5317 0
accounting for securities

Valuation of the transaction hedging under the fair value hedge 6096 0
accounting for securities

Net income on investment financial assets 117 256 77 638

. Result on financial instruments carried through pro

fit and loss and revaluation

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Net income on financial assets and liabilities held for trading 376 627 281 658
Net income on debt instruments -49 096 25 238
Net income on derivatives 425 723 256 420
Currency derivatives 446 415 238 215
Exchange rate derivatives -31 775 14 968
Securities derivatives 11083 3237
Net |n‘cgr_'ne on fmqr)f:ml assets and liabilities measured at fair value 6 345 607
upon initial recognition
Net income on debt instruments 6 345 -607
Result on the revaluation of balance sheet items -386 783 -224 296
Result on financial instruments carried through pro fit and loss 3811 56 755

and revaluation

Net income on equity instruments includes net result on trading equities.

Net income on debt instruments includes net income on trading treasury securities, commercial debt instruments, money

market instruments (treasury bills).

Net income on derivatives includes net income on interest rate derivatives — FRA, IRS/CIRS, foreign exchange derivatives

— swap, options and stock exchange index options.

Interest net income on debt securities is presented in interest margin.
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6. Other operating income and expenses

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- Due to recovered unrecoverable receivables 1169 1067
- Received indemnities, penalties and fines 0 8 100
- Income from sales of other services 1762 1901
- Net income on available-for-sale assets and assets held for sale -107 -127
Result on disposal of assets (fixed and intangible assets and own
- . 101 -998
properties)
- Impairment losses on other non financial assets -4 157 -1 467
- Net income on the investment properties: 1248 0
- Income rental from of the investment properties 1825 0
- Maintance expenses relating to the investment properties -577 0
- Impairment losses on investment real estate -3947 0
" Other operating income due to mortgage loans insurance premiums 1924 779

- Other income — returned amounts, material and personnel-related

826 345
costs
- Other operatlng‘ income due to interest received, calculated on an 1841 2 451
off-balance basis
- Other 6 752 2522
Total 7412 14573

As of 31 Dec 2006 the "Received indemnities, penalties and fines" item includes damages in the amount of PLN
8,100,000 received by the Bank for the operational risk related loss.

7. General and administrative expenses

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- Personnel expenses: 651 128 550 455
wages and salaries, including: 537 223 460 209
retirement benefits 2867 4026
employee benefits, including: 113 905 90 246
training expenses 21018 12 883

- General and administrative expenses: 537 703 507 923
on property, plant and equipment 101 907 87 765
taxes and charges (including PFRON) 6911 6 759
maintenance and rental of buildings 149 383 147 935
communication services 62 335 63 891
leasing services 11 688 10 313
refurbishment services 27 583 27710
licences and patents 17 190 15 962
consulting 82 965 81 406
lease of computer resources 19 314 15 089
other external services 58 427 51 093

- Depreciation and amortisation 150 765 137 268
on property, plant and equipment 92 681 94 662

on intangible assets 58 084 42 606
Total 1 339 596 1195 646
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8. Other expenses

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- Donations made 2437 1251
- Due to disputed claims 1348 18 287
- Measurement of fixed assets at fair value 4 357 -10 623
- Other 1469 761

Total 9611 9676

Other operating expenses due to disputed claims include expenses concerning disputes related to the improper
performance of agreements, cases of criminal nature and cases pertaining to claims made by former employees.

9. Impairment losses and provisions for off-balance sh eet liabilities

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- Impairment losses on loans and advances 98 281 129 092
- Reversed impairment losses on loans and advances -122 103 -207 233
Net impairment losses on loans and advances -23 822 -78 141
including:
- losses on loans and advances at risk of impairment -30 682 -67 659
- IBNR 6 860 -10 482
- Impairment losses on bad debts 78 031 73108
) Re_versed impairment of amounts recovered from loans previously 159 925 150 267
written off
Net impairment losses on bad debts -81 894 -77 159
- Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets: 0 0
- shares in subsidiaries, co-subsidiaries and associated entities, 0 0
as well as minority interests
- Reversed impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets: -6 -160

- shares in subsidiaries, co-subsidiaries and associated entities,

as well as minority interests 6 -160

Net impairment losses on available-for-sale financi  al assets: -6 -160

- Recognised provisions for off-balance sheet liabilities 14 651 12 221

- Reversed provision for off-balance sheet liabilities -12 865 -19 152

Net provisions for off-balance sheet liabilities re cognised 1786 -6 931
including:

- on the portfolio at risk of impairment 1786 -6 931

- IBNR 0 0

Total impairment losses 190 963 214 421

Total reversed impairment losses -294 899 -376 812

Net impairment losses and provisions for off-balanc e sheet 103 936 162 391

liabilities
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10. Income tax

Recognised in the profit and loss account

- Current portion

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Current year 100 825 89 602
Adjustment of last-year tax settlement 5185 -127
106 010 89 475
- Deferred tax
Recognised and reversed temporary differences 27 753 51 907
27 753 51 907
- Increases/decreases of the receivables due to 8% relief related to
o ) 1270 1119
provisions for receivables
Total income tax recognised in the profit and loss account 135 033 142 501
Effective tax rate calculation
- Profit before tax 745 186 683 058
- 19% income tax 141 585 129 781
- Increases — non-deductible expenses 11183 26 856
- provision for expected losses 544 1529
- PFRON 885 866
- impairment in a part not covered by deferred tax 96 16 007
- representation and advertising expenses over the statutory limit 0 1560
- representation expenses 1414 0
- expenses due to foreign payments 264 234
- expenses due to loan and non-loan receivables written off 6 384 1652
- provision for payments connected with the fine imposed by the 0 2677
Office of Competition and Consumer Protection
- accelerated amortisation due to shortening the economic utility
. ) 0 847
period of the Mass Payments Service system
- other 1596 1484
- Decreases — tax exempt income 19 005 15 255
- income exempt due to the entity 592 581
- dividend income 17 905 10947
- release of provisions for expected losses 424 798
- sales of non-current assets under the investment allowance 0 1933
- other 84 996
- 19% income tax /+/ increases /-/ decreases 133763 141 382
- Increases/decreases of the receivable due to 8% relief related to
o ) 1270 1119
provisions for receivables
Income tax from profit and loss account 135033 142 501
Effective tax rate 18,12% 20,86%
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11. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year 2007 was based on the net profit in the amount of PLN
610,153,000 (for the year 2006: PLN 540,557,000) and weighted average number of ordinary shares in the similar period
equal 13,010,000 (2006: 13,010,000).

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- Net profit 610 153 540 557
- Weighted average number of ordinary shares 13 010 000 13 010 000
Earnings per share (PLN) 46,90 41,55

Diluted earnings per share

During 2007 and 2006 the number of shares making up the share capital of ING Bank Slaski S.A. did not change. During
the analysed period, the Bank issued neither convertible bonds nor share options. The whole share capital is divided into
ordinary shares (there are no preference shares). Due to the above, diluted earnings per share is the same as basic
earnings per share.

12. Dividends paid/proposed

General Shareholders' Meeting accepted the dividend payment for the 2006 on 9 May 2007. The amount of dividend

equals PLN 27.90 per share which in total amounted to PLN 362,979 thousand. The dividend was paid on 11 of June
2007.

The Management Board of ING Bank Slaski S.A. proposed payment of the dividend for 2007 in the amount of PLN 11.70
gross per share, which amount to PLN 152,217,000.

13. Cash in hand and balances with the Central Bank

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- Cashin hand 678 067 508 245
- Balances with the Central Bank 1163 653 639 646
Total 1841720 1147 891

The Bank maintains a mandatory provision - at the level of 3.5% of the value of deposits received by the Bank - on its
current account kept with the National Bank of Poland. The amount of the calculated provision is reduced by an equivalent
of EUR 500 thousand, which equalled:

- PLN 1,813,000 as of 30 Oct 2007

- PLN 1,944,000 as of 31 Oct 2006.

The average obligatory provision equalled:

- PLN 1,497,935,000 for the period from 31 Dec 2007 to 30 Jan 2008,

- PLN 1,190,991,000 for the period from 30 Nov 2006 to 01 Jan 2007.

The Bank may utilise the debt limit with the National Bank of Poland for the amount of 0,8 of the face value of Treasury

papers pledged. As of 31 Dec 2007 debt limit amounted to PLN 9,388,779,000 in comparision with 12,166,994,000 as of 31
Dec 2006.

38



14.

15.

Annual financial statements of the ING Bank Slgski SA.
for the period from 1st January 2007 to 31st December 2007

Loans and other receivables to other banks

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Nostro accounts 381 145 277 596
interbank deposits 14 347 480 12 976 032
other receivables 400 374 265 475

- loans and advances 390 842 263 903

- other receivables 9532 1572
accrued interest 110 470 41 496
Total (gross) 15 239 469 13 560 599
Impairment losses -691 -426
Total (net) 15238 778 13560173

Loans and other receivables to other banks by term

to maturity

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Maturing: 15 128 999 13519 103
- up to 1 month 11 766 650 11 324 247
- over 1 month and up to 3 months 847 086 2 045 303
- over 3 months and up to 1 year 2513558 143 441
- over 1 year and up to 5 years 1705 6112
Accrued interest 110 470 41 496
Total 15 239 469 13 560 599

Financial assets at fair value through profit or lo

SS

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Financial assets held for trading 6 024 256 6 842 513
" Financial assets designated as at fair value upon initial recognition 1844778 223518
Total 7 869 034 7 066 031

Financial assets held for trading

Debt instruments

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Bonds and bills issued by: 4373 230 5877 940
State Treasury 4373 230 5866 234
Non financial sector 0 11 706
Total debt instruments 4 373 230 5 877 940
Listed instruments 4292 647 5851518
Unlisted instruments 80 583 26 422
Derivative financial instruments 1651 026 964 573
Total 6 024 256 6842513

Financial assets designated as at fair value upon i

nitial recognition

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Debt instruments, including: 1513211 142 559
Bonds and bills issued by: 1513211 142 559
State Treasury 1381 685 0
Non financial sector 131 526 142 559
Repo transactions 331 567 80 959
Total 1844 778 223518
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The Bank designated the following components of financial assets and liabilities for fair value measurement based on the
profit and loss statement: debt securities in the form of bonds issued by one of non-financial entity and all buy-sell-back
and sell-buy-back transactions.

Designation of above mentioned bonds for fair value measurement based on the profit and loss statement allows to obtain
more useful information due to the elimination of ,accounting mismatch". "Mismatch" would involve inconsistencies in
regard to the recognition of the effects of measurement of an investment item in the form of above bonds and IRS
transactions, measured as fair value through the financial result, securing the interest rate risk from the transaction.

The group of sell-buy-back and buy-sell-back transactions was designated for fair value measurement on the basis of the
profit and loss statement due to their classification to the portfolio managed by Financial Markets. According to the
principles of risk management and the investment strategy in force at the Bank, the items of financial assets and liabilities
as part of this portfolio are measured and managed on the basis of fair value.

For the transactions with the buy-back commitment, all benefits and risks related to assets and the option of their sale
remain with the Group.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or lo ss by term to maturity

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

- up to 1 month 834 310 144 465
- over 1 month and up to 3 months 192 738 1197 034
- over 3 months and up to 1 year 743 798 672 331
- over 1 year and up to 5 years 4382511 4 841 027
- over 5 years 1715677 211174
Total 7 869 034 7 066 031

Movements in financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Opening balance 7 066 031 6 165 686
Increases 418 650 710 902 890 393

- purchase of debt securities 417 766 495 902 725 279

- increase in the value of securities 197 761 161 218

- measurement of off-balance sheet derivative instruments 686 454 3896
Decreases -417 847 707 -901 990 048

- sales of debt securities -362 666 224 -855 183 881

- repurchase of debt securities -50 695 328 -37 971704

- decrease in the value of securities -4 486 155 -8 834 463
Closing balance 7 869 034 7 066 031

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised under interest income.
Income from equity instruments is recognised under dividend income.
Gains and losses on transactions related to derivative financial instruments and due to movements in fair value of other

instruments held for trading are recognised under “net income on instruments at fair value through profit or loss”.

16. Investments

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

- Available-for-sale financial assets, incuding: 8577 617 12 644 728
hedged items in fair value hedging 435 531 0

- Held-to-maturity financial assets 840 776 0
Total 9418 393 12 644 728
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Available-for-sale financial assets

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

- Fixed rate debt instruments 7 365 276 10 921 618
Treasury bonds 7 224 265 10 659 886
Treasury bills 141011 261 732

- Floating rate debt instruments 1189 168 1697 227
Treasury bonds 389 829 1119430
NBP bonds 514 650 516 017
Other 284 689 61 780

Total debt instruments 8 554 444 12 618 845
Listed instruments 7 614 094 11 779 316
Unlisted instruments 940 350 839 529

- Equity instruments
Equity instruments at cost 15 025 27016
Market value evaluation 21142 11 868
Impairment -12 994 -13 001

Equity instruments — carrying value 23173 25 883
Listed instruments 78 0
Unlisted instruments 23 095 25 883

Total 8 577 617 12 644 728

The item “Equity instruments” shows the shares and participations of several entities that in major part - except for shares
of 1 company - are not listed on the stock exchange. The Bank does not measure them at fair value. The shares of one of
the companies where the Bank holds B-series shares (not quoted on the stock exchange) form an exception thereto.
These are measured using the share price of A-series shares from the regulated trading market.
Holding some shares and participations is driven by the Bank's operations. These are the shares of the Warsaw Stock
Exchange, CeTO SA, the Polish Clearing Chamber, SWIFT and the Polish Credit Information Bureau, among others.

Other shares are classified by the Group for disposal (by sale or liquidation).

Hedged items in fair value hedging

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Fixed rate debt instruments 435 531 0
Bonds issued by: 435531 0

State Treasury 435 531 0
Total 435 531 0

Held-to-maturity financial assets

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Fixed rate debt instruments 840 776 0

- Bonds issued by: 840 776 0
State Treasury 840 776 0

Total 840 776 0

41



Annual financial statements of the ING Bank Slgski SA.
for the period from 1st January 2007 to 31st December 2007

Movements in investments

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Opening balance 12 644 728 10 952 027
Increases 4099 980 5109 845

- purchase of debt securities 3586 929 4 460 032

- increase in the value of securities 513 035 636 779

- purchase of shares 10 11 984

- reversed provision for shares 6 1050
Decreases -7 326 315 -3417 144

- sales of debt securities -5975 318 -1 510 959

- repurchase of debt securities -465 479 -1 323 147

- drop in the value of securities -873 536 -581 980

- sales of shares -11 982 -1 052

- charges to provision for shares 0 -6
Closing balance 9418 393 12 644 728

In the year 2007 the Bank sold shares and stakes in 2 companies which value in the books totalled PLN 11,982 thousand.
This included:

- Stalexport S.A.

- WRJ Inwestycje Sp. z 0.0.

In 2006, the Bank sold shares and stakes in 1 company which value in the books totalled PLN 191 thousand.

17. Financial assets pledged as collateral for liabilit ies

The portfolio of financial assets held for trading comprises T-bonds securing the liabilities due to the securities sold with
the buy-back commitment. The face value of bonds is given in the table below. The adjustment following the transaction
measurement at fair value was:

- as of 31 Dec 2007: PLN -298,000,

- as of 31 Dec 2006: PLN 1,330,000.

The liabilities secured with the above assets amounted to:

- as of 31 Dec 2007: PLN 103,014,000,

- as of 31 Dec 2006: PLN 2,282,291,000.

Nominal value of assets that are collateral for lia  bilities

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

The portfolio of financial assets held for trading:
- Treasu_ry bills collateralising the liabilities due to securities sold with 102 939 2227309
a promise of repurchase

The portfolio of financial asstes avaible for sale:
- Treasury bills constituting a collateral to Bank Guarantee Fund 117 900 92 900
- Treasury bonds constituting a collateral for the lombard loan 0 870 000

Securities are pledged on the terms provided for by:

- the Banking Guarantee Fund Act (Journal of Laws 183 of 2005, item 1538),

- the Lombard Loan and Securing Pledge Agreement with the National Bank of Poland dated 30 December 2003,

- the Bylaw for Bank Refinancing with the Lombard Loan by the National Bank of Poland, being enclosure to Resolution
No. 42/2003 by the Management Board of the National Bank of Poland dated 3 October 2003,

- the basis of the transaction.
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18. Derivative hedge instruments

19.

Hedge instruments in fair value hedge accounting

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Balance valuation of securities fair value hedge instruments 4572 0
Interest Rate Swap 4572 0
Total 4572 0

Positive amounts from this table are presented under “Hedging derivative instruments” in the balance sheet assets;
whereas amounts with “-“ refer to negative valuation and are presented under “Hedging derivative instruments” in the

balance sheet liabilities.

Loans and other receivables to customers

end of year 2007

Loans and other receivables to entities [1from the financial sector other than banks

end of year 2006

loans and advances 2225209 2 010 466
- in the current account 378 918 493 093
- term ones 1846 291 1517 373
other receivables 30 687 33440
accrued interest 7413 3892
Total (gross) 2 263 309 2 047 798
Impairment losses -5 840 -8 735
Total (net) 2 257 469 2039 063
Loans and other receivables to entities [/from the non-financial sector
loans and advances granted to business entities 8 727 278 7 264 243
- in the current account 3103 368 2 386 690
- term ones 5623910 4 877 553
loans and advances granted to households 4861978 3527 561
- in the current account 965 928 954 067
- term ones 3896 050 2573494
other receivables 41 060 113 239
accrued interest 18 090 37101
Total (gross) 13 648 406 10 942 144
Impairment losses -523 896 -663 191
Total (net) 13124 510 10 278 953
Loans and other receivables to entities [Ifrom the government and self-government institutions’ sector
loans and advances 695 188 668 637
- in the current account 9871 2575
- term ones 685 317 666 062
accrued interest 2031 2 459
Total (gross) 697 219 671 096
Impairment losses -29 496 -26 707
Total (net) 667 723 644 389
Loans and other receivables to customers - total
loans and advances 16 509 653 13 470 907
other receivables 71747 146 679
accrued interest 27 534 43 452
Loans and other receivables to customers — gross 16 608 934 13 661 038
Impairment losses -559 232 -698 633
Loans and other receivables to customers — net 16 049 702 12 962 405
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maturity

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

- Maturing: 16 581 400 13 617 586
- up to 1 month 6 084 693 5430451

- over 1 month and up to 3 months 1302 019 1015 032

- over 3 months and up to 1 year 2414 431 1973521

- over 1 year and up to 5 years 3997 306 3031557

- over 5 years 2782951 2167 025

- Accrued interest 27534 43 452
Total 16 608 934 13 661 038

Interest accrued as of 31 Dec 2007 includes the amount of PLN 7,436,000 (PLN 18,903,000 as of 31 Dec 2006) related to
accrued interest unpaid at risk of impairment and recognised before 01 Jan 2005, fully written off.

Average effective interest rate for loans and advan

cesin %

- Average effective interest rate for loans and advances in PLN
- Average effective interest rate for loans and advances in foreign

currencies

end of year 2007
6,47%

5,26%

end of year 2006
6,33%

4,24%

In line with the credit policy, ING Bank Slaski S.A. accepts collateral for repayment of the loans extended in the form of
blocked borrower’s account funds and the borrower’'s assets. More information about collaterals is presented in the
chapter "Risk Management in ING Bank Slaski S.A." in the point "Collateral and Other Forms of Credit Risk Mitigation".

Receivables due to financial leases
Bank discloses no such receivables.

20. Quality of portfolio of loans and other receivables

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Loans and other receivables to banks and customers (gross) 31 848 403 27 221 637
- impaired 507 990 690 367
- unimpaired 31 340 413 26 531 270
Impairment losses -559 923 -699 059
- related to impaired portfolio -464 461 -612 374
- related to unimpaired portfolio -95 462 -86 685
Loans and other receivables to banks and customers (net) 31 288 480 26 522 578

The item "Loans and other receivables to banks and customers" includes the value of interbank deposits.
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Annual financial statements of the ING Bank Slgski SA.
for the period from 1st January 2007 to 31st December 2007

end of year 2007

oken down according to impairment estimation method s

end of year 2006

Loans and other receivables to banks and customers (gross) 31848 403 27 221 637
- measured individually 283 342 367 980
- measured as the portfolio 31565 061 26 853 657
Impairment losses -559 923 -699 059
- impairment losses pertaining to loans measured individually -276 387 -339 202
- impairment losses pertaining to loans measured as the portfolio -283 536 -359 857
Loans and other receivables to banks and customers (net) 31 288 480 26 522 578

Movements in impairment losses

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Opening balance 699 059 801 472

Movements in impairment losses: -139 136 -102 413
Recognised during the period 176 312 199 022
Reversed during the period -279 867 -354 322
Deductions written off -113 279 -69 692
Amounts recovered from loans previously written off 85 840 119 505
FX differences -1 460 -2 095
Unwinding interest -3 176 11 214
Other -3 506 -6 045

Closing balance 559 923 699 059

due to:

- loans and other receivables to banks 691 426

- loans and other receivables to customers 559 232 698 633

The loans written-off comprise of redemptions of receivables and write-off receivables from the balance sheet.

Investments in controlled entities

The Bank has shares in the associated entity ING Nationale Nederlanden Polska PTE S.A.:

Domestic Type of activities Share in equity
end of year 2007 end of year 2006
establishment and
ING Nationale Nederlanden Polska PTE S.A. Poland management of the 20% 20%

open pension fund

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

- Opening balance 90 309 75 080
- Share in profit 43 597 39 850
- Dividend paid -36 580 -24 621

Closing balance 97 326 90 309
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General financial information on an associated entity:

Liabilities and

Assets provisions for Net assets Revenues Profit/(loss)
liabilities
end of year 2007
ING Nationale Nederlanden
Polska PTE S.A. 523 185 37 155 486 030 404 334 208 139
end of year 2006
ING Nationale Nederlanden 507 151 35 279 471872 368 463 198 804

Polska PTE S.A.

the Bank discloses shares in the following subsidiary and associated entities:

Name of entity Type of f:apital Value at cost
relation
end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- ING Securities S.A. subsidiary 30 228 30 228
- ING Bank Hipoteczny S.A. subsidiary 113 450 49 950
- ING BSK Development Sp. z o.0. subsidiary 50 50
- Solver Sp. z 0.0. subsidiary 7 870 6 682
- Centrum Banku Slgskiego Sp. z o0.0. w likwidacji subsidiary 18 971 o]
- ING Nationale Nederlanden Polska PTE S.A. associated company 40 000 40 000

Total 210569 126 910

ING BSK Development Sp. z 0.0. (where ING Bank Slaski S.A. holds 100% of shares) has 60% of shares in the initial
capital of Centrum Banku Slaskiego Sp. z 0.0. (the carrying amount of these shares amounts to PLN 2,645,000). On 19
September 2007, ING Bank Slaski S.A. acquired from the minority shareholders the shares in Centrum Banku Slaskiego
Sp. z 0.0., equivalent to 40% of the company initial capital. As a result of the transaction ING Bank Slaski S.A. directly and
indirectly controls 100% of the initial capital of Centrum Banku Slaskiego Sp. z 0.0.

On 31 October 2007, the agreement was signed on purchasing by ING Bank Slaski S.A. the company Centrum Banku
Slaskiego Sp. z 0.0. as well as taking over by ING Bank Slaski S.A. the liabilities connected with operations of the
purchased company. The company Centrum Banku Slaskiego Sp. z 0.0 was a seller.

On 23 November 2007, the Extraordinary General Partners Meeting of Centrum Banku Slaskiego Sp. z 0.0. passed the
resolution on dissolving this company and putting it into liquidation as of 1 December 2007.

On 10 April, the Bank acquired by way of closed subscription 270 B-shares of ING Bank Hipoteczny. The face value of
one share is PLN 50,000, and the total value of the transaction is PLN 13.5m.

On 22 October 2007, the Bank acquired by way of closed subscription 1,000 C-shares of ING Bank Hipoteczny. The face
value of one share is PLN 50,000, and the total value of transaction is PLN 50m.

Upon registration of the increase, the share capital of ING Bank Hipoteczny will total PLN 113.5m.

On 30 November 2007, the Extraordinary General Partners Meeting of Solver Sp. z 0.0. was held, at which the resolution
was passed on increasing the Company'’s initial capital from PLN 8,374,000 to PLN 9,562,000. All the newly-established
shares were covered fully by ING Bank Slaski S.A. in the non-financial form (in-kind contribution). Increase of the initial
capital resulted in a change of the ownership structure — the share of ING Bank Slgski S.A. in the initial capital of Solver
grew from 79.79% to 82.30%.

Investment real estate
end of year 2007 end of year 2006

a) value at the beginning of period 0 0
b) additions (due to) 186 053 0

- purchase 186 053 0
¢) disposals (due to) 0 0
d) value at the end of period 186 053 0
e) evaluation at the fair value at the begining of the period 0 0

- increases 0 0

- decreases -41 340 0
f) evaluation at the fair value at the end of the period -41 340 0
g) net value at the end of period 144 713 0
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The Bank is the owner of one investment property, located in Katowice. The Bank earns income therefrom in the form of
rent instalments. Under the accounting principles adopted by the Bank, the property is measured at fair value. The fair
value was determined by an independent appraiser. The appraisal was made based on the discounted cash flows over
the term of 10 years and was made on the arm’s length basis, considering the building occupancy level.

Since the investment property is measured in EUR (as of 31 Dec 2007, the estate value was EUR 40,400,000 versus
EUR 38,100,000 as of 31 Dec 2006), its value is affected by foreign exchange differences.

Income rental from of the investment properties
Maintance expenses relating to the investment properties

There are no legal limitations on the investment real estate. There are n

purchase of the investment real estate.

Property, plant and equipment

end of year 2007
1825
-577

end of year 2006

0
0

0 contractual obligations incurred in relation to

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Real estate and investments in third-party non-current assets 396 039 265971
Computer hardware 41 048 59 940
Vehicles 101 194
Other fixtures and fittings 69 879 79 168
Constructions in progress 14176 3180
Total 521 243 408 453

end of year 2007

Real estate and
current assets

a) gross value at the beginning of period 493 689 260 986 3052 336 277 3180 1097 184
b) additions (due to) 204 710 14 878 102 24063 46 280 290033
- purchases 187 698 13554 102 7216 46 224 254794
- investment take-overs 16 997 1284 0 16 790 0 35071
- others 15 40 0 57 56 168
c) disposals (due to) -4 609 -57 997 -1944 -13 301 -35478 -113 329
- sale and liquidation -1 002 -55 848 -1601 -7 694 0 -66 145
- investment take-overs 0 0 0 0 -35112 -35112
- other, including: -3 607 -2 149 -343 -5 607 -366 -12 072
- in-kind contribution -1 455 0 0 0 0 -1455
- donations 0 -43 -5 -19 0 -67
e - reclassification to property, plant and equipment for 2152 2106 32 5588 0 9878
d) transfers -2 459 0 0 0 194 -2 265
€) gross value at the end of period 691 331 217 867 1210 347 039 14176 1271623
f) accumulated depreciation at the begining of period -234 857 -201 046 -2 858 -257 109 0 -695 870
g) amortisation for the period (due to) -60 194 24 227 1749 -20 051 0 -54 269
- amortisation charges -30 467 -28 881 -112 -33 222 0 -92 682
- sale and liquidation 414 55 400 1596 8107 0 65517
- transfers 2459 1307 21 5139 0 8926
- other, including: -32 600 -3599 244 -75 0 -36 030
- in-kind contribution 436 0 0 0 0 436
- donations 0 42 5 19 0 66
e - reclassification to property, plant and equipment for 216 0 0 0 0 216
h) accumulated depreciation at the end of period -295 051 -176 819 -1 109 -277 160 0 -750 139
i) evaluation at the fair value at the begining of period 7139 0 0 0 0 7139
- increases 0 0 0 0 0 0
- decreases -7.380 0 0 0 0 -7 380
j) evaluation at the fair value at the end of period -241 0 0 0 0 -241
k) net value at the end of period 396 039 41048 101 69 879 14176 521 243
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end of year 2006

Real estate and
investments in Computer Other fixtures and ~ Constructions in

third-party non- hardware Vehicles fittings progress TOTAL
current assets

a) gross value at the beginning of period 490 776 301 168 4751 330 247 13881 1140823
b) additions (due to) 10 020 18 843 0 25 300 22 649 76 812
- purchases 364 17939 0 6774 22 649 47 726

- investment take-overs 9 656 904 0 18171 0 28 731

- others 0 0 0 355 0 355
c) disposals (due to) -5115 -58 018 -1733 -20 257 -29 085 -114 208
- sale and liquidation -2 049 -57 491 -1733 -20 248 0 -81521

- investment take-overs 0 0 0 0 -29 085 -29 085

- other, including: -3 066 -527 0 -9 0 -3602

- donations 0 -527 0 -9 0 -536

e - reclassification to property, plant and equipment for 3066 0 0 0 0 3066
d) transfers -1992 -1 007 34 987 -4 265 -6 243
€) gross value at the end of period 493 689 260 986 3052 336 277 3180 1097 184
f) accumulated depreciation at the begining of period -209 748 -223 175 -3779 -245 383 0 -682 085
g) amortisation for the period (due to) -25 109 22129 921 -11726 0 -13785
- amortisation charges -28 099 -34 023 -676 -31 864 0 -94 662

- sale and liquidation 1529 55317 1624 19 313 0 77783

- transfers 1069 309 -27 817 0 2168

- other, including: 392 526 0 8 0 926

- donations 0 526 0 8 0 534

e - reclassification to property, plant and equipment for 392 0 0 0 0 392
h) accumulated depreciation at the end of period -234 857 -201 046 -2 858 -257 109 0 -695 870
i) evaluation at the fair value at the begining of period -15 645 0 0 0 0 -15 645
-increases 27 494 0 0 0 0 27494
e - reclassification to property, plant and equipment for 486 0 0 0 0 486
- decreases -4 710 0 0 0 0 -4 710

j) evaluation at the fair value at the end of period 7139 0 0 0 0 7139
k) net value at the end of period 265971 59 940 194 79 168 3180 408 453

The item "Real estate and leasehold improvements" comprises, among others, the land whose value considering the fair
value measurement as of 31 Dec 2007 amounted to 4,745,000 (as of 31 Dec 2006: PLN 5,022,000).

As of 31 Dec 2007 the value of fully depreciated tangible non-current assets amounted to PLN 307,091,000 as compared
to 283,215,000 as of 31 Dec 2006.

As of 31 Dec 2007 the amount of PLN 37,154,000 - that refers to the real properties assessed at their fair value — is
recognised in the revaluation reserve. As of 31 Dec 2006 the same item amounted to PLN 40,458,000.

The real properties were assessed in December 2006 by an independent expert. The assessment was carried out in line
with the binding principles of the real property assessment dependable on the character of the building under assessment
(for administrative buildings — reconstruction method was applied, for operational buildings — income method). The real
properties - assessed at their historical cost taking into account the impairment and depreciation charges - would be worth
PLN 324,410,000. In the year 2007 one of the Bank’s recreation centres was appraised for the purpose of the available-for
sale assets valuation model.

There are no legal limitations on property, plant and equipment.

In 2007, the Bank concluded agreements with the contractors for the future purchase of fixed assets of PLN 584,000, out
of which PLN 308,000 shall be paid in future periods. These agreements refer to the fagade renovation and installation of
revolving gates in the buildings of the Bank's Head Office. The Bank also concluded the framework agreements
connected among others with the re-branding and renovation of branches and franchise outlets. Payments due to these
agreements are not determined in advance — their value shall derive from the cost estimates calculated during the year
separately for each outlet.
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Net value of property, plant and equipment includes the net value of assets accepted under financial lease agreements

Net value of assets accepted under financial lease agreements

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

- Real estate 3288 7 615
- Vehicles 0 98
- Other fixtures and fittings 47 65

Total 3335 7778

25. Intangible assets

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

- Goodwill 223 343 223 343

- Software 73 601 78 658

- Outlays for projects 6 586 9 890

- Other intangible assets 136 299

- Outlays for intangible assets 14 135 4 563

Total 317 801 316 753
end of year 2007

Goodwill Software Outhys for Other intangible ) OuFIays for TOTAL
projects assets intangible assets

a) gross value at the beginning of period 223 343 188 116 9890 7 586 4 563 433 498

b) additions (due to) 0 53329 12768 0 38 269 104 366

- purchases 0 9441 12 500 0 38 140 60 081

- investment take-overs 0 43 888 0 0 0 43 888

- others 0 0 268 0 129 397

c) disposals (due to) 0 -2 528 -16 072 0 -28 697 -47 297

- sale and liquidation 0 -2528 0 0 0 -2528

- investment take-overs 0 0 -15585 0 -28 303 -43 888

- other 0 0 -487 0 -394 -881

d) transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) gross value at the end of period 223 343 238 917 6 586 7 586 14 135 490 567

f) accumulated depreciation at the begining of period 0 -109 458 0 -7 287 0 -116 745

g) amortisation for the period (due to) 0 -55 858 0 -163 0 -56 021

- amortisation charges 0 -57 979 0 -105 0 -58 084

- sale and liquidation 0 2063 0 0 0 2063

- transfers 0 58 0 -58 0 0

- other 0 0 0 0 0 0

h) accumulated depreciation at the end of period 0 -165 316 0 -7 450 0 -172 766

i) evaluation at the fair value at the begining of period 0 0 0 0 0 0

- increases 0 0 0 0 0 0

- decreases 0 0 0 0 0 0

j) evaluation at the fair value at the end of period 0 0 0 0 0 0

k) net value at the end of period 223 343 73 601 6 586 136 14 135 317 801
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end of year 2006

Outlays for Other intangible Outlays for

Goodwil Software projects assets intangible assets TOTAL
a) gross value at the beginning of period 223 343 157 615 27 179 7 586 8759 424 482
b) additions (due to) 0 29 990 15982 16 19 634 65 622
- purchases 0 5552 15870 16 19 189 40 627
- investment take-overs 0 24 438 112 445 24 995
- others 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) disposals (due to) 0 505 -33 040 -16 -24 638 -57 189
- sale and liquidation 0 -32535 0 -16 0 -32 551
- investment take-overs 0 33040 -33 040 0 -24 638 -24 638
- other 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) transfers 0 6 -231 0 808 583
e) gross value at the end of period 223 343 188 116 9890 7586 4563 433 498
f) accumulated depreciation at the begining of period 0 -99 773 0 -6 909 0 -106 682
g) amortisation for the period (due to) 0 -9 685 0 -378 0 -10 063
- amortisation charges 0 -42 213 0 -393 0 -42 606
- sale and liquidation 0 32528 0 15 0 32543
- transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0
- other 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) accumulated depreciation at the end of period 0 -109 458 0 -7 287 0 -116 745
i) evaluation at the fair value at the begining of period 0 0 0 0 0 0
- increases 0 0 0 0 0 0
- decreases 0 0 0 0 0 0
j) evaluation at the fair value at the end of period 0 0 0 0 0 0
k) net value at the end of period 223 343 78 658 9890 299 4563 316 753

As of 31 Dec 2007 the value of fully depreciated intangible assets equalled PLN 75,582,000 vs. PLN 68,879,000 as of 31
Dec 2006.

In 2007, the Bank concluded agreements with the contractors for the future purchase of intangible values of PLN
3,327,000, out of which PLN 664,000 shall be paid in future periods. These agreements refer to the purchase of licence
and implementation of software.

Impairment test of cash generating units with respe ctive goodwiill

The goodwill impairment test is carries out at least twice yearly, irrespective of detecting any objective evidence of
impairment.

In the Bank, the impairment test is applied to the goodwill created as the result of the in-kind contribution of ING Bank NV.
The smallest identifiable income generating centre was determined and goodwill of PLN 285,119,000 gross (PLN
223,343,000 net) was assigned to it. No other additional elements of intangible value of unspecified usage period were
identified that could be assigned to the identified income generating centre. The test is performed based on the model that
calculates and compares the current value of free funds from the centre to the estimated book value of the centre’s funds.
The free funds of the centre are defined as net profit decreased by capital needed to maintain the solvency ratio at the
required level. To discount the cashflows, discount rate is used that represents the cost of capital calculated by ING Bank.

The recoverable value was determined based on the estimation of the useable value of the assets component taking into
account the estimated forecast of expected future cashflow generated during the continued use. The cashflow forecasts
are based on rational assumptions that reflect the most accurate appraisal of the management regarding all the conditions
that will appear during the remaining lifetime of the assets. The cashflow forecasts are based on Medium Term Plan
approved by the Bank and Bank strategy covering the maximum period of the three years. The data regarding subsequent
two years are the result of extrapolation. Extrapolation assumes that the cashflow generating centre will maintain the gross
profit to risk weighted assets ratio at the level from the last year of the Bank’s forecast increasing its profits by previously
determined growth rate. Legitimacy of the assumptions made is verified periodically, and the divergence between the
cashflows estimated based on the future cashflows and actual cashflows is analysed.

A 3-month WIBOR is assumed for the needs of cashflow discounting.
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Property, plant and equipment held for sale

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

a) value at the beginning of period 224 5889
b) additions (due to) 3174 2721
- reclassification from property, plant and equipment 3139 2721
- other 35 0
c) disposals (due to) -3 157 -8 386

- sale and liquidation -3 157 -8 386
d) value at the end of period 241 224
e) evaluation at the fair value at the begining of the period 0 80
- increases 0 406

- reclassification from property, plant and equipment 0 406
- decreases 0 -486

- reclassification from property, plant and equipment 0 -486
f) evaluation at the fair value at the end of the period 0 0
g) net value at the end of the period 241 224

As of 31 Dec 2007, the amount of property, plant and equipment available for sale includes real estate and vehicles taken
over under the recovery process or no longer used. The Group intends to sell them by tender procedure.

Deferred tax assets and reserves

Movements in temporary differences during the year

end of year 2007
Deferred tax assets

- Interest accrued (expense)

- Securities available-for-sale

- Provisions for receivables due to loans
- Other provisions

- Employee benefits

- Retirement and holiday benefits

- Correction due to effective interest rate
- Other

Deferred tax reserve

Balance as of 31

Changes charged to  Changes charged to

Balance as of 31

December 2006  the financial result equity December 2007
-15 803 -1 357 0 -17 160

-1 146 0 -38 785 -39 931

-96 564 31 866 0 -64 698
-5973 392 0 -5 581

-9 608 -7 363 0 -16 971

-4 129 778 0 -3 351

-12 337 0 0 -12 337
-12 236 -874 0 -13 110
-157 796 23 442 -38 785 -173 139

Balance as of 31

Changes charged to  Changes charged to

Balance as of 31

December 2006  the financial result equity December 2007
- Interest accrued (income) 80 960 8925 0 89 885
- Settlen”_lerjt of the difference between tax and balance sheet 15 007 5043 9964
depreciation
- Settlement of prepayments/accruals due to
depreciation/amortisation resulting from the investment relief 11 126 -448 0 10 678
enjoyed
- Revaluation of tangible assets 9 490 0 -776 8714
- Securities available-for-sale 7 000 0 -2984 4016
- Other 4 004 877 0 4 881
127 587 4311 -3 760 128 138
Deferred tax disclosed in the balance sheet -30 209 27 753 -42 545 -45 001
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end of year 2006
Deferred tax assets

Balance as of 31 Changes charged to Changes charged to Balance as of 31
December 2005  the financial result equity December 2006
- Interest accrued (expense) -14 407 -1 396 0 -15 803
- Securities available-for-sale -1 146 0 0 -1 146
- Provisions for receivables due to loans -124 957 28 393 0 -96 564
- Other provisions -5 499 -474 0 -5973
- Employee benefits -6 837 -2771 -9 608
- Retirement and holiday benefits -3774 -355 0 -4 129
- Correction due to effective interest rate -12 337 -12 337
- Other -11 858 -378 0 -12 236
-180 815 23019 0 -157 796
Deferred tax reserve
Balance as of 31 Changes charged to Changes charged to Balance as of 31
December 2005  the financial result equity December 2006
- Interest accrued (income) 48 388 32572 0 80 960
- Settlerr}er_n of the difference between tax and balance sheet 15 201 194 0 15 007
depreciation
- Settlement of prepayments/accruals due to
depreciation/amortisation resulting from the investment relief 13 641 -2 515 0 11126
enjoyed
- Revaluation of tangible assets 7441 0 2049 9490
- Securities available-for-sale 19519 0 -12 519 7 000
- Other 4979 -975 0 4 004
109 169 28 888 -10 470 127 587
Deferred tax disclosed in the balance sheet -71 646 51 907 -10 470 -30 209

Recognised deferred tax assets and reserves related

Deferred tax assets

- Interest accrued (expense)

- Provisions for loans

- Other provisions

- Employee benefits

- Retirement and holiday benefits
- Other

Deferred tax reserve

to a given reporting period

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

-1357 -1 396
31 866 28 393
392 -474
-7 363 -2771
778 -355
-874 -378
23 442 23 019

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- Interest accrued (income) 8 925 32572

- Settlement of the difference between tax and balance sheet -5 043 -194

- Prepayment/a;crual QUe to depreciation resulting from the 448 2515
investment relief applied

- Other 877 -975

4311 28 888

Deferred tax for the reporting period 27 753 51 907
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Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets, related to the following items, were not recognised:

- Specific provisions whose recoverability will not be proved

end of year 2007

1232

end of year 2006

21 866

Total

1232

21 866

Year of expiration of temporary differences:

difference amount

as of 31 Dec 2007

difference amount

as of 31 Dec 2006

year 2008 616 21 866
year 2009 616 0
Total 1232 21 866

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

- Measurement of available-for-sale securities -35915 5855
- Measurement of property, plant and equipment 8715 9 490
Total -27 200 15 345

28. Other assets

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

- Prepayments 43 636 39418
- prepaid bank operating expenses 4478 3932

- prepayments due to insurance with NN 1535 1530

- materials and goods in the warehouse 4275 3426

- settlements due to securitisation 647 0

- accrued income 30 586 21237

- other 2115 9 293

- Other assets 97 478 60 762
- interbank settlements 3623 1937

- interbranch settlements 2147 305

- public and legal settlements 15 852 14 929

- loans from the Company’s Social Benefits Fund 15961 17 845

- settlements with off-takers 20744 12 401

- settlements due to purchase of materials 17 618 0

- other 21533 13 345
Total other assets (gross) 141 114 100 180

- provision for other assets -1711 -3 200
Total other assets (net) 139 403 96 980

The amount of receivables resulting from the EU Guarantee Fund was presented under "public — private settlements" item.

The amount equalled to:

- PLN 9,023,000 as of 31 Dec 2007,
- PLN 12,777,000 as of 31 Dec 2006.
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. Employee benefits

ING Bank Slgski participates in the long-term incentive scheme (LTIS), introduced by ING Group. This scheme provides
incentives to employees at entities from ING Group by connecting their financial results with financial results of the Group.
LTIS is addressed to members of the Management Board of the Bank, management and top level experts. Two
instruments are offered under the system:

- share option,

- performance shares.

Share options have a maturity of 10 years and can be exercised after three years from their issue, provided that the option
holder is the Bank’s employee (or an employee of another entity from ING Group) or is retired. The option exercise price is
the difference between the original price and the option exercise price determined by Euronext Amsterdam on the day of
realisation in the so-called open period after the General Meeting of Shareholders of ING Group NV.

Performance shares are assigned on certain conditions. The number of received performance shares depends on results
achieved by ING Group at the end of a three-year period. To this end, the so-called Total Shareholder Return (TSR) is
calculated for every three-year period and compared with the ratio calculated for a group of financial institutions similar to
ING. Depending on the position of ING in the ranking, the number of shares to be received can range from 200% in the
case of first to third position and 0% for ranging from 18th to 20th position. The exercise price is set according to the same

principles as for share options.

To operate the aforementioned incentive scheme, the Bank incurs costs of financing options and system administration,
which amounted to PLN 4.8 million in 2007 compared with PLN 2.7 million in 2006.

The Bank measures granted share options and performance shares at fair value. The value measured for the period from
1 Jan 2007 to 31 Dec 2007 equalled PLN 3.6 million and was charged to the financial result of the Bank (in the year 2006
measurement result reached PLN 2.9 million).

Liabilities due to other banks

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- Current accounts 87 017 178 315
- Interbank deposits 1710059 1106 518
- Transactions with the buy-back commitment 0 105 805
- Other liabilities 3899 5450
- Accrued interest 11 308 4151

Total 1812 283 1400 239

Repurchase transactions are shown under the item “Transactions with the buy-back commitment”. The Bank acquires
funds by selling financial instruments with the future buy-back commitment at the same price, increased with the interest
determined upfront.

Repurchase transactions are generally considered as a tool of short-term funding of interest assets, depending on the
interest rates. As at 31 Dec 2007 the Bank did not have any repo transactions with banks.

Liabilities due to other banks by maturity

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- Maturing: 1800 975 1396 088
- up to 1 month 1632925 1166 072

- over 1 month and up to 3 months 123 050 93179

- over 3 months and up to 1 year 45 000 136 837

- Accrued interest 11 308 4151
Total 1812 283 1400 239
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The following assets were sold under repo transacti ons concluded with banks:

end of year 2006

Repurchase date Nominal value Carrying amount interest
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-12-10 66 000 65 337 3173
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-02-06 20 680 20 462 7
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-02-02 20 220 20 006 6
106 900 105 805 3186

31. Financial liabilities at fair value

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- Financial liabilities held for trading 1057 294 828 922

Derivative financial instruments 1057 294 828 922

- Flnanm_a_l liabilities designated as at fair value upon initial 102 716 2282 291
recognition

Sell-buy-back transactions 102 716 2282 291

- Book short position in trading securities 54 971 9 307

Total 1214981 3120 520

The Bank designated the following components of financial assets and liabilities for fair value measurement based on the
profit and loss statement: debt securities in the form of bonds issued by one of non-financial entity and all buy-sell-back
and sell-buy-back transactions.

The Bank of sell-buy-back and buy-sell-back transactions was designated for fair value measurement on the basis of the
profit and loss statement due to their classification to the portfolio managed by Financial Markets. According to the
principles of risk management and the investment strategy in force at the Bank, the items of financial assets and liabilities
as part of this portfolio are measured and managed on the basis of fair value.

32. Liabilities due to customers
end of year 2007 end of year 2006

Liabilities due to entities from the financial sector other than banks

- Deposits 2423249 3146 386
- current accounts 1426 848 2 265 816

- term deposit 996 401 880 570

- Transactions with the buy-back commitment 725974 1429 242
- Other liabilities 44 486 30 719
- Accrued interest 1709 1768
Total 3195418 4608 115

Liabilities due to entities from the non-financial sector

- Business entities’ deposits 12 801 992 10 389 287
- current accounts 8025714 5885424

- term deposit 4776 278 4 503 863

- Households' deposits 25356 471 21274 488
- current accounts 2603 797 2897 751

- savings accounts 19 069 974 15421 774

- term deposit 3682 700 2 954 963

- Transactions with the buy-back commitment 128 000 371824
- Other liabilities 390 677 405 668
- Accrued interest 50 559 46 243
Total 38 727 699 32 487 510
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Liabilities due to entities from the government and self-government institutions’ sector

- Deposits 2571234 1528 107
- current accounts 2028 882 1190 267
- term deposit 542 352 337 840
- Other liabilities 6 683 713
- Accrued interest 1155 1988
Total 2579072 1530 808
Liabilities due to customers — total
Deposits 43 152 946 36 338 268
Transactions with the buy-back commitment 853 974 1801 066
Other liabilities 441 846 437 100
Accrued interest 53 423 49 999
Liabilities due to customers — total 44 502 189 38 626 433

Repurchase transactions are shown under the item “Transactions with the buy-back commitment”. Bank acquires funds by
selling financial instruments with the future buy-back commitment at the same price, increased with the interest determined

upfront.

Repurchase transactions are generally considered as a tool of short-term funding of interest assets, depending on the

interest rates.

The following assets were sold under repo transacti

end of year 2007

Repurchase date

ons concluded with customers:

Nominal value

Carrying amount

interest

Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-01-02 474 668 461 618 270
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-01-03 21 000 20 248 24
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-01-04 16 000 15 418 14
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-01-07 7 000 6 740 11
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-01-08 267 827 273 999 810
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-03-05 37 568 36 165 134
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-03-19 41 294 39 786 119
865 357 853 974 1382

end of year 2006

Repurchase date Nominal value Carrying amount interest

Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-01-02 190 260 186 704 96
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-01-05 238 821 232 749 83
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-01-08 50 000 49 413 21
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-01-10 35392 33 000 11
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-01-11 40 781 38 085 18
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-01-12 1064 243 1002 994 326
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-01-15 9 870 9 750 18
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-01-18 6724 6 251 10
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-01-22 95 550 90 277 109
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-01-24 37 297 34 678 46
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-01-29 7167 6 679 2
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-02-09 61 234 57 499 313
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2007-02-26 53 830 52 987 223
1891 169 1801 066 1276
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Liabilities due to customers by maturity

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Maturing: 44 448 766 38576 434
- up to 1 month 40 308 864 34454 471
- over 1 month and up to 3 months 1699 354 1521061
- over 3 months and up to 1 year 1594 030 1945281
- over 1 year and up to 5 years 789 143 584 159
- over 5 years 57 375 71 462
Accrued interest 53 423 49 999
Total 44 502 189 38 626 433

Average effective interest rate for deposits in %

Average effective interest rate for deposits in PLN
Average effective interest rate for deposits in foreign currencies

Provisions

end of year 2007
2,92%
2,00%

end of year 2007

end of year 2006
2,76%
1,58%

end of year 2006

provision for disputes 29 294 42 082
provision for off-balance sheet liabilities 23933 25015
provision for retirement benefits 11 522 10 602
provision for unused holidays 6 155 11134
provision for employment restructuring 0 0
Total 70 904 88 833
end of year 2007
provision for provision for off- provision for provision for provision for
disputes balanﬁ:bsmh“e:st retirement benefits unused holidays ;?EL%{E&I’; TOTAL
;'Z\‘j‘i'ggsbsg;%e at the end of the 42 082 25015 10 602 11134 0 88 833
Provisions recognised 3493 - 891 - - 4 384
Provisions applied -2 148 -1 082 - - - -3230
Provisions reversed -14 133 - - -4 979 - -19 112
Assuming liability due to the purchase of ) ) 29 : ) 29
enterprise
Closing balance 29 294 23 933 11 522 6 155 0 70904
expected provision settlement period
-upto 1year 5551 - - 6 155 - 11 706
- more than 1 year 23743 23933 11 522 - - 59 198
end of year 2006
provision for pravilsion fo:‘off- provision for provision for provilsion for TOTAL
disputes al anﬁ:bsim?:st retirement benefits unused holidays ;r:t‘:;c{zingt
losi | h f th
;gji'gssbse"’;ir;ze atthe end of the 19 340 29 631 10 791 9074 10 654 79 490
Provisions recognised 31904 - 312 2 060 - 34276
Provisions applied -4 962 -4 616 - - -10 074 -19 652
Provisions reversed -4 200 - -501 - -580 -5 281
Closing balance 42 082 25 015 10 602 11134 0 88 833
expected provision settlement period
-upto1year 42 082 - - 11134 - 53 216
- more than 1 year - 25015 10 602 - - 35617

57



Annual financial statements of the ING Bank Slgski SA.
for the period from 1st January 2007 to 31st December 2007

Provision for issues in dispute

The Bank maintains a detail record of all court cases and other legal claims. In cases where the Bank is burdened with
legal obligations or other obligations arising from commonly accepted customs, having its source in past events, and it is
also probable that the fulfilment of the said obligation will result in the unavoidable outflow of funds, the Bank creates
provisions. Any future settlements are made against those provisions.

The recognised amount of provisions comprises:

1) disputable cases connected with negligent performance of agreements: PLN 27,340,000,

2) crime cases: PLN 1,916,000,

3) cases relating to claims filed by former employees: PLN 38,000.

The Bank recognised provisions for all estimated losses. In some cases, the Bank is entitles to reimbursement of funds
relating to the provisions. However, due to the uncertainty of the inflow of the expected economic benefits, the Bank did
not recognise any assets due to that title in the financial statement.

Provision for retirement benefits

The Group recognises provisions for retirement benefits in accordance with IAS 19. Provisions for retirement benefits
granted as a part of benefits required by the Labour Code are estimated based on actuarial valuation. The provision
resulting from actuarial valuation is recognised and remeasured on an annual basis. Additionally, the provision is adjusted
on a quarterly basis based on estimations performed. As of 31 Dec 2007, the value of future liabilities due to retirement
benefits equalled PLN 11,522,000 (PLN 10,602,000 as of 31 Dec 2006).

Starting 2007, the Bank changed the accounting methodology as to the recognition of provisions for retirement allowance
by adopting the corridor approach for recognising a specific part of the cumulated net actuarial gains and losses. Under
this method, when determining an obligation due to certain benefits, the Bank recognises some actuarial gains and losses
as revenue or costs, when the net value of accumulated unrecognised actuarial gains and losses as at the end of the
previous reporting period exceeds the higher of the following two values:

a) 10% of the current value of the obligation due to certain benefits as at that day (before deduction of the plan’s assets)

b) 10% of the fair value of the plan’s assets as at that day.

A portion of the actuarial gains and losses above the said limit is recognised in the profit and loss account as the quotient
of the above named excess and the average expected remaining working life of the Bank employees. Following that
change, the Bank presents in the balance sheet the net value of the liability comprising the current value of the liability and
unrecognised actuarial gains/ losses.

Provision for retirement allowances — a revision of the balance-sheet liability

end of year 2007

Opening balance 10 602

- Taking over the liability due to the purchase of a subsidiary 29
- Costs included in the profit and loss account, out of which: 1467
- regular employment costs 927

- costs of interest 540

- Paid benefits -576
Closing balance, including: 11 522

- current value of the liability 10 838

- not included actuarial gains/ losses 684
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Restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Bank has a detailed and formal restructuring plan defining at least the
business or part of the business to which it applies, the basic locations, the places of employment, the functions, and the
approximate number of employees eligible to indemnification, the amount of expenditure to be incurred and the dates of
implementation. The condition necessary for recognising the provisions is also for the restructuring to have been
commenced or announced publicly. The provision for restructuring does not include future operating costs.

Due to the collective layoffs procedure initiated at the Bank in the fourth quarter 2005, the Bank created a provision for
employment restructuring in the total amount of PLN 11.3 million. The provision was fully used in 2006.

Out of the total provision, the amount of PLN 10.3 million refers to severance pays for the employees dismissed. The
employment restructuring results from projects carried on at the Bank, aimed at optimising the operating area.
Centralisation of selected functions, consolidation of operating units and limitation of local recovery activities as a result of
signing outsourcing contracts allowed the Bank to reduce employment by 354 persons.

34. Other liabilities

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- to employees 25 466 20 441
- due to leases 3142 10 804
- accruals 158 272 128 763
- due to operating expenses 904 3153

- due to employee benefits 98 640 56 931

- due to loans granted 1019 3971

- due to commission 50 727 52 610

- due to distribution of deposit-related funds 1061 5582

- other 5921 6 516

- other liabilities 369 735 586 935
- interbank settlements 212533 441 053

- interbranch settlements 0 13 553

- public and legal settlements 34 432 30 027

- settiment due to trading in securities 1701 0

- settlements with suppliers 63 663 51 342

- other 57 406 50 960
Total 556 615 746 943

Gross liabilities due to financial leases by maturi ty

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- upto1year 3083 7 535
- over 1 year and up to 5 years 59 3269
Total 3142 10 804

Present value of lease instalments due by maturity

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- upto 1 year 3170 7983

- over 1 year and up to 5 years 72 3 365
Total 3242 11 348
Reconciliation of differences between gross liabili ties due to financial leases

and present value of minimum lease instalments
end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- Gross liabilities due to financial leases 3142 10 804
- Unrealised financial expenses 100 544
- Present value of minimum lease instalments 3242 11 348

59



35.

36.

Annual financial statements of the ING Bank Slgski SA.
for the period from 1st January 2007 to 31st December 2007

The Bank is a lessee in financial lease agreements concerning a part of the hardware and premises being perpetually
used by the Bank. Those agreements do not provide for any contingent fees to be paid by the lessee; any limitations do
not arise from the provisions of the lease agreements. In some cases the agreements provide for the possibility of
prolonging the agreement, using the possibility of purchase or price change.

Share capital

The share capital includes 130,100,000 ordinary shares, and is sub-divided into:

- 9,260,000 ordinary bearer's shares of A series of face value of PLN 10.00 each
- 3,750,000 ordinary bearer's shares of B series of face value of PLN 10.00 each.
Each ordinary share entitles its owner to dividend and one vote during the general meeting of the Bank’s shareholders.
Neither the value of the share capital nor the number of shares changed during the year 2007 and 2006.

Revaluation reserve

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

Revaluation reserve from measurement of available-for-sale financial assets -149 591 42 830
- including deferred tax 35914 -5 855
Revaluation reserve from measurement of property, plant and equipment 37154 40 458
- including deferred tax -8 715 -9 490
Total -112 437 83 288
end of year 2007
Revaluation reserve Revaluation reserve
from measurement of[  including from measurement of|  including TOTAL
available-for-sale | deferred tax | property, plantand | deferred tax
financial assets equipment
Opening balance of revaluation reserve 42 830 -5 855 40 458 -9 490 83 288
- gains/losses on re_measurement of available-for-sale financial 174 090 37469 ) 174 090
assets charged to equity
- recIe}ssﬁlgd to the financial result as a result of sale of available- 18331 4300 ) 18331
for-sale financial assets
- disposal of property, plant and equipment - -258 61 -258
- remeasurement of property, plant and equipment - -3 046 714 -3 046
Closing balance of revaluation reserve -149 591 35914 37154 -8715 -112 437
end of year 2006
Revaluation reserve Revaluation reserve
from measurement of[  including from measurement of|  including TOTAL
available-for-sale deferred tax | property, plantand | deferred tax
financial assets equipment
Opening balance of revaluation reserve 85 796 18374 31725 -7 441 117 521
- gains/losses on re_measurement of available-for-sale financial 28754 9819 B 28754
assets charged to equity
- reclgssﬁlgd to the financial result as a result of sale of available- 14212 2700 B 14912
for-sale financial assets
- disposal of property, plant and equipment - -2132 169 -2132
- remeasurement of property, plant and equipment - 10 865 2218 10 865
Closing balance of revaluation reserve 42 830 -5 855 40 458 -9 490 83 288

37. Retained earnings

end of year 2007

end of year 2006

- Other supplementary capital 24 296 23582
- Reserve capital 1487 079 1359501
- General risk fund 530 152 480 152
- Retained earnings 6 361 5044
- Result for the current year 610 153 540 557

Total 2658 041 2 408 836
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end of year 2007

other

Supplementar | ieservelcapital general risk retai.ned result for the TOTAL
y capital fund earnings current year

Opening balance of retained earnings 23582| 1359501 480 152 545 601 0] 2408 836

- disposal of property, plant and equipment 714 - - 1317 - 2 031

- profit allocation, including: 0 127 578 50 000 -540 557 - -362 979

- profit written off to reserve capital E 127 578 - -127 578 - 0

- profit written off to general risk fund | B 50 000 -50 000 - 0

- dividends paid - - - -362 979 - -362 979

- net result for the current period - - - - 610 153 610 153

r():::zzg balance of retained earnings at the end of the current 24 206| 1487 079 530 152 6 361 610 153| 2 658 041
end of year 2006

supptljg:erntar reserve capital gentferal I retai.ned T TOTAL
y capital und earnings current year

Opening balance of retained earnings 22171] 1212963 430 152 558 532 0| 2223818

- disposal of property, plant and equipment - - - 2 236 - 2 236

- remeasurement of property, plant and equipment 1411 - - -1411 - 0

- profit allocation, including: 0 146 538 50 000 -554 313 - -357 775

- profit written off to reserve capital B 146 538 - -146 538 - 0

- profit written off to general risk fund B B 50 000 -50 000 - 0

- dividends paid B B - -357 775 - -357 775

- net result for the current period - - - - 540 557 540 557

l():::;nzg balance of retained earnings at the end of the current 23582| 1359501 480 152 5044 540557| 2408836

Suplementary capital

Suplementary capital is created from appropriations from profit after tax, from surpluses generated due to issue of shares
above their face value and the extra contributions paid up by the shareholders to be used for covering balance-sheet
losses. The decision on the use of the suplememntary capital is taken at the General Meeting.

Reserves

Reserves are established regardless of the suplementary capital created from the appropriations from profit after tax, in
the amount resolved at the General Shareholders Meeting. The reserves are used for covering special losses and
expenses. The decision on the use of the reserves is taken at the General Meeting.

The General Risk Fund
The General Risk Fund is established in accordance with the Banking Law Act from the after-tax profit and is used for
unidentified risk related to banking activity. The decision on the use of the Fund is taken by the Management Board.

Hyperinflation

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 1 (First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards), the
Capital Group must retrospectively apply IAS 29 (Financial Reporting in Hyperinflation Economies) at the preparation of
financial statements.

Pursuant to paragraph 24 of IAS 29 "Financial Reporting in Hyperinflation Economies”, the shareholders' equity items
(except for retained earnings and all asset revaluation gains) should be restated with the use of the general price index,
starting from the date on which the given entity operates was a hyperinflationary economy within the meaning of IAS 29.
The effect of recalculation of the respective shareholders equity items with the use of the inflation ratios should be
disclosed on the other side in the retained earnings from the previous years. Application of the provisions of paragraph 24
of IAS 29 would result in an increase in the issued capital and supplementary capital - a surplus of the issue price of the
shares over their par value by PLN 460,500 thousand and at the same time would charge to the same amount the retained
earnings from the previous years.

Full implementation of IAS 29 requirements would result in legal effects related to the necessity to change the share
capital on the basis of the Code of Companies and the Banking Law. At the same time, due to the fact that the effects of
overestimation discussed above do not have any effect on the change in the value of the net assets of the Capital Group,
the Bank Management Board believes that making such an adjustment would not have any significant effect on the
accuracy and fairness of presentation of the financial standing presented in these financial statements.
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Off-balance sheet items

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

Contingent liabilities granted 12 976 028 13 817 405
Contingent liabilities received 10 686 817 10 530 245
Off-balance sheet financial instruments 207 320 201 157 144 424
Total 230983 046 181492 074

Contingent liabilities

Liabilities granted

The Bank discloses obligations to grant loans. These obligations include approved loans, credit card limits and limits of
overdraft in current accounts.

The Bank issues guarantees and letters of credits securing fulfilment of obligations of the Bank’s customers to third
parties.

The Bank charges commissions for contingent liabilities granted, which are settled in line with the characteristic of the
particular instrument.

Values of contractual contingent liabilities by category are presented in the table below. Values of guarantees and letters of

credit disclosed below reflect maximum loss that can be incurred, which would be disclosed as at the balance sheet date if
customers do not fully fulfil their obligations.

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

Credit card limits 590 568 660 563
Undrawn credit facilities 6 758 210 6 217 846
Undrawn overdrafts in current account 2334 841 1790 166
Guarantees and letters of credit 2079181 1442 705
Deposits to be issued 1213228 3706 125
Total 12 976 028 13 817 405

Provisions are created for contingent financial liabilities exposed at risk of loss due to impairment. If there is objective
evidence of impairment of contingent liabilities existing as at the balance sheet date, the Bank recognises a provision
equal to the difference between the statistically estimated part of off-balance sheet exposure (balance sheet equivalent of
current off-balance sheet items) and the present value of estimated future cash flows. Taking into account the off-balance
sheet character of contingent liabilities, the value of the provision does not reduce carrying amount of assets and is
recognised in the Bank’s balance sheet and profit and loss account. Provisions for off-balance sheet liabilities are
disclosed in the balance sheet of the Bank under “Provisions” and in explanatory note no. 33.

Liabilities received
end of year 2007 end of year 2006

Guarantee conditioned liabilities 9446 144 10418 776
Financing liabilities 1240673 111 469
Total 10 686 817 10 530 245

Information on issue guarantees granted to other is suers

In 2007, the Bank acted as a guarantor for the issue of commercial securities by two budgetary entities, one entity from the
fuel sector as well as one from the power generation sector. The guarantee totalled PLN 228.7 million out of which PLN
228.2 million was drawn.

In 2006, the Bank was the guarantor for the issue of commercial papers of two budget entities and one entity from the fuel
sector. The total guarantee amount is PLN 58.5 million, PLN 6 million of which were used.
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42. Off-balance sheet financial instruments

end of year 2007

Nominal value of instruments with the period remain ing to .
. Fair value measurement
maturity
more than 3 .
less than 3 more than 1 Equity and
months and Total Assets b
months year liabilities

less than 1 year

Interest rate derivatives

Forward rate agreements (FRA) 8250 000 43 336 550 500 000 52 086 550 29 335 26 411

Interest rate swaps (IRS) 24 036 359 36 724 226 20 540 206 81 300 791 446 405 318 229

CAP options o] 0 542 219 542 219 1964 1964
Total 32 286 359 80060776 21 582 425 133 929 560 477 704 346 604
FX derivatives

FX contracts (swap, forward) 39 954 013 15 174 652 1293 146 56 421 811 938 541 542 023

CIRS 0 o] 0 (o] 91 843 11 163

Currency options (purchased) 1412 204 1 569 845 133 870 3115919 73 968 [o]

Currency options (sold) 1673213 1822910 68 684 3 564 807 0 85 199
Total 43 039 430 18 567 407 1 495 700 63 102 537 1104 352 638 385
Current off-balance sheet transactions

FX operations 8 081 443 (o] (o] 8 081 443 5808 3944

Securities operations 1158 065 0 0 1158 065 -166 474
Total 9 239 508 0 0 9 239 508 5642 4418
Stock market derivatives

Options for stock market (buy) 0] 57 629 466 684 524 313 67 900 0]

Options for stock market (sold) 0 57 629 466 654 524 283 o] 67 887
Total 0] 115 258 933 338 1 048 596 67 900 67 887
Total 84 565 297 98 743 441 24 011 463 207 320 201 1 655 598 1057 294

end of year 2006

Nominal value of instruments with the period remain ing to .
) Fair value measurement
maturity
more than 3 .
I han more than 1 Equity and
ess than 3 months and ore thai Total Assets d ty X
months year liabilities

less than 1 year

Interest rate derivatives

Forward rate agreements (FRA) 2 000 000 32 305 065 700 000 35 005 065 11 069 12 095

Interest rate swaps (IRS) 15 461 715 19 263 854 15 198 759 49 924 328 424 426 321 706
Total 17 461 715 51 568 919 15 898 759 84 929 393 435 495 333 801
FX derivatives

FX contracts (swap, forward) 25 613 568 12 539 505 2 050 699 40 203 772 396 502 421 332

CIRS - - - - 80 378 11983

Currency options (purchased) 560 209 589 950 1082 1151 241 9 881 [0]

Currency options (sold) 315 268 940 759 1118 1257 145 (] 15 501
Total 26 489 045 14 070 214 2 052 899 42 612 158 486 761 448 816
Current off-balance sheet transactions

FX operations 24 680 691 (0] (0] 24 680 691 986 7 662

Securities operations 4 433 562 [0] [0] 4 433 562 2 885 198
Total 29 114 253 (0] [0] 29 114 253 3871 7 860
Stock market derivatives

Options for stock market (buy) 0] [0] 244 310 244 310 38 446 (0]

Options for stock market (sold) 0 0 244 310 244 310 0 38 445
Total 0 0 488 620 488 620 38 446 38 445
Total 73 065 013 65 639 133 18 440 278 157 144 424 964 573 828 922
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Currency contracts

The table below summarises contractual values of currency forwards, swaps and options by currency, as well as details of
the period remaining to maturity of the particular contract. Values in foreign currency are converted at exchange rates
valid as at the balance sheet date.

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

PLN

- up to 3 months 15768 441 17 491 056
- from 3 months to 1 year 7 314 538 8 787 456
- over 1 year 708 971 1117934
EUR

- up to 3 months 13713 816 3089 703
- from 3 months to 1 year 5281947 3336 287
- over 1 year 559 217 704 936
uUsD

- up to 3 months 12 292 308 5621511
- from 3 months to 1 year 5883 226 1940 650
- over 1 year 200 375 230 030
GBP

- up to 3 months 556 491 61176
- from 3 months to 1 year 55 504 3211
- over 1 year 0 0
other currencies

- up to 3 months 708 373 225 599
- from 3 months to 1 year 32193 2 609
- over 1 year 27 137 0
Total 63 102 537 42 612 158

Embedded derivatives

The Bank has deposits in PLN and USD, in which derivative instruments are embedded. These are FX options and stock
exchange indices, commodity indices and trust units in investment funds. As of 31 Dec 2007 the embedded instruments
were valued at PLN 48,486,000 (As of 31 Dec 2006: PLN 32,900,000).

Hedge accounting

Fair value hedge accounting

In the financial statements as of 31 Dec 2007 the Bank uses fair value hedge accounting for securities and properties.

Fair value hedge for securities

The risk which is hedged is a change in the fair value of the financial asset following a shift in the interest rates. The
hedged item is the fair value of a fixed-interest bearing PLN debt paper; i.e. the position (a part of the position) on a given
security from the portfolio of the assets available for sale (AFS), which at the inception time of a hedging relation defines
the fair value carried through the valuation allowance. The fair value of that financial asset is hedged against a change in
interest rates.

The PLN Interest Rate Swap is the hedging instrument whereby the fixed interest rate is converted into the variable one. In
consequence, the fair value of the hedging instrument shows a reverse trend to the fair value of the hedged position.
Therefore, by establishing a hedge relationship, in the income statement we see the netting effect of changes to the fair
value of the hedging instrument and the hedged position due to the risk hedged. Since, only one type of risk (interest rate
risk) is hedged, changes to the fair value of the position hedged which follow other unhedged risks are carried through the
valuation allowance.

The hedging and hedged transactions is shown in the income statement under the note: “Result on financial instruments

carried through profit and loss and revaluation”.
The hedged transaction is presented in the item "Property, plant and equipment” in the balance-sheet.
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Fair value of instruments under the fair value hedge accounting for securities

end of year 2007

Hedged items

Carrying amount

- Debt securities available-for-sale 437 000
- Treasury bonds 437 000

Hedging instruments

- Interest Rate Swap 437 000

For the hedging instrument the fair value was given as the balance valuation.

Cash flow hedge accounting

In the financial statements as of 31 Dec 2007, the Bank did not use cash flow hedge accounting.

Fair values

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value

435 531
435531

4572

The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in a direct transaction, other than forced sale or liquidation, which is best reflected by the market price, if available.

Below, balance sheet and fair values are summarised for each group of assets and liabilities that are not shown at fair
value in the group’s balance sheet. In the estimation of the fair value of assets and liabilities the purchase and sale prices
were adopted accordingly. For short-term financial assets and liabilities, their balance sheet value is assumed as

approximating their fair value.

end of year 2007

Carrying amount

Assets
- Cash in hand and balances with the Central Bank 1841720
- Loans and receivables to other banks 15238 778
- Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 7 869 034
- Investments 9418 393
- Derivative hedge instruments 4572
- Loans and receivables to customers 16 049 702
- Investments in controlled entities 210 569
Liabilities
- Liabilities due to other banks 1812 283
- Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss 1214981
- Liabilities due to customers 44 502 189

end of year 2006

Carrying amount

Assets
- Cash in hand and balances with the Central Bank 1147 891
- Loans and receivables to other banks 13560173
- Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 7 066 031
- Investments 12 644 728
- Loans and receivables to customers 12 962 405
- Investments in controlled entities 126 910
Liabilities
- Liabilities due to the Central Bank 696 000
- Liabilities due to other banks 1400 239
- Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss 3120520
- Liabilities due to customers 38 626 433
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1841720
15238 778
7 869 034
9418 393
4572

16 078 308
210569

1812 283
1214 981
44 497 439

Fair value

1147891
13560 173
7 066 031
12 644 728
13 050 430
126 910

696 000
1400 239
3120 520
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Fair value determination

The Bank discloses the data on the fair value of loans and deposits recognised respectively in the groups of financial
assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost considering the effective interest rate.

In calculations, the yield curve is used; it takes account of the transfer prices calculated based on:

- PLN: up to 1Y — as the average of BID quotations (WIBID and brokers’ BID listings) collected at 9.00, 11.00, 12.30 and
14.00; above 1Y — the average of OFFER quotations for IRS contracts converted into the effective rate,

- USD and CHF: up to 1Y on the basis of adequate LIBOR quotations, from 1Y on — on the basis of OFFER quotations for
IRS contracts converted into the effective rate,

- EUR: up to 1Y - on the basis of adequate EURIBOR quotations, from 1Y on — on the basis of OFFER quotations for IRS
contracts converted into the effective rate.

Credit loss estimations reflect the loan loss provisioning model in place at the Bank. In certain aspects, the model adopted
by the Bank is based on the assumptions not confirmed by the prices of verifiable current market transactions referring to
the same instrument — the model takes account of neither prepayments nor restructuring-based changes.

Loans and receivables to other banks
The fair value of loans and cash loans granted to other banks is their balance-sheet value.

Loans and receivables to customers

The credit portfolio is divided into sub-portfolios according to the registration system, the type of product, the client’s
segment and the currency. In case of loans without any repayment schedules and loans from the impaired group, it is
assumed that for those loans the fair value equals the book value thereof. In case of those sub-portfolios the discounting
factor is used for each cashflow. The result is the fair value as the sum of the net present value of cashflows of a single
loan.

The sum of the fair value of individual loans represents the fair value of the portfolio of reviewed loans.

For loans the discounting factor is assumed as a sum of:

- the market rate based on the yield curve as of the balance sheet date, and

- the average margin based on the portfolio of loans granted in the last semi-annual period.

For that purpose the following assumptions are adopted:

- use of the loans granted in the last year-half for calculation,

- division into the abovementioned product groups,

- the spot at the yield curve on the basis of which the relevant market rate is set is reflected by the revaluation date for
each loan.

Investment in controlled entities
In the case of financial assets being investments in controlled entities, equity method was applied for their measurement.

Liabilities due to other banks
The fair value of deposits at other banks is their balance-sheet value.

Liabilities due to customers

The deposit portfolio is divided according to the type of product, the client's segment and the currency. For deposits paid
on demand, it is assumed that for those the fair value equals their book value.

Another phase involves the calculation of future cashflows as the sum of principal and interest cashflows. After that, by
applying the discounting factor for each cashflow one receives the fair value of individual deposits. The sum of fair values
of individual deposits represents the fair value of the portfolio of deposits reviewed.

For deposits the discounting factor represents the sum of:

- the market rate based on the yield curve as at the balance sheet date, and

- the average margin based on the portfolio of deposits accepted in two last months.

For that purpose the following assumptions are adopted:

- use of the deposits accepted in the last two months for calculation,

- division into the abovementioned product groups,

- the spot at the yield curve on the basis of which the relevant market rate is set is reflected by the revaluation date for
each deposit.
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45. Custody activities

As at 31 Dec 2007 Bank mintained 3,196 securities accounts for its customers. At the end of 2007 Bank was a deposit
bank for 60 investment funds/subfunds and 1 employee fund.

The Bank was also selected to exercise this function for 39 newly-established investment funds/sub-funds which did not
start their operations at the end of 2007. From 1 Jan 2007 to 31 Dec 2007 the Bank co-operated with 22 Polish brokerage
houses.

46. Operating leases

Bank as a lesse

The Bank cooperates with ING Car Lease in respect to car leasing and fleet management. The Bank also incurs cost due
to lease of dwelling units, which is recognised as operating leasing. Those agreements do not provide for any contingent
fees to be paid by the lessee; any limitations do not arise from the provisions of the lease agreements.

In some cases the agreements provide for the possibility of prolonging the agreement, using the possibility of purchase or
price change.

Lease payments by maturity are disclosed in the table below:
end of year 2007 end of year 2006

up to 1 year 92 326 68 977
over 1 year and up to 5 years 201 555 79 565
over 5 years — annual payment amount 20580 10 845

Bank as a lessor

The Bank obtains an income from renting investment real estate. Those agreements are treated as operating lease
agreements. Those agreements do not provide for any contingent fees to be paid by the lessee; any limitations do not
arise from the provisions of the lease agreements. In some cases the agreements provide for the possibility of prolonging
the agreement or changing the price; however they do not provide for the possibility of purchase.

Lease payments by maturity are disclosed in the table below:
end of year 2007 end of year 2006

up to 1 year 12 130 0
over 1 year and up to 5 years 26 888 0
over 5 years — annual payment amount 1438 0

Lease payments include only the rent for the building of the Head Office of ING Bank Slaski S.A.. They do not include any
payments due to the rent of parking spaces, additional rent for investment outlays, or fees for services and electric energy.

47. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash disclosed in the balance sheet as
well as current accounts and overnight deposits in other banks.

end of year 2007 end of year 2006

- Cash in hand and balances with the Central Bank (presented in note 13) 678 067 508 245
- Accounts with other banks (presented in note 13) 1163 653 639 646
- Current accounts with other banks (presented in note 14) 381 145 277 596
- O/N deposits with other banks (presented in note 14) 2 605 319 6 747 465
- Other receivables (presented in note 14) 9532 1572

Total 4837716 8174 524
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Explanation of the classification of Bank’s activit ies into operating, investment and financial activi ties in the cash
flow statement

Operating activities include core activities of the Bank, not classified as investment and financial activities.

Investment activities consist in purchasing and selling shares in controlled entities as well as purchasing and selling
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment. Inflows from investing activities concerning also the dividend received.

Financial activities refer to long-term (over 1 year) financial operations with financial entities. Inflows from financial
activities indicate sources of financing of the Bank, including e.g. long-term loans and advances from other banks, as well
as financial entities other than banks. Outflows from financial activities refer mainly to repayment of long-term liabilities
(e.g. received loans) by the Bank and payment of dividends to the owners and other outflows due to profit distribution.

Reasons for differences between changes in some bal  ance sheet items and changes in these items disclos  ed in
the cash flow statement

end of year 2007

changes differences,
i L 1 2 3 4 5 6
in balance in cash flow —— ) ) ) ) ) )
sheet
- Change in loans and other receivables to other banks -1 678 605 -5778 216 -4 099 611 -68 974 | -4 030 637
- Change in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -803 003 -840 844 -37 841 -37841
- Change in available-for-sale financial assets 4067 111 3976 028 -91 083 101 338 -192 421
- Change in held-to-maturity financial assets -840 776 -850 837 -10 061 -10 061
- Change in loans and other receivables to customers -3 087 297 -3071379 15918 15918
- Change in liabilities due to other banks 412 044 -276 799 -688 843 7157 -696 000
- Change in liabilities due to customers 5 875 756 5896 716 20 960 1661 19 299 0
end of year 2006
changes .
differences
i L 1 2 & 4 5 6)
inbalance | o of which: ) ) ) ) ) )
sheet

- Change in loans and other receivables to other banks -933 673 2287128 3220801 -12189| 3232990
- Change in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -900 345 -918 800 -18 455 -18 455
- Change in available-for-sale financial assets -1692 701 -1611 180 81521 124 487 -42 966
- Change in loans and other receivables to customers -3019 919 -3 025 568 -5 649 -5 649
- Change in liabilities due to other banks 523 201 751 048 227847 -4 153 232 000
- Change in liabilities due to customers 5748413 5791 438 43 025 -8 725 51 607 143

Explanations

1) Changes in the individual assets and liabilities were adjusted with interest disclosed in the position “Interest received/
paid”.

2) From the position “Change in loans and other receivables extended to other banks” a change in the receivables being
an equivalent of cash (current accounts and O/N deposits at other banks) was excluded; it was disclosed in the position
“Net cash increase / decrease”.

3) “Change in financial assets available for sale” does not account for the part of financial assets valuation that was carried
through equity (valuation allowance for financial assets available for sale).

4) In the position “Change in amounts due to other banks”, a change in the amounts due to the Central Bank was
recognised.

5) From the position “Change in amounts due to clients” a change in amounts due under long-term loans (above 1Y)
received from other financial institutions was excluded; it was disclosed in the part concerning the financial activity in the
position “Repayment of long-term loans”.

6) From the position “Change in amounts due to clients” a change in amounts due under long-term loans received from
other financial institutions following fx differences was excluded; it was disclosed in the position “Unrealised profit (loss)
due to fx differences”.
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50. Related entities

Subsidiaries and Related Entities of ING Ba&hdski:

- ING Securities S.A.

- ING BSK Development Sp. z o0.0.

- Solver Sp. z o.0.

- ING NN Polska PTE S.A.

- Centrum Bank$laskiego (CBS) Sp. z 0.0. in liquidation
- ING Bank Hipoteczny S.A.

as part of their business hold current accountdl@ Bank Slaski, via which they perform standard
clearing operations and also invest cash fundsgus$érm deposits. Furthermore, ING Bank
Hipoteczny took loans from ING Barfaski. Similarly, ING BankSlaski maintains bank accounts of
other members of ING Group, for instance ING LeéReland), ING Car Lease, ING Nationale-
Nederlanden and ING Real Estate. The transactiagthstiae above entities are performed on an arm’s
length basis.

ING Bank Slaski performs operations with ING Bank NV and itsbsidiaries on the inter-bank
market. These are both short-term deposits and ]@mwell as operations in derivatives: Forex Spot
and Forex Forward, FX options and SWAP transactidhey are all performed on the arm’s length
basis.

There were also other transactions between theciagso entities and ING BanRlaski. They
originated from agreements concluded as to co-tiperasublease of premises, lease of equipment,
data processing, employees’ insurance contributiteesing of non-current assets and intangible
assets as well as car fleet leasing and management.

In the period 1.01.2007 — 31.12.2007 the followimgnsactions were made of the total value
exceeding EURO 500,000:

- In connection with execution of the Co-operatiorrégment concluded by ING BaSkaski S.A.
and ING Bank NV the remuneration for the servicesviged as to financial consulting
in 12 months 2007 amounted to PLN 44.7 million \n€bllowing the implementation of the
agreement for provision of data processing anchiire information analysis services, concluded
by and between ING BanKlaski S.A. and ING Bank NV, the fee for data procegsand
financial information analysis services used by IB&nk Slaski amounted to PLN 10.9 million
(net).

- Under the agreement of lease of office rooms inlihigding owned by CBS until the end of
October 2007, ING BanKlaski paid a rent for 10 months of 2007 (through INEBK
Development) of PLN 17.9 million (gross) in monthhstalments. In addition, the Bank paid
PLN 1.6 million for adaptation works.

- ING Services Polska provides services to ING B&hski in regard to lease of hardware
resources. The costs of service were PLN 18.7anillgross).

- ING BankSlaski made a transaction with ING Lease due to sskle functional rooms totalling
PLN 15.2 million (gross).

- ING Bank Slaski co-operates with ING Car Lease as to leasingan$ and management of car
fleet. The derivative amount of payment was PLN8Tillion in 12 months 2007.
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Transactions with related parties (in PLN thousands) 31.12.2007
Parent company Other IN.C? Group Subsidigry Associa.ted

entities undertakings undertakings
Balances of receivables and payables
Deposits given 5648 202 759 199 -
Loans - 1239 202 111 420 -
Deposits taken (current & term) 475 584 147 160 260077 25 186
Securities - - 30306 -
Other receivables 74 836 19 267 2 891
Other liabilities - 3586 218
Off-balance sheet commitments and transactions
Guarantees issued 297 158 266 516
Guarantees received 1548 243 -
Undrawn credit lines granted 215 489 1539 597 172 027
FX spot 18 324 755 3567 716 -
FX forward 697 396 284 620
IRS/CIRS 28 436 925 507 509
FRA 1551 148 300 088
Options 886 291 311 857
Income and expenses
Income 711 268 40 103 17 058 202
Expenses 858 629 57 888 29 585 2408
Transactions with related parties (in PLN thousands) 31.12.2006

Parent company Other ING Group Subsidigry AssociaFed

entities undertakings undertakings
Balances of receivables and payables
Deposits given 2875621 452 874 - -
Loans - 950 817 370 983 -
Deposits taken (current & term) 236 360 225935 359 137 123 129
Securities - - 41 959 -
Other receivables 15 923 2 007 2715 -
Other liabilities - 13419 14 -
Off-balance sheet commitments and transactions
Guarantees issued 482 517 206 155 - 202
Guarantees received 1850 580 - - -
Undrawn credit lines granted 230 339 1437 135 305 576 -
FX spot 21928 730 2 664 027 - -
FX forward 2 638 1430478 - -
IRS/CIRS 23 419 946 70 321 - -
FRA 4 289 330 - - -
Options 853 227 32 805 - -
Income and expenses
Income 795 005 31 242 16 109 341
Expenses 696 191 28 141 30 590 2943

51. Transactions with the management staff and employees

Employees of the ING Banglaski S.A. are granted loans on the same terms anditans as the
customers of the Bank (no preferential loans foplegees exist). Loans for employees disclosed in
the amount of loans for customers as of 31.12.200Funted to PLN 58,226 thousand.

Granting of a loan, cash advance, bank guarantdesarety for the Bank's management staff
members is regulated in a separate procedure andamed in accordance with the Ordinance of the
President of ING BanKlaski S.A.

The financial statements for 2007 contain the lpaash advances, bank guarantees and sureties for

the Bank’s management staff (within the meaninghdicle 79 of the Banking Law) amounting to
PLN 20,373 thousand.
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The employees may use various forms of social tasgie within the framework of Internal Social
Benefit Funds established in the Bank. The balasfcmoney advances granted from the Internal
Social Benefit Funds as of 31.12.2007 amountd.td 5,961 thousand.

Remuneration paid in 2007 to the Members of the Management Board and Supervisory Board
of ING Bank Slaski SA.

Remuneration to the Members of the Management B@aféLN thousand)

Year Emoluments and| Benefits Total
bonuses
2007 10610 4052 14 662
2006 11 640 4 567 16 207

The total amount of remuneration and bonuses paitle for 2007 presented above constitutes the
gross amount of remuneration paid or due and payfablthe period from January to December 2007
and the 2006 bonus, which was paid out in 200featdtal amount of PLN 3,743 thousand.

The members of the Management Board have signeecaropetition agreements after they stop
holding their function on the Bank’'s Management ilodn the event that a Management Board is not
renominated for another term of office or is reg@dlfrom his/ her function, he or she is entitled to
severance pay. Information on allowances owindhéoNanagement Board Members is contained in
their employment contracts and shall be paid onlgdase of termination of the employment contract
by the Bank due to other reasons than those gngego termination without notice.

Remuneration paid to the Members of the Supervi®ogrd of ING BankSlaski S.A. (in PLN

thousand)
Year Remuneration and Benefits Total
bonuses
2007 548 0 548
2006 931 0 931

The Management Board Members and other personsogetplby ING BankSlaski S.A. do not
receive any remuneration for performing functiomsthe governing bodies of subsidiaries and
associates of the ING Baiskaski S.A. Group.

As regards members of the Bank Supervisory Bodwal following individuals have held shares of
ING Bank Slaski: Mr. Mirostaw Kgmider — 3 shares; Mr. Wojciech Popiotek — 9 shafé® other
members of the Bank Management Board and the Bapkr8isory Board do not hold any shares of
ING BankSlaski S.A.

52. Events after the balance sheet date

On 29.02.2008, the Bank was advised that at theoér@D07 Commercial Union Otwarty Fundusz
Emerytainy BPH CU WBK owned 696,926 shares of IN&nBSIaski S.A., representing 5.36%
shares and votes at the General Shareholders MgeBgfore that, the Bank was in the possession of
information to the effect that the Company owne@,800 shares, representing 6.15% of the overall
number of shares and votes at GSM.

53. ChangestotheBusiness Entity / Capital Group Structure

On 19 September 2007, ING BaSkaski S.A. concluded an agreement to purchase thestoi
Centrum BankuwSlaskiego Sp. z 0.0. from BUILDCO SA, Avenue Pastelir-Z311 Luxembourg.
The subject of the agreement was 36,716 shareacef ¥alue PLN 1,000 each, and total value
of PLN 36,716,000, or 40% of the initial capital @&ntrum BankiSlaskiego Spétka z ograniczen
odpowiedzialnécia. ING Bank Slaski S.A. holds 100% of shares in the company INGKBS
Development Sp. z 0.0. ING BSK Development Sp. @ bolds 60% of shares in the company
Centrum BankSlaskiego Sp. z 0.0. Upon the transaction conclud@, BankSlaski S.A. controls,
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directly and indirectly, 100% of the initial cagitsf Centrum Banki$laskiego Sp. z 0.0.

On October 31, 2007 the ING Baskaski S.A. (“the Bank”) has signed an agreement tipase
business enterprise of Centrum Barstaskiego Sp. z 0. 0. (“Company”, “Entity”) togetheitkvall
liabilities inseparably connected with the openasicof the Entity. The seller is Centrum Banku
Slaskiego Sp. z 0. 0. and the subject of the agreenmmgtitutes the business enterprise of Centrum
BankuSlaskiego Sp. z 0. 0., Chorzowska St., 50, Katowidee €ntity’s enterprise comprises of i.e.
two real estate properties located in Katowiceicefbuilding “Chorzowska 50” and headquarters of
ING BankSlaski S.A. located at Sokolska St., 34.

At the Extraordinary Meeting of Partners of Centranku Slaskiego Sp. z 0.0. held on 23
November 2007, a resolution was passed on disgplid putting the Company into the state of
liquidation as of 1 December 2007.

The Extraordinary Partners Meeting of Solver Spo.a. was held on 30 November 2007.
The Partners resolved to increase the Company’'sestapital by PLN 1,188,000, from PLN
8,374,000.00 to PLN 9,562,000.00 by issuing 2,3 mqual and indivisible shares with face
value of PLN 500 each. One of the partners, the RIGChildren Foundation, waived its pre-
emption right to the new shares in the increasedesleapital of the Company. All new shares
were covered in full by ING Banklaski S.A. with an in-kind contribution of the Rectiea
Centre in G&binéw (Province of Opole). The market value of tRecreation Centre as at the
contribution date was PLN 1,188,000.00. The rai¢he share capital changed the ownership
structure of the Company — the share of ING Bahiski S.A. in the share capital of Solver went
up from 79.79% to 82.30%.
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Risk Management in ING BankSlaski S.A.

All of the Bank’s operations involve the analysissessment and management of certain types of risk
or their combination. The most important typesisk generated by financial assets include: theitred
risk, liquidity risk and market risk that incorptea the FX risk, interest rate risk and pricing.ris
Presented below is a description of managementl dhe risk types that are significant from the
Bank’s perspective.

Credit Risk Management

1. Definition of Credit Risk

Credit risk is the possibility of non-collection amounts due to the Bank under extended credit and
credit-related facilities, leading to lack of incerand/ or a financial loss.

The credit losses are a derivative of risk and mmegstaken by the Bank to reduce them. The Bank
influences the level of losses by the level of itskccepts, the amount of exposure at risk, toarity
against the risk borne and also — in case of riakerralisation — by direct actions taken to minenis

the losses.
In view of the above, credit risk management coteesfollowing elements:
- Risk identification and assessment.
- Risk measurement and monitoring.
- Risk mitigation and prevention.
- Development of tools supporting risk identificatiand measurement.
- Provisioning policy.
The credit risk management area refers to: thegpadipn and launch of a credit product, the end-to-
end lending process and all units involved in thoseesses.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006

- Loans and receivables to other banks 15238 78 13560 173
- Financial assets measured at fair value thrquigfit and loss 7 869 034 7 066 031
- Investments 9418 393 12 644 728

- Derivative hedge instruments 4572 0
- Loans and receivables to customers 16 049 702 12 962 405
- Extended contingent liabilities, including: 12 976028 13 817 405

- credit card limits 590 568 660 563

- unutilised credit lines 6 754 958 6217 846

- unutilised overdraft facilities 2334841 1790 166

- guarantees and letters of credit 2082433 1442 705

- third-party deposits 1213228 3706 125
Total 61 556 507 60 050 742
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2. Organisational Structure of Risk Management

For credit risk management, the organisational citre of the Bank includes the following
organisational units:

— Supervisory Board of the Bank,

- Management Board of the Bank together with the i€feolicy Committee that approve certain
internal risk-related normative acts as part oirthewers,

— Credit Policy, Procedures and Strategic Projecfsaeent,
— Risk Modelling, Monitoring and Reporting Department

— Transactions Management and Approval Strategicn@ieand Country Risk Management
Department,

— Transaction Approval and Management for North Depant
— Transaction Approval and Management for South Diepent
- Retail Credit Risk Management Department,

— Problems Loans Department,

— Credit Risk Inspection Department,

— Operational units and credit analysts,

- Internal Audit Department.

The mission of these units is to ensure propernicaldbetween the commercial objectives of ING
BankSlaski S.A. and a risk appetite level that is accdptédr the Bank, while taking account of the
existing economic environment.

This objective is achieved by taking the followiacfions:

- developing the principles of credit policy, as walprocesses and procedures for acceptance of the
permissible credit risk level towards entreprenearsd business partners; supporting the
development of tools for risk identification and asarement; enforcing the implementation of
credit decisions; establishing provisions for credsk, and initiating changes that may be
necessary to manage the credit process,

- conducting credit analysis and taking credit decisj

- raising the level of credit- and counterparty @skareness among the Bank’'s employees in order to
mitigate those risks,

— managing problem loans to minimise the risk andde®f the Bank,

- conducting an independent and objective assessdafetite effectiveness, appropriateness and
efficiency of the Bank’s internal audit system, leheénsuring the identification of weaknesses or
gaps in its organisation and functioning.

The commercial functions are separated from thetfons assessing the transaction- and client risk
(the four-eye control principles).

Presented below in more detail are the roles aspbresibilities of the individual organisational tsni
involved in the credit risk management procesdl@ BankSlaski S.A.

1.1 Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board assess on a periodic basiadbomplishment by the Management Board of
the Bank’s credit risk management assumptions tategy.
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1.2 Management Board

The Management Board of ING Bafkski S.A.:

— approve the Credit Policy that defines the strategiproach to credit risk and the acceptable risk
level,

— appoint and approve the composition of the CredliclP Committee through which it ensures
ongoing oversight of the credit risk managementess,

— provide periodic reports, at least once a yeath¢oBank’s Supervisory Board regarding the risk
level and profile, as well as amendments to thaliCRolicy,

— promote implementation and execution of the Cré&dilicy by actions taken by the individual
members of the Management Board in charge of tlespective subordinate areas. Among the
members of the Management Board, there is a Chis} Rfficer who oversees the credit- and
market risk management.

- review the efficiency of methods used for identifyiimpaired credit exposures and defining the
related write-offs; assess the adequacy and satsitif the methods to changes of external
conditions,

— review the processes and the methods of monitdhniagjuality of credit exposures.

1.3 Committees

The following permanent committees are in placéhatBank whose powers include the credit risk
areas:

— Credit Policy Committee (or KPK) whose key objeetig to oversee the implementation and
control the adherence of the organisational unit$NG Bank Slaski S.A. to the “Credit
Policy Rules”,

— Credit Committees:
- of ING BankSlaski S.A. (the Bank Credit Committee, or KKB),
- of the Bank Head Office (the Head Office Credit Quittee, or KKC),
- of the Region,
— the Restructuring Committee.

In the strategic clients area decisions are taketwo individuals authorised by the Credit Policy
Committee, or KPK.

1.4 Credit- and Market Risk Management Division

There is a separate division for the credit- andketarisk management in the organisational strectur
of the Bank.

The mission of the Credit- and Market Risk Managenigvision is to maintain an adequate level of
the credit- and market risk at the Bank.

The division is headed by the Bank Executive Doesubordinated and reporting to the Chief Risk
Officer.

The Bank Executive Director (Division Director) egees, among other things, departments whose
function includes system management of the Banieditrisk, including:

— Credit Policy, Procedures and Strategic ProjectsaDenent,
- Risk Modelling, Monitoring and Reporting Department
— Retail Credit Risk Management Department,

Within the above departments, there are units/ seaesponsible for the policy and procedures,
examination and modelling of the credit risk, adlae the monitoring and reporting of the credskri
of the portfolio.
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The tasks of the individual departments involvethia credit risk management process are as follows:

15

1.6

1.7

1.8

Credit Policy, Procedures and Strategic ProjestPolicy Department

to develop effective systems for credit risk mamaget by maintenance and expansion of the
credit policy principles and description of proessnd procedures in order to ensure a proper
balance between the current commercial objectifethe Bank and the adequate awareness
level/ risk appetite level, while taking accountioé market conditions in Poland,

to ensure effective functioning of the risk ared arocess, in line with the current conditions, by
management, participation in projects, modelling dinganisation, review of processes, reacting
to the needs of the front office, operations, immatation of the requests of the Bank
Management Board and ING Group Head Office.

Risk Modelling, Monitoring and Reporting Department

to define and produce management reporting iniskearea.

to support the management of the client and copakir credit risk and the transaction risk by
developing tools used for the risk identificatiomdameasurement, monitoring and reporting in
respect of the credit portfolio quality, making eeanendations concerning the provisions for
credit risk; supporting the units managing the rdli@and counterparty credit risk and the
transaction risk in regard to the legal and adrriaii®n items.

Transactions Management and Approval Strategi€lients and Country Risk Management
Department, Transaction Approval and Management forNorth Department/ Transaction
Approval and Management for South Department

to manage the credit risk related to client fundiygoroviding advice in respect of the risk in the
process of taking credit decisions, executing ¢tréeicisions, recommending required changes in
the credit process management.

to supply important data for the credit policy piples as well as processes and procedures in
order to accept the acceptable level of the whidedint risk.

to raise the level of credit- and counterparty askareness among the Bank’s employees in order
to mitigate those risks.

to recommend the level of provisions and necesshanges in the management of credit
processes and defining products and credit patieyder to mitigate the risk.

Retail Credit Risk Management Department

managing the credit risk via: measurement of mskel, defining the criteria of risk acceptance,
monitoring the quality of credit portfolio, evalirag potential losses, recommending the financial
provisions and necessary changes in managing ¢dé process, definitions of products, credit
policy having in view decreasing the risk,

valuing current and expected risk level for fixithg risk appetite,
development and up-dating calculation models ddit@apacity,

initiating the preparing and up-dating of statistt@weptance models (scoring cards for retail
credits) and its implementation,

creating and implementing the impairment rules,

increasing, among Bank employees, credit risk donsoess, possibilities and methods of its
reducing.
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1.9 Problem Loans Department

— to manage problem (wholesale) loans aimed at maaititin of risk and losses for the Bank,
resulting from the non-performing portfolio,

— to co-operate with the Regional Risk Managementi&es (WZR) and Front Office units in
respect of debt recovery and restructuring of pnobloans,

— to exercise functional supervision over the RedidRek Management Sections (WZR) in
respect for restructuring and recovery of probleamk.

1.10 Credit Risk Inspection Department

- to verify on a regular’basis the credit documeatatind assess the functioning of the credit
process at ING BanlSlaski S.A. at the front-office and back-office levelhe ability to
recommend changes to the existing policies andegees to the Credit Policy Committee),

- to analyse selected loans and adequacy of locl R&agement during regular inspections at
the Bank organisational units;

- to identify potentially problematic areas and rexpto the signals coming from the organisation;

— to control the adherence to the transaction apprenizria; the process of loan disbursement;
behaviour patters/ statistics regarding repaymestasistics of overdue repayments; adequacy of
monitoring of exposures and risk categories; armdectness of the credit data entered in the IT
system and debt collection.

1.11  Operational Units and Credit Analysts

They represent expert knowledge on the risk charatts of clients

1.12 Internal Audit Department (IAD)

The key mission of IAD is to provide the Bank Maaagent Board with an independent and objective
assessment of the appropriateness and efficientiieoBank’s internal audit system, ensuring the
identification of weaknesses or gaps in its orgatios and functioning.

The Internal Audit Department carries out reguladits of the Corporate Governance Model, credit
risk policy and procedures. Its observations (togetvith the proposed changes to the policy and
procedures) are then translated into a plan obmastthat need to be taken before approval by the
Credit Policy Committee.

The predominant objective of IAD is to identify thisks existing in the Bank’s operations and to
assess and propose actions enhancing control andgemment of those risks. By its activities, IAD
contributes to improving the organisation and managnt of the Bank and to accomplishing the
objectives set by the Bank.

The scope of IAD operations covers the whole bssiraperations conducted by ING BSK, all of its
organisational cells and units, as well as themsgdional units of the capital group of ING BSK.

3. Credit Decision — Making Process

Decision-taking powers in the individual credit eas(credit committees at different levels) are
separated from the decisions concerning the cpedlity and risk management.

Decisions at all levels (except Strategic Clierasg taken jointly by credit committees whose
operations are defined in more detail in their eesipe by-laws; joint decision-taking does not asle
any member of the decision-taking process fromqueisresponsibility for the decisions taken. As
regards the Strategic Clients, credit decisionscenring that area are taken by two authorised
individuals (SAP), as set out in the Credit Instiart for Strategic Clients.
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The authority level is co-related with the levelapédit risk arising from the client risk and frahe
transaction risk. As the credit risk rises, theisleas are taken by collective bodies who — byrthei
nature — have more extensive experience, and hieustility of broad and thorough risk identificatjo

it is also permitted that credit decisions be takgriwo authorised individuals for lower exposuires
areas other than Strategic Clients.

Decision-taking level for credit decisions concagregular credit exposures is determined based on
the client’s risk grade and the following elements:

— the total exposure of ING Bartkdaski SA Group towards the debtor and the memberhef
capital group (within Article 3 paragraph 1 item d#the Accounting Act of 29 September 1994)
of which the debtor is also the member, as wedlrdgies related to the debtor by personal ties by
spouses (only when the Bank funds an entreprenkarisva private individual),

— the subject matter of the credit decision in questi
4. Reviews and Credit Risk Rating

Commercial functions who grant credits are sepdrftan the process of transaction- and client risk
rating (four-eye control principle). Credit riskriated (by the Risk Manager) based on the prin@ple
separation from the commercial functions (Relatm#/anager).

The following parties are involved in the procefsigk rating: Rating Owner (Relationship Manager)
and Risk Manager.

The Rating Owner inputs the financial data relatethe client and has exclusive responsibilitytfor
correctness of the risk rating, including Review.

There is only one owner of a borrower’s risk ratimge credit restructuring unit may become a rating
owner for borrowers rated 18 to 22. The Rating Qwereates a draft rating, using the appropriate
Rating Model for a specific target client group.eTiser may deviate from the suggested model if he
or she provides the appropriate written justificati

The final rating is determined by the Risk Managery the Appeal Committee if an appeal has been
made.

The Risk Manager is responsible for:

- Verifying that the appropriate rating model hasrbased for the borrower;
- Verifying that financial and non-financial data ergd are correct;

— Challenging un-audited financial data;

- Finalizing the rating.

The outcomes of specific models may be subjectrlidrary adjustments in that the ultimate rating
grades are determined as part of the appeal process

A one notch difference (positive or negative) betwéhe rating calculated by the rating model ard th
view of the appellant (the person initiating anegipis sufficient to start a rating appeal.

Reasons for a rating appeal are for example:
— The rating model is not appropriate for the Borrgvead/or

— Circumstances that may not (yet) be captured byatiweg model but which are likely to have a
(usually negative) effect on the borrower’s PD,ezsally if:

— Borrower has or is expected to default on any fiigrobligation to any party;
— Major disruption of activities;
— Change in legislation that will seriously impact financial performance.

By the end of 2007 Bank introduced model dedicdteédssessment of credit risk inferring from
specialized lending in terms of financing incomedhrcing real estates (IPRE Model). On the basis of
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the model, each credit transaction, fulfilling sjied criteria, is to be assigned to one of five
supervisory risk category

Additionally, in December 2007 the implementatidnld system in corporate network, utilized in
whole ING Group, was completed. The system suppoedit risk assessment process and enables, as
well, centralized gathering data on risk ratingdg=of obligors.

4.1 Frequency of Risk Rating Reviews and Updated @ny)

Only the Rating Owner can review the risk ratingeTollowing rules will apply to rating reviews:

— A risk rating must be reviewed at least annuallyrigk rating is considered overdue after 12
months from the last approval date of the risknga{il8 months for Strategic Clients),

— The Rating Owner should take appropriate actiogitiver review or cancel the risk rating if the
Bank has terminated the relationship with the Beaoand no credit risk remains. The Rating
Owner should perform an interim re-rating when tlsdue of one or more risk drivers has
materially changed. Events that could cause a deration for a re-rating are for example a
change of risk rating of the influencing parentarthange of any of the qualitative risk drivers,

— Without a review, a risk rating will automaticaliypire,
— The following risk ratings are excluded from autdimaxpiry:
— Manually set risk ratings;
- Risk ratings 14 - 22;
— Central Government and Country risk ratings;
— Risk ratings of ING Group, ING Insurance, and IN&R entities.

5. Concentration Limits

To mitigate the concentration risk, the Bank obssrthe following exposure concentration limits as
defined in Article 71 of the Banking Law Act:

- 20% of the Bank’s own funds — for exposures totiastirelated to the Bank,
- 25% of the Bank’s own funds — for exposures to o#mtities,

— 800% of the Bank’s own funds — for the aggregatewh of the Bank’s “large” exposures, i.e.
exposures exceeding 10% of the Bank’s own funds.

Furthermore, in keeping with the statutory ruled asmcommendations of the Banking Regulator, the
Bank sets internal concentration limits for expesuo specific sectors, the collaterals acceptadijta
monitors on a regular basis the concentration ¢eirelthe geographical areas of its operations (the
Regions).

The Bank sets the statutory concentration limitsaamonthly basis. Based on the data verified, the
Bank prepares a report covering the up-to-datenbalaf the Bank's own funds and the individual

statutory limits. The report is then distributed g the Bank units concerned, including among
others: the Corporate Banking Centres, the RegBraiches, the departments of the Credit Division,
Risk Division and the Internal Audit Department.eTRegional Branches re-distribute the report
among their respective subordinate units.

The Bank monitors the utilisation of limits by pegmg a specification of clients and groups of teda
clients, and by comparing their existing exposorthe current limits.

On the operational level, the control of concetratimits is performed during the writing of credi
applications, approving specific transactions agdoglic reviews.
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To avoid excessive credit risk concentration in $leetors, the Bank monitors the exposures in the
individual economy sectors. Based on analyseB#mk sets the desired directions where its exposure
should increase, and the sectors with unfavourdelelopment perspectives in which the exposure
should be lowered.

The above tasks also include among other thingddtermination of limits for groups of sectors with
a material share in the Bank’s portfolio, i.e. wdstal share in the entire credit portfolio isward
60%, and the individual share of a given sectdh@corporate portfolio is in excess of 5%. Linids

the individual sectors are determined by the Crediicy Committee.

Exposure concentration in the geographical areasistored according to the regional division into
the branch network. A 20% limit of the Bank’s topairtfolio is adopted for controlling concentration
at the level of Regions. Exceeding this limit magder setting a geographical limit.

However, since geographical concentration is marat does not increase the credit risk, so far there
has been no need for ING Basllaski to set geographical limits.

Considering the potential risk level, the Bankanlced limits for mortgage loans in accordance with
Recommendation S of the Banking Supervision Conionider the following types of facilities:

- loans with low down-payment (insured)

- newly granted loans indexed to foreign exchange rat

- loans secured with mortgage

- housing loans

Adherence to the statutory and internal concentmagiandards is the subject of a monthly risk repor
distributed among the Management Board, Creditcdiommittee and Regional Managers. The
report is also presented to the Supervisory BoathdeoBank on a periodic basis.

6. Repayment Security and Other Forms of Credit Risk Mtigation

Even though repayment security is a major factat #fiows the Bank to mitigate the lending risksit
the Group’s policy to extend loans in amounts amdeosms that allow for regular repayment without
the need to recover the receivables by liquidatiegsecurity.

The Bank accepts all types of repayment securityiteed by the law; however, the choice in specific
cases is conditioned by various factors, includmpgarticular:

— the client’s ability to offer specific types of sgity

- the type and duration of exposure

- the level of client’s risk

- the level of transaction’s risk

- the liquidity of security offered (the ability t@sh it easily)
- the collateral value

Following the changes resulting from introducingoithe Polish Law - by virtue of the Banking
Supervision Commission (KNB) Resolution No. 1/2Gfated 13 March 2007 - the precepts of the
New Capital Agreement, the Bank’s internal regolagi have been adjusted to the requirements of the
Resolution and, concurrently, also the techniquesredit risk reduction. The ne®ollateral Policy
implemented within the Bank covers, among othées following areas:

- indicates the criteria for accepting the collatérathe capital requirement for credit risk
calculation process,

- lays down the general rules for the Bank to obseviien choosing the collateral forms,
inclusive of the acceptable credit risk level,

— adjusts the collateral-related procedures to thairements of the new LGD models that are
in harmony with the advanced internal ratings’ metfthe so-called AIRB).
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The Collateral Policy takes into account in patacthose aspects of the Resolution No. 1/2007 lwhic
concern the application of LGD models, legal religbof security and its monitoring. The proceds o
security review according to the new regulatiokesaplace gradually and shall be finished in thst fi
half of 2008.

The LGD models developed for corporate assetsasecdon statistically estimated recovery ratios for
specific groups of security. The estimations aselaon an analysis of historical recovery proceases
the Bank. The rates of recover for specific typeseaurity determine their fair value.

The recovery rate for a specific type of securgpends on the character of the security item,gal |
form of the security and the efficiency of the siguliquidation process. The final level of the
recovery is also influenced by the costs of deliecton and the costs of keeping a classified
exposure in the Bank’s books (until the debt i®veced or cancelled).

Apart from the classic types of security (tangibled personal), the Bank also applies additional
instruments to mitigate the risk of loss, namelgiiadnal covenants in loan agreements. As parhef t
basic, or standard, covenants, the Bank applieiegiee and financial clauses. The scope of the
covenant or combination of covenants to be appleggends on: the term, type of lending product, the
specific organisational and legal form or the bessobjects of the borrower, the risk rating of the
client. By including certain covenants in the ctedjreements, the Bank is sometimes able to give up
some or all of the repayment security.

The structure of individual security types is daified.
The following types of collateral have the biggelsare:

— suretyships and corporate guarantees — there arargars from different industry sectors
with different economic and financial standing witlthis group. Therefore, there is no
significant risk in terms of concentration. In cageassuming a specific recovery ratio from
collateral, greater than 0%, it is necessary tonéxa the economic and financial standing of
the guarantor and determine the risk rating assimvent or speculative.

— mortgages — this is due to the fact that mortgagesally secure long-term investment loans.
Furthermore, mortgages are the main security famgdo finance commercial real estate.

7. Exposure Classification Methodology
7.1 Corporate Client Credit Receivables

Credit Impairment Recognition

The events that provide the basis for credit impait recognition are the events that occurred in
respect of a certain asset or a group of assetshamdffected in a negative manner the amount of
expected cash flows. The Bank adopted the folloviistgof impairment events for corporate credit
receivables:

— Bankruptcy/ threat of bankruptcy: the Borrower wasnounced or will soon be announced
bankrupt (whether by the Bank, by third party oritsnown initiative), which will result in failure
to repay or delay in repayment;

— Default in repayment: the Borrower stopped to regbayprincipal or interest/ commission and the
said default lasts:
— For corporate clients (apart from financial ingtitns) — above 90 days;

— For financial institutions and government authesti O days or more; however, in that
case a 14-day explanation term is applied to deternvhether the default in payment is
caused by deterioration of the financial institottocredit standing or operational reasons.
Default in payment for operational reasons is mos@dered an impairment event..

— The Bank assesses that the borrower will facecditfy in repaying the debt: the Borrower has
such material financial problems that they can foe megative impact (probability of at least 50%)
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on future cash flows under a given credit recewalthe 1Y perspective is considered in the
assessment);

— Credit receivable restructuring not resulting fayngmercial reasons: due to the borrower’s
financial problems, the Bank restructured the ¢rexiposure, by granting facilities and exceptions
to the borrower, which resulted in reduction of firesent value of expected future cash flows
from the credit receivable below its balance value.

The case where occurrence of at least one of theeraéntioned events is declared stands for
appearance of impairment.

Customer Risk Class Determination

Each entity with the Bank’s credit exposure musteha rating assigned as is used in a standard
manner at the Bank. Determination of the custorisdr ¢lass forms an integral part of the Bank’s
credit risk evaluation process for corporate chent

For entrepreneurs’ exposures, the Bank uses a&ie gating, employed throughout ING Group. Its
classes present the debtor-related risk. The cestmnassigned to a given risk class based on the:

— financial model, using the data from the debtargiicial reports,
— evaluation of qualitative factors,
- financial standing of the parent company.

|nvestment Grade 1-10

Investment grade comprises the entities which veesssas encumbered with a relatively low risk;
however, in making risk classification, we take @aatt of the threats arising from economic and
business conditions.

Spoeculative Grade 11- 17

It is a group of a relatively large bucket of rigivels, and thus the characteristics of extremssela
within this group varies considerably. In genenad, may say that:

- the entities from top classes under this groupfaféling their financial obligations at present,
however the debt cover ratio (principal and intgreger a longer term is not certain, and thus the
safety margin is limited; there is real threat wddit risk growth due to unfavourable business or
economic conditions;

- the borrowers assigned to the top risk classes \{tbest classes from that group) can be
characterised by uncertain income perspectivessevguality of assets and over a longer term the
risk of equity mismatch and possibility of loss oaence.

Problem Loan Grade 18- 22

This risk group comprises the Borrowers who showegglicit symptoms of problems with debt
service or who are in the default situation.

Borrowers from the risk group (and also the onasgasd to class 17 or better, whose exposures are
covered by regulations are classified by Inten€laee Units only, managing a given client exposure.

For:

— strategic clients the global ING Group model is legapb— the debtor is assigned to one of 17
corporate client risk classes in the brackets fitoim 17,
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— corporate clients the local SME PD model is appliabe debtor is assigned to one of 10 corporate
client risk classes in the brackets from 8 to 17.

Corporate Credit Risk Management Tools

Further to the implementation of the Resolution W@007 by the Banking Supervision Commission,
whereby the stipulations of the CRD Directive imte of bank’s capital adequacy, compliant with the
New Capital Accord (Basel II) were instituted, tBank took several actions in the credit risk
management area in respect of the scope and digeiteiples of capital requirements determination.
Following the ING Group’s decision to implement thdvanced Internal Rating Based Approach (or
AIRB), the Bank prepared and implemented local global models for basic risk parameters:

— PD (probability of default),

- LGD (loss given default),

— EAD (exposure at default)

for various classes of assets in line with AIRB.

Among others, the Bank uses the following ratingleis for corporate exposure classes:

— For local segment of Strategic clients recognisedustomers with annual revenues above EUR
100M

— Global risk rating model (statistical PD model)sed on the global ING Group approach,

— Global LGD and EAD models (hybrid statistical-experodels), built on the ING Group
level.

— For local segments of Mid-sized and Big compan®ME asset class) with annual revenues from
PLN 800 ths. to EUR 100M):

— Local risk rating model (statistical SME PD modealgveloped in the Bank for Polish
companies,

— Local LGD and EAD models (hybrid statistical-experbdels), built in the Bank on the
basis of internal data and ING Group’s methodology.

Besides above, the Bank uses also global modelsefposures to banks and other financial
institutions and to sovereigns and local governsient

The models are employed to calculate the econoapdat allowing its level to be optimised. They
contribute to a better quantification of the cre@k for the Bank’s portfolio. It is on their basihat
the provisions under IFRS, the efficiency of Banyé&formance (RAROC, economic profit, goodwill
management) and credit prices are estimated, aotbeg positions.

While employing the risk models, the Bank makes afsadvanced IT systems supporting the client
and transaction risk rating process. An integrdd@ Group’s environment is the primary IT tool
used to manage credit risk. As this tool combirlegpglications needed to fully meet the New Cdpita
Accord requirements, it enables the Bank to mameseeffectively not only on the Bank’s Branch
level, but also on the level of individual relatatip manager’s portfolio.
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Credit exposure to corporate clients by risk grades

Exposure in PLN million

Risk rating 31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance
01 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0
02 0,0 2,3 0,0 0,0
03 1548,4 409,2 1389,0 621,1
04 0,0 2,0 0,0 45,8
05 0,0 4,7 0,0 0,0
06 56,7 3,3 247,2 53,1
07 420,0 470,6 10,4 4,1
08 10179 596,7 251,9 681,9
09 1116,2 1104,9 248,1 725,0
10 792,3 1501,2 1357,8 1821,6
11 860,8 1094,6 655,1 704,1
12 1030,7 12739 879,0 1075,5
13 1444,2 13279 1261,0 860,9
14 1423,8 791,6 1816,1 778,1
15 13434 611,8 1 256,3 522,5
16 542,8 268,1 415,7 288,5
17 287,7 66,8 161,3 65,9
18 41,6 23,1 54,5 27,2
19 23,3 3,9 34,8 59
20 87,9 4.3 104,8 52
21 4,0 0,0 55 0,0
22 281,3 0,0 343,1 0,4
Total 12 323,0 9 560,9 10 491,6 8 286,8
Credit exposures to corporate clients by overdue days
Exposure in PLN million
N””L%iﬂgf,gays 31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance
0 11929,4 95423 10 067,7 82704
1-30 40,8 14,6 43,1 14,7
31-60 28,2 4,0 10,8 1,0
61-90 16,3 0,0 3,7 0,1
91-180 22,1 0,0 7,7 0,1
181-365 19,9 0,0 7,6 0,0
>365 266,3 0,0 351,0 0,5
Total 12 323,0 9 560,9 10 491,6 8 286,8
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Credit exposure to corporate clients under IBNR (Incurred But Not Reported) impairment provisions

by overdue days

Exposure in PLN million
Number of days
overdue 31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance

0 11 882,7 9540,9 9976,9 8 266,8
1-30 39,0 14,6 42,3 13,3
31-60 3,3 1,1 4.9 1,0
61-90 10,6 0,0 0,3 0,0
91-180 0,1 0,0 4,1 0,1
181-365 13,3 0,0 0,2 0,0
>365 0,8 0,0 9,5 0,0
Total 11 949,8 9 556,6 10 038,2 8 281,2

Credit exposure to corporate clients under 1SFA (Individually Sgnificant Financial Asset) impairment

provision by risk grades

Exposure in PLN million

Risk rating 31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance
20 75,8 3,0 83,0 1,6
22 195,0 0,0 258,6 0,0
Total 270,8 3,0 341,6 1,6

Credit exposure to corporate clients under 1SFA (Individually Sgnificant Financial Asset) i mpairment

provision by overdue days

Exposure in PLN million
Number of days
overdue 31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance

0 41,4 0,0 76,8 0,2
1-30 0,8 0,0 0,0 1,4
31-60 22,3 3,0 5,2 0,0
61-90 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0
91-180 17,5 0,0 0,0 0,0
181-365 4,5 0,0 0,0 0,0
>365 184,3 0,0 259,6 0,0
Total 270,8 3,0 341,6 1,6
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Credit exposure to corporate clients under INSFA (Individually Not-Sgnificant Financial Asset)
impair ment provision by risk grades

Exposure in PLN million
Risk rating 31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance
20 12,1 14 21,7 3,6
21 4,0 0,0 54 0,0
22 86,3 0,0 84,6 0,4
Total 102,4 1,4 111,7 4,0

Credit_exposure to corporate clients under INSFA (Individually Not-Sgnificant Financial Asset)
i mpairment provision by overdue days

Exposure in PLN million
Number of days
overdue 31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance

0 5,2 1,4 14,0 34
1-30 1,0 0,0 0,9 0,0
31-60 2,6 0,0 0,7 0,0
61-90 5,7 0,0 3,4 0,1
91-180 4,5 0,0 3,5 0,0
181-365 2,2 0,0 7,4 0,0
>365 81,2 0,0 81,8 0,5
Total 102,4 1,4 111,7 4,0

7.2 Credit Receivables of Retail Clients

The Bank regards all the retail receivables (fragividual and small business clients) as individual
non-significant as well as calculates and makesvagit charges and provisions pursuant to the
collective approach.

The expert methodology for estimation of charged provisions, inclusive of parameters used for
their calculation, is admissible if one of the doling prerequisites arises:

- the portfolio size and age and/or number of caségest to impairment in the period under
analysis is not sufficient for statistical or mattedical estimation,

— the data quality is insufficient for adequate eation of charges or provisions,

— an essential change took place in the Bank's ecan@mnvironment, level of risk appetite,
strategies adopted for receivables recovery,

— adopted statistical or mathematical methods ofredion do not correspond to the regulatory
requirements or those set by ING Group.

The justification behind the expert methodology asdessment of its results is verified separately f
each case and is subject to approval by the Ciratity Committee. The same principles are applied
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for the use of data and observations obtained fotimer institutions, inclusive of the data source
acceptance.

Loan impairment triggers

- the Borrower has stopped repaying the principalinderest/ commission and the delay in
repayment continues over 90 days. In case of oaftrticilities (personal accounts and current
accounts of small business clients) this condiiscapplicable only for exposures over PLN 200;

— with regard to consumer loans: the Borrower (irdlinail) has exposures other than the exposure in
question, which demonstrate the premises of impartnunder item 1 and all these exposures
belong to the group of consumer loans (hon-housitagtgage);

- with regard to housing/mortgage loans: the Borro(iedividual) has exposures other than the
exposure in question, which demonstrate the prenv$émpartment under item 1 and all these
exposures belong to the group of housing/ mortd@aes (non-consumer);

- the Borrower (small business) has exposures othan tthe exposure in question, which
demonstrate the premises of impartment under item 1

— upon impairment the Borrower correctly servicesdiebt; however, the period of correct service
is shorter than 3 months (for debt overdue by mgdo than 6 months);

— upon impairment the Borrower correctly servicesdbbt; however, the period of correct service
is shorter than 6 months (for debt overdue by lotigen 6 months);

— the Borrower has been or will be declared banksopn, which shall result in the failure to repay
the debt or delay in its repayment (the premisdiepjn particular to the borrowers from small
business segment);

- the credit agreement has been terminated;

— the credit receivables are covered with restrusturDue to financial difficulties experienced by
the borrower, the Bank restructured the credit sMp® by providing the borrower with convenient
solutions or concessions which result in reducheydurrent value of expected future cash flows
due to the credit receivables to the level belosvidhlance sheet value of these receivables. On the
other hand, the revision of lending terms for conuia reasons (inclusive of interest rate change
due to market conditions) does not constitute themgse for impairment. The restructuring
principles and method of their treatment from theinp of view of impairment charges
(provisions) are determined by separate procedures.

The starting point for grouping exposures into fodids pursuant to the collective approach are the
principles introduced by the New Capital Accorde(do-called Basel 1), which distinguish three basi
groups of retail products: renewable, mortgage emasumer loans. The risk drivers contingency
within a group constitutes the basis for groupifige product and its features function as the basic
grouping criteria. Criteria of the premises for eimment based on the Basle concept of “default”
derive from the product definition. Since the Baapkplies the scoring cards (statistical acceptance
models), the existing acceptance model constitartesdditional premise for grouping.

Additionally, the grouping is based on:

— type and definition of product,

- type of collateral,

— business positioning of product (e.g. separatigoroflucts not offered),
— other elements of acceptance model,

— organisation of credit process.

The separated portfolio should be characterised tBfevant number of cases to ensure the statistica
recurrence of phenomena. For the purpose of statismodels development it is assumed the
minimum number of cases in a given category (eefaudt) should amount to 300 per portfolio. For
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the parameters adopted based on historical obg®rsathis value should not be lower than 100. The
parameters accepted on the basis of smaller podfate subject to verification by experts.

For each portfolio we distinguish:

— IBNR part,

— impaired part,

— impaired — non risk part, also referred to as th@oBfolio (no further recovery expected).
The Bank applies the following criteria for distirighing the B portfolio:

- the following period has passed since the impaitnpeamises emergence: 24 months for the
portfolio of consumer and small business loanand@ths for housing loans,

— there are no premises of the debtor having eitheiricome sufficient to repay arrears or assets
from which the Bank could recover the receivabled there are no premises that this situation
would change in foreseeable future,

— the debtor is covered with bankruptcy procedurestaere are justified premises that the Bank
shall not recover any amount or shall recover imfiicant amounts within this process.

The collective approach to estimation and creatiboharges (provisions) is based on the principles
introduced by the New Capital Accord (the so-calBakel II) and the concept of expected loss. In
view of the fact that pursuant to IAS the provisare established for the actually incurred logs an
not the expected one, the Basle model parameterssabject to modification. The following
parameters are used for calculating the provisions:

— PD, or probability of default by the client detenail for each sub-portfolio of retail and Small
Business receivables,

— LGD, or loss given default recorded for receivabdssa result of their incomplete recovery,
determined for each sub-portfolio of retail and $MBasiness receivables,

- EAD, or exposure at default — the amount of curtesiince sheet exposure increased by the
balance sheet equivalents of unutilised credisline

The parameter modification derives from the facit tthe Basle model defines the probability of
expected loss in the period of next 12 months, edepursuant to IAS the provisions are established
for actual losses. The modification is related e period assumed for the loss to be recognised
(revealed, identified).

PD parameter is modified based on the concept efgence period, which generally is shorter than
12 months. The emergence period depends among @hehe following factors:

- segment to which the borrower is classified;
- type of product.

Adjustment of PD to the IAS requirements consistgdducing the parameter’'s time horizon and
pushing it closer to the current balance sheet date

For the retail and small business portfolio, the &&inition for product groups is based on the
estimation of probability for one of the followirtgises:

- the Borrower has stopped repaying the principahtarest for longer than 90 days;
— the Borrower will be declared bankrupt (applicaidléSmall Business);

— the credit agreement is terminated,;

— the receivables will be subject to restructuring;

PD calculated in this manner is mapped (allocated)dividual rating grades.
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According to Basel |ILGD parameter signifies the loss to be incurredh®gyBank at a given credit
exposure in case of the borrower’s solvency. LGQiven as a percentage of the exposure at the
moment of the borrower becoming insolvent (EAD). LGs a derivative of the adopted legal
collateral, i.e. type of collateral and its valliguidation).

LGD for the retail portfolio is calculated basedtbe quotient of discounted cash flows on accoant a
of the impairment till the report date and the sofrprincipal and interest due at the moment of
impairment.

The LGD parameter calculated in this manner issdpliby the estimated debt collection costs that
the Bank will have to incur due to the collaterquidation.

Cash flows upon the impairment date are discownitidinterest rate adopted for the entire portfolio

EAD in the Basle Model stands for the value of @regposure that shall arise in case of the clgent’
insolvency. In calculation of the expected lossspant to Basel Il, EAD means the sum of current
balance sheet exposure and statistically estin@ddf the off balance sheet exposure that themtli
shall draw by the insolvency date.

For needs of IAS, EAD at the client’s level isw@arent balance sheet exposure at the balance sheet
date, increased by the balance sheet equivaleoctgm@nt off balance sheet items.

The provisions value depends on the amount of expass well as PD and LGD parameters (PD for
the impaired portfolio is 100% and LGD for the Brifalio is 100 %).

Credit exposure to retail clients (individuals and small business) by overdue days

Exposure in PLN million
Number of days
overdue 31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance

0 4 228,9 2178,2 2870,6 1630,6
1-30 202,3 22,3 149,9 10,2
31-60 16,3 2,4 12,9 1,0
61-90 41,6 8,3 47,4 6,5
91-120 4,3 0,1 51 0,2
121-150 3,8 0,4 4,3 0,5
151-180 2,7 0,1 4,7 0,1
>180 77,6 0,7 148,3 0,6
Total 45775 22125 32432 1649,7

Credit exposure to retail clients (individuals and small business) under IBNR (Incurred But Not

Reported) impair ment provision by product type

Exposure in PLN million
Type of product 31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance
Mortgage loans 25442 478,1 1418,7 237,0
SME Loans 773,9 538,3 530,6 353,0
Other loans 1134,0 1187,2 1086,8 1052,0
Total 44521 2 203,6 3036,1 1642,0
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Credit exposure to retail clients (individuals and small business) under IBNR (Incurred But Not
Reported) impair ment provision by overdue days

Exposure in PLN million
Number of days
overdue 31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance
0 4 228,9 2178,2 2870,6 1630,6
1-30 202,3 22,3 149,9 10,2
31-60 16,3 2,4 12,9 1,0
61-90 4,6 0,7 2,7 0,2
Total 4452,1 2 203,6 3036,1 1642,0

Credit exposure to retail clients (individuals and small business) under INSFA (Individually Not-
Sgnificant Financial Asset) impairment provision by overdue days

Exposure in PLN million
Number of days
overdue 31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance
<90 37,0 7,6 44,7 6,3
91-120 4,3 0,1 51 0,2
121-150 3.8 0,4 4,3 0,5
151-180 2,7 0,1 4,7 0,1
>180 77,6 0,7 148,3 0,6
Total 125,4 8,9 207,1 7,7

8. Restructuring of credit exposures

In some cases, ING Barfdaski S.A. will work with an obligor and its othereditors (if any) to
restructure the obligor’'s business and its findralidigations in order to minimize any financiabkes
to the creditors as a whole, and ING Baski S.A. in particular. This can be accomplishedutigh
many means available to the creditors, the mostommof which are:

- extending the repayment period,

- selling assets,

- selling business lines of the obligor,

- forgoing part of the financial obligations,

- a combination of the above.

The decision to enter into such a restructuringldse only after careful internal assessment and
approval by the appropriate (internal) delegatetha@ities. Once a restructuring is completed, the
obligor is again subject to normal credit risk ntoring procedures.

During 2007, ING BanKlaski S.A. restructured impaired Wholesale clientsirs totaling PLN 9,4
million, which as a result of the restructuring amv considered to be performing. Additionally, ING
BankSlaski S.A. restructured performing loans totaling PBOJ2 million, that we believe would have
become impaired if we had not restructured them.
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9. Compliance Reviews

The basic compliance reviews in the credit risk aggament area are performed by:
— Credit Risk Inspection Department,

— Internal Audit Department,
in the scope defined under items 1.10 and 1.12.

10. Identification of Credit Risk Connected with Derivatives

Each client concluding a derivative transactiorhvtite Bank must be assigned a relevant transaction
limit by the Bank. The transaction limits are assig pursuant to the credit procedures and autbriti
binding in the Bank, as for all other credit expesu

CRS system is used to monitor the risk connectetth Wwansactions concluded by the Bank's
counterparties. CRS is a global system, used begrthiee ING Group in which all the FM (“Financial
Markets”) limits and transactions concluded by desabre registered.

The transactions that generate risk on the couantistp side (settlement and pre-settlement risk)l a
that are input to the system, require registraticRS.

The risk connected with the Treasury Departmentdyets, such as derivatives, deposits and
transactions in securities, is monitored onlinthatBank.

From the perspective of risk measurement, it magitided into:

— pre-settlement — arising for FX and derivative sactions as well as transactions in
securities as a result of exchanging the trangacta the market at a potentially
unfavourable price,

— credit risk — connected with placing money on treekat (deposits).

Pre-settlement Risk

The pre-settlement risk derives from a breach afigaction terms by the Counterparty, before its
settlement, which makes necessary to exchangetrinmsaction with a transaction with another
Counterparty, according to the market price (paiptunfavourable).

To control the Counterparty’s risk, not only thestof exchange in case of breach is determined
(current market value “MtM”), but also the growth\tM during the transaction duration.

Since the financial markets are not fully preditdand one cannot be 100% sure about the set
maximum MtM, the statistical models are used tardethe level of trust. Pursuant to the policy of
ING Group, this trust level is 97.5%.

Money Market Risk

The Money Market Risk arises when the Bank plaggmsits with another counterparty (bank). The
Bank loses funds in case of terms being breachdbdebgounterparty. Due to this, the risk is measure
simply as the deposit face value.

Settlement Risk

The settlement risk is a risk at which the courdadgpwill not deliver the assets that they are gudyi

to deliver due to the transaction settlement aedBnk may lose up to 100% of the expected value.
This risk arises when the exchange of value iske place (funds or other instruments) on the same
or different delivery date and this delivery is backed or expected till the moment when the Bank
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delivers an irrevocable instruction of paymentlw Bank has paid itself or delivered its part @& th
liability deriving from the transaction.

Some products always generate the settlementsiske never do, and there are also such products
for which the occurrence of this risk is connectéth the mechanism of settlements. The settlement
risk always arises when the transaction involvesilaeral exchange of funds/ securities but this
exchange is not made on the DVP basis (Delivergi¥®&Payment).

Risk Connected with Securities Purchase/ Sales

The risk connected with securities purchase/saterges when the exchange of funds into securities
does not take place on the DVP basis. Then théememt risk arises on the day of transaction
settlement, unless the settlement is made in sugyahat the Bank can control the transactionasso
not to allow the flow of funds/ securities beforenirming the obligation execution by the
Counterparty.

Risk Weights

Risk Weights used to monitor the utilisation of iindual limits are defined for single products,
currencies and transaction duration at the levéN& Group. Risk Weights constitute an estimation
of the potential future exposure (PFE) for the tfe-money” contract, as a percentage of the
transaction face value in the period of time renmgrill its settlement.

Pre-settlement risk at the transaction level isudated as:

Pre-settlement risk Market Value + Face Value x Risk Weight,

where risk weight is based on the period of timmeaiing till the transaction settlement.

Risk weights are “used” by CRS system to moniterldvel of the counterparty limits utilisation.

The portfolio of transactions concluded with thenBa counterparties, covered by CRS (unsettled
transactions), is as follows (all data in EUR roit):

31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006
Money Market 4 363,8 4 352,6
MtM 3 156,4 3 067,6
PFE 1190,1 900,4
Present Value + FM Value 5692,0 4 445,2
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Il.  Market Risk Management

1. General Information

The main goals of Market Risk Management in ING IB&hski are to ensure that the Bank’s
exposure to market risk is understood, properlyagead, and - where applicable - within approved
limits.

The Bank defines market risk as the potential thes to unfavourable changes in market prices (e.qg.
yields, FX rates, equity prices, etc.) and/or magerameters (e.g. volatility of market prices ainel
correlation between moves in market prices) anclistomer behaviour (e.g. early loan repayments).

The market risk management process within the Bamkers the identification, measurement,
monitoring, and reporting of risk. The MRM departmh@rovides FM Management, selected Board
and ALCO Committee members with regular risk upslaaditionally ALCO, Management Board
and Supervisory Board receive periodic updatesadoing the most important market risk metrics.
The MRM department is staffed with trained spestaliand the independence of this department is
ensured by its separation from the Bank units wigieherate market risk. An important consultative
role in the market risk management process is padd by the Bank’s majority shareholder — ING
Bank NV.

The market risk management process in the Bankiatdodes the Product Control function which
assures correctness of Financial Markets produatsation. It covers independent assessment
(comparison to market) of revaluation prices ancpeters used for fair market value calculation and
proper P&L and valuation reporting in financial &ys. Decisions about issues related to valuation
process e.g. sources of market data used, pricimdehreserves calculation etc. are taken by the
Parameters Committee which is chaired by Produatr@Gband also includes representatives from the
Financial Markets and Finance divisions.

The management of market risk in the Bank is prilméocused on potential changes in the economic
result of the Bank (i.e. changes in the presentevaf expected future cash flows) but attentioalse
paid to cases where — due to accounting asymmetriks effect of market rate changes on reported
financial results are different from the effectsofch changes on economic results.

2. Bank’s Book Structure in Context of Market Risk Management

The Bank maintains an intention-based book stractuinich drives many processes, including the
management of market risk. The book structure cefleehat kind of market risk is expected and
acceptable in which parts of the Bank and wherekataisk should be internally transferred/hedged
within the Bank. Specifically, books are categadizased on intention dtrading” (positions are
taken in expectation of short-term financial gaioni market movements) dbanking” (all other
positions).A high-level view of the Bank’s book structure sfallows:

Whole Bank
|___ Trading Books
| Banking Books
|___ Commercial Banking Books
| FM Banking Books
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Trading Books

These are Financial Markets (“FM”) books (FX, FXtDps and Interest Rate Trading) and ING
Securities (the Bank's brokerage house) - equitykatanaking and arbitrage activities (reported
under FM structure). These books include positteid intentionally for short-term resale and/ortwit
the intent of benefiting from actual or expectedrsiierm price movements or to lock in arbitrage
profits, and include, for example, proprietary piosis, positions arising from client servicing asrd/
market making. The market risks of open positiansrading books are limited by various Trading
VaR limits or - for the equity market-making anditnage activities of ING Securities - volume
limits.

Commercial Banking Books

These are Retail and Wholesale Banking books atintpicommercial loans and deposits. The risks
of these positions are internally hedged as wellpassible to FM Banking books via internal

contracts, which ensures that these books do nuthicomaterial levels of economic market risk.

However, as described later in more detail, thetdleom financial results of these boak® sensitive

to changes in market rates.

FM Banking Books

These are Liquidity Management & Funding (“LMF”)daiALM (“ALM”) books. Their primary
responsibility is the liquidity and interest ratamagement of the positions of Banking — Commercial
— Books. Open positions are allowed within approvadR limits. Like Commercial Banking books,
there is usually a difference between the sensitvi economic and financial results to changes in
market rates.

3. Value at Risk (“VaR") Concept

The Value at Risk (VaR) is the main methodologydut® calculate market risk in FM books, both
“Trading” and “Banking”. The VaR gives the potemtlass that is expected not to be exceeded
assuming certain confidence (probability) leveleTBank calculated VaR separately for individual
interest rate, FX and FX options portfolios. Thidiwing assumptions for VaR calculation are taken:
99% confidence interval and 250 daily market obs#ons are used for volatility and correlation
calculation. The VaR measurements done by the Baekperformed in accordance to ING Group
standards and market best practice. The VaR madetacy for “Trading” books is checked in daily
back-testing process. P&L figures, both “actualt d&hypothetical or theoretical P&L” (change in
end-of-day market value of the positions in a mgdbortfolio over 1 day, so excluding all intra-day
activities that occurred during that day) are coragao the VaR. Any model outliers (large positive
and all negative) are investigated and explained.

Event VaR (“stress-tests”)

The Bank is aware that normal VaR does not presduall picture of market risk of a portfolio as it
does not give an indication of potential lossegxireme cases. Therefore event risk (stress tgsting
calculations as performed. They cover evaluatiothef Bank portfolios against a number of stress
scenarios for one or more of the market parametetsdetermine the value of the portfolios. The
worst result from the scenarios is reported aditia¢ event VaR number.
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Trading Books Market Risk (VaR statistics)*
VaR numbers in 2007 (in PLN)

Area Limit As at 31.12.2007% Average Min Max
Interest Rate 3,405,870 672,818 359,267 175,953 1,424,258
FX 2,119,208 14,643 549,474 14,643 1,382,904
FX Options 1,892,150 222,084 359,047 135,679 982,722

VaR numbers in 2006 (in PLN)

Area Limit As at 31.12.200¢ Average Min Max
Interest Rate 3,506,400 1,253,270 973,864 304,322 2,439,333
FX 2,181,760 586,978 354,817 5,469 1,145,142
FX Options 1,948,000 505,718 494,367 180,424 1,302,511

* All VaR limits and their usage in ING Bas#lgski are denominated in EUR. Limit levels in tatdesl graphs

PLN for the purpose of this document were conveiriem PLN using average NBP fixing rate. The usage
converted into PLN using daily NBP fixing rates.

Interest Rate VaR (PLN)
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FX VaR (PLN)
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Financial Markets Banking Books Market Risk (VaR atistics)**
VaR numbers in 2007 (in PLN)

Area Limit As at 31.12.200] Average Min Max
LMF 3,784,300 714,276 749,507 214,458 1,432,153
ALM 3,784,300 1,395,945 533,356 144,281 1,755,009
VaR numbers in 2006 (in PLN)
Area Limit As at 31.12.200¢ Average Min Max
LMF 3,896,00Q 1,005,460 1,302,275 819, 956 2,420,937
ALM 3,896,00Q 209,950 1,105,424 99,810 3,627,633

** |n case of LMF (Liquidity Management & Fundingiimbers represent Total VaR (including both swapeu

changes and spread risk) whereas for ALM it repmes®elta VaR as this measure is formally limiteelia
VaR takes into account swap curve changes only).
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LMF VaR (PLN)
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Non Financial Markets Banking Books VaR statistics
VaR numbers in 2007 (in PLN)

Area Limit As at 31.12.2007 Average Min Max
Interest Rate 567,645 41,458 29,276 13,242 49,918
VaR numbers in 2006 (in PLN)

Area Limit As at 31.12.2006¢ Average Min Max
Interest Rate 584,400 99,343 55,988 17,297 99,343
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Commercial Banking Books Market Risk

As these books are materially hedged against clsaingeconomic results, the main indication of the
interest rate exposure of Commercial Banking boakes Earnings at Risk “EaR” measurements
(results of these measurements are presentednates interest rate sensitivity analysis tabld$)e
positions in Commercial Banking books are also exttbfo measurements of non-linear interest rate
risk. Specifically, the Bank measures optionaligkr(the potential losses on these positions given
early-withdrawal of deposits and/or early re-paytm@loans) and basis risk (the potential losses on
these positions arising from non-standard ratéagethechanisms). The Bank is of the opinion that
both of these risks are not material (potentiaséastypically represent a very small share of hsb

or projected results).

4. Earnings at Risk (EAR) Concept

EaR measurements are used for the (parts of) bgdank positions which are accrual-accounted.
Two approaches are used, as detailed below; bgttvaghes cover a 1-year time horizon and provide
the possible changes in accrual results given sbibakges of +/-1% and +/- 2%. The two approaches
taken are as follows:

- A "basic” approach is used for positions compriséderm transactions and/or small volumes of
demand positions. This approach assumes that anyefdiunding gaps or surpluses will be
financed or invested with a tenor of one month.

— An “advanced” approach is used for material volumiedemand positions (at present: the Bank’s
PLN demand deposit base and its internal investinémt-M banking books. The measurements
simulate the changes in the Bank’s results conmioig the combination of:

e Current (internal) investment of these funds anple@shment of these investments as
previous investments mature and/or new volumesatiracted. Future (re-) investments are
predicted based on continued use of current invastnules.

* An assessment of the relation between changes iikeimeates and the rates that the Bank
must pay its clients in order to maintain volumes.

Overall Interest Rate Sensitivity

The following tables provide a good overview of ensitivity of the Bank to changes in interest
rates. Full data is only available as at the enddetember 2007; future financial statements will
include comparisons to previous periods.

The first table shows the sensitivity of the Banfésults to changes in interest rates; the follgwin
should be noted:

— Positions are divided into banking book vs. tradiogk. Positions include all material currencies;
PLN positions represent the vast majority of theriest rate sensitivity of the Bank.

— A basis point value (“BPV”) is shown for each (supesition; by BPV we mean the change in the
economic value of a position for a 0.01% paraliefease in yields.

— Positions are further split where relevant by aotimg method: accrual or MTM. MTM
positions’ economic and financial sensitivity togaven change in market rates is the same;
changes in the market value are fully and immebjiateflected in reported results. Accrual-
accounted positions display an asymmetry betweeretonomic and financial effect of a given
yield curve shift; this is an unavoidable resultastounting regulations. The financial effects of
yield curve shifts are calculated in line with tlefinition of EaR presented earlier. The
“advanced” EaR approach is used for PLN demandgiegppdhe “basic” EaR approach is used for
all other accrual-accounted positions. The econaesalt shown is the predicted change in the
present value of future earnings, calculated oweng time horizon.

— As can be seen in the table in case of banking litheke is a large difference between the
economic and financial sensitivity. Although thenkas aware of the sensitivity of its short-term
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financial results to changes in interest rates,ntiest important metric is — in line with the ING
Group’s “Managing For Value” approach — the sewiitiof the long-term economic results of the
bank.

The second table shows the sensitivity of the Bawkpital base to changes in the market value of
debt securities classified as Available-for-SalaRS”") in FM (the vast majority of AFS-classified
securities in the consolidated Bank). It is impotte note that the potential changes in capitakba
shown here are relevant only for the Bantégulatory capital base. The Bank’s calculations of its
economiccapital base do not include positive or negativealeations of AFS-classified debt
securities. This is because AFS-classified dehirgtexs positions largely arise from the investmeit
portions of PLN demand deposit volumes in line witie Bank’s economic modelling of these
demand deposits.

Sensitivity of Bank’s Results to Changes in InteRedes

, Change in Economic Result for | Change in Reported Financial
Book é‘;?g;g:}'/”g BPV Yield Curve Move Result for Yield Curve Move
2% | -1% 1% 2% 2% | -1% 1% 2%
MTM -0.83| 172.22| 84.61| -81.79| -160.95 172.22| 84.61| -81.79| -160.95
BANKING | Accrual 0.82| -169.11| -83.35| 81.02| 159.79| -18.69| -9.24| 9.24| 18.48
Total 001 312 126| -0.77| -1.16| 153.54| 75.37| -72.55| -142.47
TRADING | MTM 0.04| -8.94| -4.47| 447 894 -8.94| -447| 447 894
BANK MTM -0.79| 163.28| 80.13| -77.32| -152.01| 163.28) 80.13| -77.32| -152.01
TOTAL Accrual 0.82| -169.11| -83.35| 81.02] 159.79| -18.69| -9.24| 9.24| 18.48
ALL 0.03 -5.83 -3.22 3.70 7.79| 144.59 70.89| -68.08| -133.53

All figures in PLN millions

Sensitivity of Capital Accounts to Changes in lestiRates

2007
Approximate Change in Regulatory Capital Base for Yeld Curve
Position BPV Move
-2% -1% +1% +2%
FM AFS Portfolio -2.24 447.50 223.75 -223.75 -440.5
2006
Approximate Change in Regulatory Capital Base for Yeld Curve
Position BPV Move
-2% -1% +1% +2%
FM AFS Portfolio -2.59 518.09 259.04 -259.04 -518.0

All figures in PLN millions
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[11. Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity Risk is understood by ING Barklaski as being the risk of not being able to meea at
reasonable price the cash obligations arising foomand off-balance sheet positions. It is theqgyoli
of the Bank to maintain its liquidity positions snch a way that the cash obligations of the Bank ma
always be met by cash on hand, inflows from magutnansactions and/or from the liquidation of
marketable assets.

This policy is ensured by the following processas,defined in detail in thiNG Bank Slgski's

Liquidity and Funding Policy:

— production and review of internally-defined liquidiand funding reports and adherence to any
formal limits placed thereupon.

— existence of a clear governance structure assigroles and responsibilities in normal and
stressed liquidity circumstances.

— production and review of regulatory liquidity reodefined by the Polish and Dutch national
Banks (“NBP”, “DNB”) and adherence to any formaits placed thereupon.

— activities ensuring proper supply of banknotesrahbhes, and
— activation, in certain defined circumstances, obatingency funding plan.

The formal limits are placed by regulators or trenB on the various reported metrics. ALCO may
decide to include metrics in its KRI (Key risk lodiors) report wherein liquidity metrics are
classified as “acceptable”, “under observation™mot acceptable” based on pre-defined thresholds.
The ALCO KRI report is also presented to the Bakamagement and Supervisory Boards.

In case of excesses of hard limits and/or KRI téyi metrics classified as “unacceptable”, the
following actions are performed:

- MRM - with help from other departments as necessagpsures that a real breach has occurred
(and not a reporting error).

- MRM informs local and regional ALCO of the limit &RI breach, the cause of the breach, and
proposed remedial actions.

- An ad hoc ALCO meeting is held to agree on remeatitibns and responsibilities for carrying out
these actions. Regional ALCO is informed of decisitaken.

One of the most imported processes of the managdimeitlity risk is the contingency funding plan.
The Bank’s Contingency Funding Plan (CFP) servegrtvide guidance as regards identifying a
liquidity crisis and, in case such identificatiammade, as regards the actions to be taken tovsiuthe
crisis.

The actions taken in line with the CFP depend emtiture and severity and of the liquidity crisis.

It is worthwhile to expand on the internally-defiheeports as this gives good insight into the Bank’
approach to measuring and managing risk and thegsarts are the basis for the explanatory tables
presented in this section.

The most important of these internally-defined répare as listed below.
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Liquidity Cash Profile

On the following pages we present the bank’s lijyidrofile as of the end of December, 2007. The
reports are presented in two contexts: contradipaitlity positions and stressed liquidity positiomas
described below:

Contractual Liguidity PositionsThese reports include all balance sheet positidrish are exposed to
liquidity risk. The reports are reconciled to thaldnce sheet of the bank. Positions are allocated t
time intervals based on contractual maturity orherg there is no contractual maturity (for example,
current and savings accounts) — to the first tinberval.

Stress Liquidity Positianin the opinion of the bank, this report — madelime with the bank’s
Liquidity Risk Management policy - provides much naansight into the liquidity risk of the bank.
The main differences vis-a-vis the contractualiligy reports are as follows:

— Off-balance sheet positions are included if theyehaotential liquidity implications. For example,
the report assumes that financing may be needednfastimated level of potential draw-downs
under unused credit lines.

— Some balance sheet positions are excluded if theyod have an effect on the bank’s liquidity
position. To give some examples: 1) fixed assetsat included as they are not considered to be
a ready source of cash, 2) capital is not includsedve do not expect the withdrawal of this
liability, 3) PLN nostro balances up to the minimuaquired balance are not included as the
maintenance of the required minimum balance mdaatsin effect this asset is “frozen” and can
not be seen as a structural source of cash to coatring liabilities.

— Some balance sheet positions are adjusted to givaceurate picture of the bank’s liquidity
position during a stress situation; these adjustsnean effect both the allocation of positions to
time intervals as well as the total amounts of fimss. To give some examples: 1) the allocation
of non-bank demand and term deposits to time iateris done according to assumptions about
deposit withdrawals and rollovers in a liquidityests situation, 2) marketable securities are
allocated to the first time interval based on acwdito market value to simulate the bank’s forced
sale of these assets in a liquidity stress sitnatio
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Unadjusted Liquidity Gap Positions (in PLN milligns

2007 year-end

| iM[  1-3m| 3-12M oOver1y] TOTAL
BALANCE SHEET ASSETS
;Sgr?lfh in hand and balances with the Central 18417 0.0 0.0 0,0 18417
- Loans and receivables to other banks 11 877,1 847,1 2 513,6 1,0 15 238,8
- Financial assets measured at fair value throigh 8343 192.7 7438 6 0982 78690
profit and loss
- Investments 8,0 0,0 1 907,5 7 502,9 9418,4
- Derivative hedge instruments 0,0 0,0 0,0 4,6 4.6
- Loans and receivables to customers 5 553,0) 1 302,0) 2 414 4 6 780,3 16 049,7
BALANCE SHEET LIABILITIES
- Liabilities due to other banks 1644,2 123,1 45,0 0,0 1812,3
- Financial liabilities measured at fair value
through profit and loss 248,9 155,5 431,4 379,2 1215,0
- Liabilities due to customers 40 362,3 1 699,4 1594,0 846,5 44 502,2
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
- Contingent liabilities granted 10 239,q 168,1 951,2 1617,7 12 976,0
NET GAP -32 380,3 195,7 4557,7 17 543,6 X
CUMULATIVE GAP -32380,3| -32184,6| -27626,9 -10 083,3 X
2006 year -end

1M 1-3M| 3-12M| Over1Y| TOTAL

BALANCE SHEET ASSETS
égr?lfh in hand and balances with the Central 1147.9 0.0 0,0 0,0 11479
- Loans and receivables to other banks 11 365,4 2 045,3 143,4 6,1 13 560,2
- Financial assets measured at fair value throfigh
profit and loss 144.,5 1197,0 672,3 5052,2 7 066,0
- Investments 50,4 730,4 2 652,3 9211, 12 644,7
- Loans and receivables to customers 4775,3 1 015,0 19735 5 198,6 12 962,4
BALANCE SHEET LIABILITIES
- Liabilities due to the Central Bank 696,0 0,0 0,0 0,0 696,0
- Liabilities due to other banks 1170,2 93,2 136,8 0,0 1400,2
- Financial liabilities measured at fair value
through profit and loss 2236,9 165,3 274,1 444,2 31205
- Liabilities due to customers 34 504,5 1521,0 1 945,3] 655,6 38 626,4
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
- Contingent liabilities granted 11 729,1| 162,8 642,3 1283,2 13817,4
NET GAP -32 853,2 30454 2443,0 17 085,5 X
CUMULATIVE GAP -32853,2| -29807,8| -273648| -10279,3 X
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Liquidity Gap Positions In Bank-Defined Stress @c®s According to Bank Models (in PLN
millions)

2007 year-end

| | M | 1-3M | 3-12M | Over 1Y |
BALANCE-SHEET

ASSETS

- Securities 12 883,8 0,0 94,7 319,3
- Money market (given) 11 024,0 760,1 2 410,7 0,0
- Term/demand loans 2 639,4 1048,4 2 189,5 10 700,0
- Other assets 114,6 0,0 0,0 1371,8
LIABILITIES

- Money market (taken) 1 390,6 123,1 45,0 0,0
- Term deposits 12 407,4 13139 928,1 1961,9
- Demand deposits 2213,7 1710,9 3832,9 843,2
- Savings accounts retail 31939 22214 8642,4 5013,7
- Other liabilities 76,9 0,0 0,0 0,0
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

ASSETS

- FX SWAPS / CC-IRS 14 355,0 3282,1 5 866,2 380,5
- Money market / depo strategic clients 2 358,7 0,0 0,0 0,0
- Repayment of contingent assets 937,3 115,8 252,7 1571,2
LIABILITIES

- FX SWAPS / CC-IRS 14 059,4 32494 5501,2 466,3
- Money market / depo strategic clients 2 358,6 0,0 0,0 0,0
- Funding of contingent assets 2876,9 0,0 0,0 0,0
NET GAP 57355 -3412,3 -8135,8 6 057,6
CUMULATIVE GAP 57355 23232 -5812,6 245,0
2006 year-end

| | M | 1-3M | 3-12M| Over 1Y
BALANCE-SHEET

ASSETS

- Securities 13 566,7 172,3 118,3 827,3
- Money market (given) 10 940,9 2032,8 0,0 0,0
- Term/demand loans 2 470,0 627,2 1684,3 8 948,3
- Other assets 511,5 0,0 0,0 771,2
LIABILITIES

- Money market (taken) 961,5 50,5 136,8 0,0
- Term deposits 11 388,8 9449 879,2 2579,9
- Demand deposits 1450,3 1794,0 3302,0 705,2
- Savings accounts retail 3090,0 1297,0 7 001,3 4 061,7
- Other liabilities 854,9 0,0 19,2 690,2
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

ASSETS

- FX SWAPS / CC-IRS 13 742,8 4994,2 5579,9 830,1
- Money market / depo strategic clients 3816,9 0,0 0,0 0,0
- Repayment of contingent assets 706,3 56,8 143,7 1 088,2
LIABILITIES

- FX SWAPS / CC-IRS 13 758,4 49471 54744 926,8
- Money market / depo strategic clients 3814,3 2,6 0,0 0,0
- Funding of contingent assets 1995,1 0,0 0,0 0,0
NET GAP 84418 -1152,8 -9 286,7 3501,3
CUMULATIVE GAP 84418 7 289,0 -1997,7 1503,6
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V. Regulatory and Economic Capital M anagement

In accordance with capital policy Bank maintainsagital base which is sufficient in terms of regoitg
and economic capital requirements. Capital basedatparison reasons is calculated following current
methods while regulatory capital requirements aleutated according to (Resolution 1/2007 KNB form
13th of March 2007). Economic capital requiremeatsl economic capital base are largely bank-
determined.

For the purpose of capital management the Bankndisshes items of the banking book and of the
trading one. This division is of key importance éalculation of the regulatory capital while noteating
the economic capital.

Division of the Bank’s assets into items of the Bang Book and of the Trading Book

The division into the banking and trading booksriportant not only due to regulatory issues, &s #lso
reflected in management accounting maintained &yBtiink and in the risk management area. The above
mentioned elements represent an immanent featube gfrocess of regulatory capital management while
not affecting the calculation of the economic calpiThe aforesaid division may be characteriseth@n
following manner:

- The Banking Book covers items resulting from thenowercial lending and deposit activity as well as
financial markets items, representing the outcofmaanagement and financing of those items.

— The Trading Book covers short-term items (specuhatirbitration) and trading ones.

Capital Base in Regulatory and Economic aspects

The table below present the detailed calculatiobasfe figures and regulatory capital and solveaty r
as at 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2007.

The more stringent regulatory capital requiremeares connected with the growing size of the credit
portfolio which is in line with the Bank's strategbbjective and which translates into the sizehef t
regulatory capital base. In the current situatitie, Bank maintains an adequate capital level wisch
illustrated by the solvency ratio (an 8% regulat@guirement).
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Regulatory capital base and solvency ratio

31 Dec 2007 | 31 Dec 2006

Capital components
Share capital 130 100 130 100
Supplementary capital - issuance of shares oveinavalue 993 750 993 750
Other supplementary capital 24 296 23 582
Capital reserve 1487 079 1 359 501
General risk 530 152 480 152
Retained profit/loss of past years 6 361 5044
Revaluation reserve from measurement of availaiiesdle financial assets -149 591 42 830
Revaluation reserve from measurement of propelapit@nd equipment 37 154 40 458
Adjustment for intangible assets -317 801 -316 753
Adjustment for shares in financial institutions -143 679 -80 179
Short-term capital 91 156 120 556
Total own funds 2688 977 2799041
Capital requirements
Credit risk 1 696 494 1 360 893
Credit concentration risk 0 903
Market risk 63473 103 216
Risk of delivery settlement and of counterparty 27 683 19 351
| Total capital requirement | 1787652] 1484363
| Solvency ratio | 12,03% | 15,09% |

Regulatory and economic capital requirements

The process of the Bank'’s preparations for Basgcudes, among others, comprehensive assessihent o
all risks run by the Bank. This process resultgaiculating the capital requirements, thus allowihg
Bank to protect itself against the risk. The valfecapital requirements differs depending on the
regulatory or economic approaches. Two key reakmrdifferences may be distinguished:

— The methods used for assessment and measurenregutHtory capital requirements are determined
by NBP/KNB, whereas the methodology of measurenoérthe economic capital requirements is
based on internal Banks’ models.

— The legal regulations precisely define the risksvibich the regulatory capital requirement shoutd b
calculated; this does not apply to the estimatiohshe economic capital calculated in a manner
defined by the Bank. Thus, the economic capitabc®a broader scope of risks, including those that
are significant (material), but not included inugory capital.

107



Annual financial statements of the ING Bank Slgski SA.
for the period from 1st January 2007 to 31st December 2007

Changes connected with implementation of the Newp&a Accord/Basel Il (Directive 2006/48/EC of
the European Parliament and the Council of 14 Jur2906 and Directive 2006/49/EC of the European
Parliament and the Council of 14 June 2006)

Bank achieved compliance with Basle Il requiremefitsese requirements, and the bank’s progress in
compliance therewith, are divided into the thredldgs” of Basel Il

- Pillar 1 of reflects regulatory requirements. Thestrimportant changes that occur in this area gurin
2007 are:

- Introduction of regulatory capital requirements émerational risk. In this area, the Bank uses the
Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) method. The Openatib Risk Management and Compliance
Department is responsible for management and nrargtof that risk.

— The stipulation of the New Capital Accord do nofpee significant changes in respect of the
measurement, management and modelling of marketAisrequirements of the new regulations
were implemented and are currently realised byrthgket Risk Management Department.

For the purpose of 2008 and 2009 reporting StamsddApproach including the use of regulatory
parameters set in the abovementioned Directivesirafesolution 1/2007 KNB is to be used. This
area is managed and monitored by Departments fierRisk Division.

Works are continued on compliance with the requiets of A-IRB approach (Advanced Internal
Rating Based Approach). The A-IRB approach will ised commencing from August 2009.
Compliance with Basel Il requirements was achidwethe implementation of:

* Global models developed at the Group level andmedeby the Dutch Central Bank (DNB).

« Local models developed at the ING BaSikski's level and accepted by the National Bank of
Poland.

- Pillar 2 imposes new requirements in respect of ¢kenomic capital calculation as well as
supervision and management, especially in the @ireiaks. The Bank’s organisational structure and
the model of the institution’s management arene lvith the guidelines of the New Capital Accord.
This compliance is understood as the appropriageegation of duties and the internal reporting
mechanism ensuring that the Management Board an&tlpervisory Board are informed about the
type and level of risks the Bank is exposed tosHillar covers both the risks of Pillar 1 and tis&s
not contained therein, including business riskygfer risk, residual risk, model or stress risks.

- Pillar 3 imposes new reporting requirements andashets publishing the information policy in regard
to the scope, frequency and form of disclosure predentation of reporting information. The Bank
achieved compliance with Basel Il requirements hylding Financial Data Mart (FDM) and
implementation of Finrep and Corep reporting tovsaxBP.
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